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Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) is said to be one of the most
versatile plastics in the world. Its unique properties
and unparalleled adaptability makes it a material of
choice for several applications ranging from
construction to automobile and from sports to
household items. PVC has played an instrumental role
towards advancement and modernisation of products.
At EPCL, we remain committed towards development
of PVC sector in the country and are working .'
extensively on new developments with an aim to make "
lives better for people around us.
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OUR MISSION

Our mission is to achieve innovative growth which
creates value for our stakeholders, customers and
employees. Our Commitment is to maintain the highest
standards of ethics, safety and environmental
responsibility.
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Maintain health and safety standards as per the DuPont framework Enhance penetration in domestic Vinyls market and accelerate new product
Adhere to global environmental standards based on British Safety Council standards development initiatives

Ensure site reliability and product availability Pursue development of pipes & fittings standards through PSQCA

Execute PVC & VCM Plant debottlenecking Acquire, retain & develop talent and enhance workforce diversity
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OUR CORE VALUES

Our core values define every aspect of our
way of doing business.

ETHICS & INTEGRITY

We do care how results are achieved and will demonstrate honest and ethical behaviour in all of our activities.
Choosing the course of highest integrity is our intent and we will establish and maintain the highest professional

and personal standards. A well founded reputation for scrupulous dealing is itself a priceless asset.

COMMUNITY & SOCIETY

We believe that a successful business creates much bigger economic impact and value in the community,
which dwarfs any philanthropic contribution. Hence, at Engro, sustainable business development is to be
anchored in the commitment to engage with key stakeholders in the community and society.
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HEALTH, SAFETY & ENVIRONMENT

We will manage and utilise resources and operations in such a way that the safety and health of our people,
neighbours, customers and visitors are ensured. We believe our safety, health and environmental
responsibilities extend beyond protection and enhancement of our own facilities.

INNOVATION & RISK TAKING

Success requires us to continually strive to produce breakthrough ideas that result in improved solutions

and services. We encourage challenges to the status quo and seek organisational environments in which

ideas are generated, nurtured and developed. Engro appreciates employees for well thought out risks taken

in all realms of business and for the results achieved due to them, acknowledging the fact that not all risks
will result in success.

OUR PEOPLE

We strongly believe in the dignity and value of people. We must consistently treat each other with respect

and strive to create an organisational environment in which individuals are fairly treated, encouraged and

empowered to contribute, and can grow and develop themselves and help to deavelop each other. We do
not tolerate any form of harassment or discrimination
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Our Statement of
Best Practices

™
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% Overall, work towards creating an environment which promotes the realisation of our Vision and Values, by

focusing on behavioural modification and systematic changes.

. Challenge the status quo by, experimenting and faking reasonable and calculated risk.

Think EPCL, by placing Company interest above individual, sectional, departmental and achieving these before
implementing.

; Collectively develop clear, concise and realistic goals, also agreeing on the process of achieving these before

implementing.

. Balance task, team and individual needs, by keeping the helicopter view.

Work through teams, by valuing all ideas and effectively committing people through consensus building and active
involvement.

; Remind each other on the importance of using participatory processes, just as much as emphasising attention on

safety, quality and continuous improvement.
Recognise individual needs and help fulfill them.

Trust each other by delegating authority and decision making to the lowest possiblelevel.

= Encourage sharing a clear, consistent and timely feedback for leaming and growth.
- Give everyone a chance by listening patienfly and thinking before speaking.

- Recognise team and individual efforts to change by celebrating both lessons and successes.

_ Annual Report | 2016
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Our Statement of
Business Ethics

The policy of EPCL is one of the sirict observance of all laws applicable to its business. Our policy does not stop there. Even
where the law is pemmissive, EPCL chooses the course of highest integrity. Local customs, fraditions and mores differ from
place to place, and this must be recognised. But honesly is not subject to criticism in any culture. Shades of dishonesty simply
invite demoralising and reprehensible judgments. A well-founded reputation for scrupulous dealing is itself a priceless
Company asset.

An overy-ambitious employee might have the mistaken idea that we do not care how results are obtained, as long as they gets
results. They might think it best not to tell higher management all that they are doing, not to record all transactions accurately
in their books and records, and to deceive the Company’s intemal and extemal auditors. They would be wrong on all counts.

We do care how we get results. We expect compliance with our standards of integrity throughout the organisation. We will not
tolerate an employee who achieves results at the cost of violation of laws or unscrupulous dealing. By the same token, we
support and we expect you to support, an employee who passes up an opportunity or advantage which can only be secured
at the sacrifice of principle.

Equally important, we expect candor from managers at all levels and compliance with accounting rules and controls. We don't
want employees to misrepresent facts, whether they are misrepresenting in a mistaken effort to protect us or to make
themselves look good.

One of the kinds of harm which result when a manager conceals information from higher management and the auditors is that
subordinates within his organisation think they are being given a signal that Company policies and rules, including accounting
and control rules, can be ignored whenever inconvenient. This can result in corruption and demoralisation of an organisation.
Our system of management will not work without honesty, including honest book-keeping, honest budget proposals and
honest economic evaluation of projects.

It has been and continues to be EPCL’s policy that all transactions shall be accurately reflected in its books and records. This,
of course, means that falsification of its books and records and any off-the-record bank accounts are stricly prohibited.

Annual Report | 2016
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Our Approach Towards
Creating Meaningful Value

Our Board of Directors is representative of our shareholders’ interests and works with the President & CEO in deciding the
overall strategic vision and direction of the Company.

Two principal Board Committees assist the Board in making decisions related to business management and compensation.
Furthermore, there are numerous Functional Committees acting at the operational level in an advisory capacity to the President
& CEO, providing suggestions and recommendations related to business, environment and employee matters.

Functional Heads provide advice and recommendations in their own capacities and conceming their respective business areas.
These include Health and Safety, Technical Matters Relating to the Plants, Marketing and Sales, Finance, Employee Matters,
Supply Chain, Information Technology and Logistics.

The Senior Management of the Company considers feedback a significant contributor for the review of objectives and for the
development of future plans and strategies. The Company gathers information through various stakeholders, including the
govemment, shareholders and community, which ensure an efficient flow of information, both in and out of the Company.

Annual Report | 2016
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Engaging Stakeholders

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited understands the importance of stakeholder engagement and recognises that there is no
better way to ensure that our Company remains a responsible cormporate citizen, having a positive impact on all of our
stakeholders. We engage with our stakeholders both formally and informally, periodically and regulary.

EPCL’s stakeholders include:

Media
Our engagement with print & visual media takes place through regular press releases on key achievements and activities as
well as through informal conversations on Company news and updates throughout the year.

Investors, Lenders and Shareholders

Investors and shareholders look forward to our Annual General Meeting as well as Corporate Reports (Annual and Sustainability
Reports), which include comprehensive information on both financial and non-financial matters related to the organisation.
Furthermore, analyst briefings are conducted on quarterly basis, while disclosures to the stock exchanges on sirategic events
are made as and when required.

Suppliers and Customers

Our suppliers and customers are engaged through periodic formal and informal meetings / conferences. We regularly provide
them with technical assistance related to their businesses, to benefit both the industry and the economy in which we operate.

Host Communities (local to ourfacilities and throughout Pakistan)

We consider ourselves responsible for our host communities and hold regular interaction in  order to understand how we can
improve our relation. The Company is extremely actlive in health, education, livelihood and environmental projects for the
betterment of these communities.

Employees

EPCL concentrates on employee engagement as it is key to performance. A survey is carried out every year to assessthe levels
of engagement and motivation at the workplace, and based on feedback areas of weakness are improved and strengths held
stable.

Regulators

The Company complies with all regulatory requirements and in this regard maintains close coordination with relevant regulators
including the stock exchange, tax authorities and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Annual Report | 2016



STAKEHOLDERS’ INFORMATION

For every company it is essential to remember its roots
and the vision it began with. Over the years, EPCL has
won many accolades for its hard work and resilience
and it wouldn't have been possible without the
leadership and defined goals set by our stakeholders.
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Company Information

Board of Directors

Mr. Ghias Khan

Mr. Imran Anwer

Mr. Shoichi Ogiwara
Mr. Shahzada Dawood
Mr. Kimihide Ando

Mr. Asad Said Jafar
Mr. Zafar Hadi

Mr. Feroz Rizvi

Company Secretary

Schaane Ansari

Bankers

Allied Bank Ltd

Aslari Bank Lid

Bank Alfalah Lid

Bank Al Habib Lid

Bank Islami Pakistan Ltd
Burj Bank Lid

Citi N.A.

Deutsche Bank AG

Faysal Bank Ltd

Habib Bank Lid

Industrial & Commercial Bank of China Lid
MCB Bank Lid

Meezan Bank Ltd

MNational Bank of Pakistan
NIB Bank Ltd

Standard Chartered Bank Lid
Summit Bank Ltd

The Bank of Punjab

United Bank Ltd

Auditors

A.F. Ferguson & Company

Chartered Accountants

State Life Building No. 1-C

I.I. Chundrigar Road

Karachi-74000, Pakistan

Tel: +92(21) 32426682-6 / 32426711-5
Fax +92(21) 32415007 / 32427938

Registered Office

16th Floor, The Harbour Front Building,
HC-3, Marine Drive, Block 4, Clifton,
Karachi-75600, Pakistan

PABX :+92-21-35293871-85

Fax T +92-21-35293886

UAN 111411 411

E-mail : epcl-info@engro.com

Share Registrar
M/s. FAMCO Associates (Pvl) Limited

8-F, Next to Hotel Faran, Block-6, PECHS, Shahrah-e-Faisal

Karachi - Pakistan
Tel: +92(21) 3438 0104-5, 3438 4621-3
Fax +92(21) 3438 0106

Plant

EZ/1/P-ii-1, Eastern Zone, Bin Qasim, Karachi

Website

www.engropolymer.com
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Business at a Glance

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited (EPCL) was incorporated in 1997 and is the only fully integrated Chlor-Vinyl
Chemical Complex in Pakistan. It is involved in the manufacturing, marketing and distribution of PVC and Chlor-Vinyl

Allied Products.

Annual Report | 2016
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Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC)

A
e
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Importing Countries Exporting Countries

{il’ Ethylene: UAE, Iltaly, USA and Singapore t Poly Vinyl Chloride : India
i Ethylene Di Chloride (EDC): Saudi Arabia, Qatar,

Indonesia and Germany

PVC Domestic Market
The Company

manufactures and

markets four grades of tGadcon
PVC under the brand ﬁp&ehaw
name ‘SABZ’, echoing its ' .
commitment to -
environment and in line

with its core values /. ' I

PVC

s Karachi ‘ Hattar

i‘ Larkana ‘ Islamabad / Rawalpindi
Multan Peshawar
Faisalabad $ Gadoon

$ Lahore § Hyderabad

% Suklkur i’ Quetta

* Bahawalpur ‘l Sialkot

'b Gujranwala
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AU 67 S: AU 72:

Soft sheet & garden hose Artificial leather, wire coating & Geomembrane

AU 67 R:

Pipe, soft sheet & window profiles
7 W

PVC PLANT INFORMATION

Capacities:

'i PVC - 178 KTA as of December 31, 2016

* Ec-127kTA
% vem- 204 kTA

Annual Report | 2016
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Caustic & Allied Chemicals

Raw Material

Salt is our primary raw material for
Caustic and Allied Chemicals

Production Design Capacities
% PVC Plant - 178 KTA

% VCM - 204 KTA

% EDC - 127 KTA

% Caustic - 106 KTA

% Hypo -20KTA

% HCL - 60 KTA

% Hydrogen - 3KTA
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Domestic Market

KARACHI

HUE
HYDERABAD
MULTAN

RAHIM Y AR KHAN
FAISALABAD
LAHORE
CAHARKI
GUIRANWAL A

Pttt ettt et O

Caustic & Allied Chemical

Caustic Soda:
Dyeing and rmercerizing in textile, FFA removal from
edible oil & ghee, soap and water purification

Hydrochloric Acid:
Pickling, oil well acidizing, water treatment,
cleaning, food processing and medicine

Annual Report | 2016

SODIUM HYDROCHLORIC
HYPOCHLORITE ACID
% KARACHI i KARACHI
i. HYDERABAD i HUE
HUE ‘ HYDERABAD

% GHOTKI HYDROGEN

SADICABAD i
DAHARK] KARACHI

Sodium Hypochlorite:

Water treatrment, detergents, denim bleaching
and paper bleaching

Hydrogen:

Used in the manufacturing of terephthalic acid
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SWOT Analysis
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e Sole PVC producer in Pakistan e Increased exposure due to volatility in
international commaodity prices / currency
movements limiting pricing power

e Integrated production facility capable of
operating at high capacity utilisation
Established brand name and diversified Dependence on specialised raw matetial,
product portfolio which is subject to erratic supply

Strong human resource base and unique e Over supplied Caustic market

technical expertise in Chlor Vinyls e Limited scope for value addition due to

Established domestic presence and access commodity nature of products

to global export markets Increasing gas prices, which can't be
passed through due to independent

Sole supplier of Caustic in South I ; i
international prices of PVC

enabling dominance

Opportunities
L), 1 T

Low per capita PVC consumption in
the country

e Changes in tarrif
. AL o i ! e Rise in gas prices in Pakistan
e Anti-dumping imposition on dumping countries

D di rts of PVC
o Uptick in PVC demand with increased slbage i

construction activity, infrastructural projects
and spending on Public Sector development

@ Uptick in economic activity through CPEC

o Diversified downstream integration and new
market development

e Alternate Energy Projects
o Opportunity for low-cost debottlenecking

Annual Report | 2016
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Risk & Opportunity Report

Risk

Reduction in domestic
demand of PY¥C and
Caustic

. Further increass

Wolatility in plant in gas prices
opsratons

Risk of supply shortfall
hindaring availability of
Ethylans

Potential Negative Impact

Likelihood

@ Reduction in domestic demand of PVC & Caustic

Risk - The decrease in demand of PVC & Caustic Soda will heavily impact the financial health of the Company.
Mitigating Risk — Pakistan remains a country with one of the lowest PVC consumption per capita. EPCL believes in
partnering with its customers to improve the existing product to cater the landscape.

Risk Source - Commodity demand is a function of domestic economic conditions and commodity price fluctuations.

@ volatility in Plant Operations

Risk - Plant operations remain imperative for EPCL to maintain its position as key supplier to domestic market.
Disruptions in plant operations will compromise the current position of EPCL.

Mitigating Risk - Ensure sustainable operations via continuously monitoring plant operations. Identify potential
impediments and terminate at budding stage.

Risk Source - Plant maintenance is important for a functioning plant in terms of maintenance and capacity
enhancements.

@ Risk of supply shortfall hindering supply of key raw material

Risk - Plant operations are dependent on Ethylene and thereby the supply of PVC to local customer as well.
Mitigating Risk - The Company has entered into contracts with multiple traders and is continuously on the watch out
for expanding and diversifying its supplier base.

Risk Source - Supply dynamics within the region.

@ Further increase in gas prices

Risk - Gas is essential to plant operations and changes in gas prices are directly linked to profitability of the
Company.

Mitigating Risk - EPCL is implementing energy efficiency projects to minimise the impact of increase in gas prices.
Risk Source - Regulatory decision to increase prices.

Annual Report | 2016
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Opportunity

Reduction in raw
matsrial consum ption
ratios

Potential Positive Impact

. Energy efficisncy
. Divarsification in projects
sources of Ethylans for

uninterruptad supply

Likelihood

@ Reduction in raw material consumption ratio

Opportunity — The profitability of the Company is heavily reliant on the consumption of key raw materials. A decrease
in consumption will positively impact the economic health of the Company.

@ Improvement in per Capita consumption of PVC in Pakistan

Opportunity - Pakistan is one of the countries with the lowest PVC consumption per capita. An increase in
consumption will translate in increased revenues of the Company.

@ Diversification in sources of Ethylene for uninterrupted supply

Opportunity - Plant operations and product availability depends on uninterrupted supply of Ethylene. The Company
engages with different parties to avail opportunities to save in raw material procurement.

@ Energy efficiency projects

Opportunity — Decrease in energy consumption will positively impact the bottom line of the Company and will also
help achieve the long term goal of a sustainable and green environment.

: Annual Report | 2016
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Key Figures

Sales Revenue
(Rs. in thousands)

Earnings / (Loss)
Per Share

Profit / (Loss)
After Tax

(Rs. in thousands)

Capital
Expenditure
(Rs. in thousands)

Annual Report | 2016

2015
22 263,742

2015
(644,124)

2015
660,708

2016
22,854,024

2016
659,933

2016
644,657

!
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Total Assets
(Rs. in thousands)

Market
Capitalisation
(Rs. in thousands)

Share Price
(In Rupees)

Total Equity

(Rs. in thousands)

2015
24,211,764

2015
6,926,614

2015
5,333,728

2016
24,420,761

2016
12,247,634

2016
6,004,179
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Key Highlights and
Major Achievements

[

@ Highest ever PVC production at 172KT

Highest ever VCM production at 174KT

® ®

Highest OHIH rating at 3.7

Highest ever

Highest ever of

Highest ever Employee Engagement Index at 63%

First ever Ethylene cargo from USA

Over 1700 volunteer hours achieved

9 million safe man hours were achieved without lost workday injury

Approval of capacity debottlenecking project — EPEX 195

Lowest ever Fleet Accident Frequency Ratei.e. 2.5

@
®
@
@
@
®
@

& |
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Organisational Structure

5

Manufacturing

Training &
Technology

Production

Maintenance

Markeating

Resin Sales

Business
Development

Supply Chain

Engineering & Raw
Material
Procurement

Sourcing &
Contracts

Material
Warehouse

Logistics & Field
Warehousing

Human Resource

Compensation
Benefit, Training
and Rewards

Public Affairs &
Admin

HR Services &
Recruitment

Corporate
Communications
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Engro Corporation — Conglomerate
Organogram

Engro

Corporation

Elengy
Engro Vopak Terminal
Pakistan

Engro Engro
Fertilizers Foods

Engro
Powergen

Engro Polymer
& Chemicals

Engro
Powergen
Qadirpur

Engro
Powergen
Thar

Sindh Engro
Goal Mining

Engro Elengy
Terminal
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Awards, Achievements
& Accreditations

Certifications:

DuPont Certification

DuPont PSM / PSRM system covers the Personnel as well as Process Safety & Risk Management aspects. It
encompasses every safety system and procedure including, but not limited to, Safe Work Procedures, Management of
Change, Quality Assurance, Hazard Analysis, Risk Management and Driving Safety of Highly Hazardous Chemicals in
a way that is in accordance with Occupational Safety & Health Administration (OSHA) standards.

DuPont assesses various safety system of an omganisation on a scale of 01 (basic systems in place) to 05 (sustained
word class performance). In 2013, the Company took a major step with the implementation of the Occupational
Health & Industrial Hygiene program.

In January 2015, an external audit was conducted by DuPont, and EPCL achieved a PSRM (Process Safety Risk
Management) rating of 4.0 and PSM (Personnel Safety Management) rating of 4.2. The DuPont Operation Excellence
Program was also initiated at the Plant site and in this regard Audit of the Company was done in April, 2015. In the
year 2016, the Company achieved an OHIH external audit rating of 3.7.

Integrated Management Systems
Engro Polymer is an Integrated Management System, 1SO-14001, 150-9001 & OHSAS-18001 cerlified by SGS, an
extemal auditor. In 2016, recertification of IMS was achieved.

EMS - 1SO 14001 Certification

The Company is 1S0O-14001 (Environment Management System) certified by a credible third party (SGS). Accordingly,
the organisation has amplified its focus on Health, Safety and Environmental Policies. In 2013, the British Safety
Council 5 Star Audit Program for environment management system was implemented and a second party audit rating
of 3 Star (83%) was achieved. In 2013, initiative on Green Office Certification by WWF was taken. Since then, 10
buildings have been WWF Green office certified by 2016.

QMS - ISO 9001 Certification

The Company has been 150-9001 (Quality Management System) certified since 1999, which meant increased
customer satisfaction via documented systems and procedures. In 2016, the Company was able to get
150-9001-2008 re-certification on revised standards for PVC Manufacturing and Marketing by SGS. During the
surveillance audits, no major non-conformity was reported.

OHSAS - ISO 18001 Certification

The Company has implemented OHSAS 150-18001 (Occupational Health & Safety Administrative Series) and was
cerlified by SGS in 2013. During the surveillance audits, no major non-conformity was reported. In order to receive
updates on the latest developments in HSE and for networking purposes, EPCL has obtained memberships of the
following world renowned organisations as well:

* Center of Chemical Process Safety (CCPS)
¢ DuPont

* National Safety Council (NSC)

¢ British Safety Council (BSC)

Annual Report | 2016 | |
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Green Office Certification:

The Administration Building at the Plant has been certified by WWF as a Green Office. The audit was carried out in
December 2013 and 3 indicators were audited: Paper Reduction, Energy Conservation and Waste Reduction, which
were all found to be satisfactory by WWF. The Head Office has been WWF Green Office certified since 2012. In 2016,
WWF Green Office Programme awarded Certification of 2 new buildings at the plant site and re - certification of &
buildings.

Credibility:

PACRA Rating

In 2016, Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) awarded EPCL with longterm and short-term entity ratings of
“"A-"(Single A minus) and “A2” (A Two) respectively. The ratings reflect low expectation of credit risk based on strong
capacity of the Company to meet its financial commitments timely. These ratings will enable the Company to explore
new avenues to raise capital, optimise capital structure and weighted average cost of capital.

Best Corporate Report Awards

For three consecutive years from 2009 to 2011, EPCL was nominated for the ‘Best Corporate Report’ award. The
Company secured second position for its 2009 and 2010 reports and was awarded the first prize for the ‘Best
Corporate Report’ in the Chemical Sector for its Annual Report 2013 by the Joint Evaluation Commitiee of
ICAP-ICMAP. Similarly, Annual Report was awarded 1st and 2nd prize at ICAP / ICMAP Award Ceremony for the year
2013 and 2015, respectively.

Annual Report | 2016
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Governance Framework

Our Govemance Framework is designed to ensure that the Company embodies its Core Values and Principles,
institutionalising excellence in everything that we do. Driven by the highest standards of integrity, transparency and
zeal to protect stakeholders' value, EPCL has ordinated its Govemance Framework on the industry's best practices.
The Board of Directors and Senior Management place a significant emphasis on intemal controls, which trickles down
to each and every employee in the Company.

Our Corporate Governance is grounded on the basis of proper Management policies and the Organisation conforms to
accepted guidelines of all the stock exchanges of Pakistan as well as the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP). The Board of Directors is committed to honest, ethical, knowledgeable and comprehensive
management and to implement good Corporate Governance as a means of accomplishing maximum success and
effectiveness. For the Company, Comporate Governance is a tool for enhancing and reinforcing our values and
sustainable growth. Developing good Corporate Govemance is an iterative process and aims to incorporate standards
that are universally practiced and appreciated.

The Organisation is structured in a way that corresponds well to its business plan and responsibilities are clearly
assigned to each department. High quality personnel are hired and given continuous opportunities to develop
knowledge and competencies, and represent the Company's commitment to ethical, professional business standards.
The Organisation also encourages employees to participate as well as understand their work, while instilling in them
the responsibility of reducing risk. Work is consistently being upgraded, improved and fashioned in such a way that
intemal controls form an integral part of operations. Various operating manuals have been produced to ensure
efficiency of operations and avoid the duplication of effort.

Responsibility

The Board is ultimately responsible for EPCL's system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a
system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in achieving Business Objectives and provides
reasonable assurance against material misstatements or losses that the Company could possibly face.

The Board, whilst maintaining its overall responsibility for managing risk within the Company, has delegated the
detailed design and operation of the system of internal controls to the Chief Executive Officer.

An established control framework is maintained by the Organisation, constituting clear structures, authority limits and
accountabilities. All Policies and Standard Operating Procedures are properly documented in operating manuals. Both
Comporate Strategy and the Company's Business Objectives are established by the Board, after which they are
integrated by Divisional Management into business strategies with supporting Financial Objectives.

EPCL conducts its operations with a constant view of the risks involved and has instituted measures to control risk
and ensure that it remains manageable. In this way, damage due to risk is minimised and stability is ensured.
Long-term and annual plans are designed ensuring that concrete measures of success can be obtained. Auditing
operations and insurance measures are also continuously improved with the help of various tools in the effort to
reduce risk.

The Company has determined a number of control activities that are in accordance with the nature of business
operations and has assigned responsibilities in such a way that mutual supervision is in effect.
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Technology supports all business processes performed across the Organisation and is fundamental to Engro Comp
Limited’s continued growth and success. Technology is, therefore, considered a principal risk, requiring an appropriate
level of control across the Company to ensure that it is effectively managed. The Information Systems, Governance
Framework sets minimum control requirements for Information Systems that must be met by all businesses across
EPCL. It also lays down the various policies related to the Management, usage and protection of EPCL's Information
Systems provisions. The framework is aligned to the indusiry's standard Control Objectives for Information and
Related Technology (COBIT) ISO 27001 and ITIL ¥3.

EPCL maintains a robust system for the maintenance of its books of accounts, including detailed contingency plans
for their safekeeping and recovery in the event of a disaster. The Gompany fully complies with the regulatory
requirements envisaged in the Companies Ordinance 1984, the listing regulations and the relevant pronouncements
thereunder.

At Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited, every employee, director and executive has a duty to avoid direct or indirect
interests, which might conflict with the interests of the Company especially when dealing with customers, suppliers,
contractors, competitors or any person or organisation doing or seeking to do business with the Company.

Additionally, in the event of such conflicts arising in the conduct of employees', executives' or directors' personal
affairs, including transactions in securities of the Company, of any affiliate, or of any unaffiliated company having a
business relationship with Company interests, full compliance to the restrictions and set of disclosures requirements
laid down by the Management should be ensured. Moreover, to warrant that Company resources are utilised in the
shareholders’ best interest, a robust mechanism to report exceptions, if any, has been established within the
Company.

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited strives to develop and maintain trustworthy relations with its stakeholders,
including shareholders and investors. It recognises the importance of timely and fair disclosure of all material
information to them, without advantage to any particular investor, group or investment advisor / analyst, in order to
enable them to make informed decisions about investing in the Company’s equity and other debt instruments.

+ The Company will ensure that a Shares Registry or Customer Call Centre exists to handle shareholders / other
investors' complaints and tackle any problems that they may be facing with regard to their investments or
access to relevant Corporate Communications.

¢ The Company will disclose all material information in a fair and transparent manner in compliance with legal
requirements and listing regulations of the stock exchanges where it is listed.

+ [t may also disclose, through designated spokespersons, other financial or non-financial information that it
considers useful for enhancing stakeholders understanding. This may be done through analyst briefings, press
releases, television programs or postings on the Company's website.

* Where it makes any forward-looking statements / projections based upon information available at the time of
disclosure or assumptions of future events. It will qualify such statements by disclosing the factors that could
cause actual results to materially differ from those being implied in such statements.

+ To prevent information leaks and maintain faimess in disclosure the Company will observe a "quiet period" prior
to the announcement of quartedy / annual results, during which it will decline to respond to inquiries about its
business performance and related matters.
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“To be recognised as a world class performer in the field of Health, Safety & Environmental Management”

Engro Polymer will:

e Conduct its business in a manner that protects the health and safety of employees, contractors, others involved in
our operations and the community in which we operate.

e Continuously improve environmental performance to achieve sustainable development.

e Strengthen its business by making Health, Safety & Environment (HSE) considerations an integral part of all
business activities.

e Comply with all laws and regulations.
e Practice transparent public reporting of the HSE performance.

e Ensure that HSE is a major responsibility of appropriately Trained, Empowered and Accountable Employees &
Management.

* Promote a culture of learning & practicing HSE Management among employees and contractors.

e Encourage off the Job HSE awareness among employees and families.

Imran Anwer
President and CEO
Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited

To achieve these objectives, Engro Polymer shall:

Health

e |dentify and evaluate health risks related to its operations that potentially affect its employees, contractors or the
public.

e Implement programs and appropriate protective measures to control such risks, including appropriate monitoring
of its potentially affected employees. Carry out pre-employment and periodic medical check-up of its employees.

e Provide or arrange for medical services necessary for the treatment of employee occupational illness or injuries
and for handling medical emergencies.

Safety
e Implement a rigorous system of Process Safety Risk Management.

e |[nstitutionalise behavioural safety practices using the Personnel Safety Management System.
e Keep abreast of the latest international codes, standards and practices and adopting the same where applicable.

Environment

e Comply with all applicable environmental laws, regulations and apply responsible standards where laws and
regulations do not exist.
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e Conserve natural resources & energy by continucusly improving our processes and measuring performance.

e Continuously improve our processes to minimise pollution and waste.

¢ Mandatory to report all “On the job" unsafe act / condition, near miss and incident.
¢ Mandatory to follow Company Policies, Safety Rules and Laws.

¢ Work with a valid work permit.

¢ Wear mandatory PPEs in designated areas.

¢ Bypassing Safety Critical device without authorisation is prohibited.

¢ |ighting a flame without autherisation is prohibited.

¢ Walking under a suspended load is prohibited.

¢ Engaging in or provoking horseplay or fighting within Company premises is prohibited.
¢ Damaging Company property intentionally is prohibited.

¢ Sleeping & carrying mobile phones in Plant operating areas is prohibited.

¢ Bringing weapon or intoxicant on site is prohibited.

Not following the above rules will be treated as Misconduct.

Jahangir Waheed
Vice President Manufacturing
Engro Polymer and Chemical Limited

The safety and wellbeing of our employees & contractors is of foremost importance to the Crganisation. We, therefore,
have a responsibility of not only safeguarding ourselves when on the road, but also to play our part to protect those
around us.

It is incumbent on all company employees, whether permanent or on contract, when driving or being driven, on
company business, to consistently apply & follow driving safety rules as below:

¢ Be in possession of valid driving license while driving.
¢ Wear seat belts on front seats in cars and on designated seats in other vehicles being used for company business.

e Wearing of crash helmets for both motor cycle drivers and pillion riders. Texting or using cell phone while driving is
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illegal in Pakistan. In case of dire need, stop the vehicle in a safe area to text or use the cell phone, or have a
passenger operate it.

e Use of alcohol and drugs is prohibited. Use of other substances, including certain cold or allergy medications
which may cause drowsiness and impair driving ability, should be used with caution.

e Follow driving laws and regulations for road safety such as adherence to posted speed limits, directional signs,
use of turn of signals and adopt defensive driving techniques.

e  Promptly report any road accident to his / her supervisor in accordance with established procedures of incident
reporting.

Imran Anwer
President and CEO
Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited

The Board meets at least once every quarter to consider the Organisation's financial performance, financial and
operating budgets and forecasts, business growth and development plans, investment plans and other Key
Performance Indicators. Post completion reviews are performed on all material investment expenditures.

At EPCL, as per Code of Corporate Governance, Chairman along with other Board members play a major role in
ensuring that the statutory and fiduciary duties of Directors are properly carried out and the Board, as a whole,
functions effectively in deciding the Corporate Policy, while CEO and his Senior Executives devise the long-term and
short-term operational plans for the Company.

The Human Resource department chalks out a formal corientation plan, which is followed at the induction of a new
Board member. The orientation plan is devised to familiarise the new member with the business. Each Divisional Head
of the Company takes them through a presentation pertaining to their own divisions and macro-level policies are
discussed. Plant site and Head office visits are a part of this orientation plan.

The Directors Training program has been completed by Ghias Khan, Imran Anwer, Asad Said Jafar, Shahzada Dawood,
Kimihide Ando and Feroz Rizvi during the preceding years, from recognised institutions of Pakistan, approved by the
SECP.

e Has clarity on Company Beliefs, Values and Strategic / Business plans

e Board meetings are conducted in a manner that ensures open communication, meaningful participation and
timely resolution of issues

e Quality material is received by Directors, for Board meetings
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¢+ Board members receive timely meeting notices along with advance written agendas

¢ Clear and concise background material for the meetings is provided

+ Minutes of the meeting are accurately documented

+ Board receives timely reports on finances / budgets / compensation and other important matters

+ Board members respect the difference between the Board's policy making role and CEO's management role
¢ Board goals, expectations, and concerns are communicated to the CEO

¢  Overall rating for the performance of the Board

Every year at Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited "Talent Review Sessions' are conducted. Main objective of talent
review process is to map the succession plan of a department with the capacity, potential and career development
needs of employees in order to develop a comprehensive Talent Management Plan. Talent review process is a series of
structured, facilitated process where employees (direct reports) are reviewed in terms of their key strengths, career
goals, stage of readiness, areas for development and development actions plans. Outcome of these sessions has
helped the Company in increasing the rate of intemal moves / replacements. We currently have four distinct training
programs to cater different needs of the Organisation.

Speak out - the Whistleblowing policy is an integral part of govemance at EPCL as it acts as an additional measure to
promote and strengthen high standards of govemance and business conduct; supported and sponsored by the CEO
and the Board. EPCL expects all stakeholders to abide by the Company’s Code of Business Conduct and encourages
all to speak out any concems they have regarding malpractice & wrongdoings, business ethics including corruption,
financial mismanagement, health & safety, environmental performance, harassment, employment related matters or
other possible breaches of compliance. The complaints and concerns can be reported directly or via divisional and
department heads to the Corporate Audit Department and Chairman Audit Committee. EPCL provides opportunity for
open and candid communication. In 2016, eight incidents were reported and dealt under the policy.

At EPCL, Internal Audit is an independent department functionally reporting to the Board Audit Committee and
administratively to the CEO.

The Intemal Audit department is responsible for impartially assessing the key risks of the Organisation appraising and
reporting on the adequacy and effectiveness of EPCL's Risk Management and Internal Controls in financial,
information systems and other business and operational areas to develop and improve the effectiveness of the
Company's Risk Management Control and Govemance Processes and Strategies. The role of Internal Audit Function
continues to change in reaction to events, risk & regulation affecting the Company.

Internal Audit is also responsible for monitoring and reporting ethical issues and updates the Audit Committee on any
significant allegations in relation to breach of the Company’'s Code of Business Conduct, bribery, fraud and
Whistleblowing policies. These incidents and issues are thoroughly investigated by Internal Audit in cooperation with
management and where required, subsequently reported to the Audit Committee.

It works in collaboration with the Business by taking up coaching responsibilities, driving performance improvement
initiatives and closing internal control gaps. Intemal Audit at EPCL provides recommendations which are taken up by
Management to remediate control lapses. The observations are shared on a quarterly basis with Board Audit
Committee, Chief Executive Officer and the concemed Divisional Management.

Being integrated with the business — while maintaining strict independence - is very important at EPCL.

Internal Audit provides independent, objective assurance and advisory services to evaluate and improve the

Annual Report | 2016
36



V-

engropclymer & chemicals

effectiveness of the control environment, risk management and compliance processes and assesses whether these
are adequate and functioning appropriately as intended to ensure:

+ Significant financial, managerial, and operating information is accurate, reliable, and timely;

+ Significant statutory or regulatory issues impacting the Company are recognised and addressed
appropriately;

* Resources are acquired economically, used efficiently, and protected adequately;
e Quality and continuous improvement are fostered in the Company’s control process;
+ Risks are appropriately identified and managed; and

* Employees’ actions are in compliance with policies, standards, procedures, and applicable laws and regulations.

During the year EPCL had 26% (compared to 8% in 2015) of its Intemal Audit Reports rated as Management Attention
Required (MARs) against a restrictive threshold of 10% set for all Engro Group Companies. There were no
‘unsatisfactory' rated reports in 2016.

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Audit Committee Report for the financial year ended 31st
December, 2016. Our key focus was to assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling their govemance and stewardship
responsibilities ensuring integrity of financial reporting and robustness of intemal controls and risk management
process at Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited.

Audit Committee meetings take place ahead of Board meetings and the Audit Committee Chaimman provides an
update of the key issues discussed to the Board at each meeting. Minutes of Audit Committee meetings are provided
to the Board and the External Auditor.

The terms of the Audit Committee's mandate are govemed by the Board of Directors and the Code of Corporate
Governance and the Head of Intemal Audit acts as the Secretary of the committee. The Audit Committee met five
times during the year 2016. The CFO and other departmental Heads were invited on a need basis for matters
pertaining to their areas. As required by the Code, the Commitiee also independently met external and intemal
auditors during the year.

The Intemal Audit plan was continually evaluated by the Committee which ensured that all major critical areas were
covered by the plan.

The relationship with the External Auditor worked well and the Audit Committee remained satisfied with its
independence and effectiveness. The Audit Committee monitored the rotation of the lead Audit Partner, who rotates
every five years in accordance with best practice standards. The cumrent lead Audit Pariner completed his five-year
term.

During 2016, the following key responsibilities were satisfactorily camied out by the Audit Committee:

+ Ensuring compliance with the Code of Corporate Govemance 2012 and applicable statutory regulations;

¢ Review of quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements of the Company prior to their approval by the
Board of Directors, focusing on major judgmental areas, financial estimates, going concern assumption,

compliance of accounting standards, local regulations and other statutory / regulatory requirements;

¢« Review of Related Party Transactions, ensuring that the pricing methods used were on terms equivalent to
those that prevail on anm's length basis;
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+ Ensuring that proper, accurate and adequate accounting records have been maintained by the Company;

+ Recommend on the appointment of the external auditors to the Board to be confirmed by the Company
shareholders in the Annual General Meeting; and

+ Review of Management Letter issued by external auditors and Management’s response / actions plans.
Over and above its core responsibilities, the Committee performed the following activities during 2016:

¢ Review of the rebranded iregularities process, now known as “Learn Share Improve (LSI)” under the Control
Group Forum umbrella. This process aims at enhancing the culture of self-reporting of policy / procedure /
control lapses and sharing leamings;

+ Review of new policies / modifications to existing policies and Management's compliance with all Company's
policies, procedures and guidelines;

¢ Review of the Enterprise Risk Management (ERM), register to ascertain that business risks are well identified
and adequate action plans for mitigating risks are developed and implemented; and

+ Review the Learn Share Improve (LSl) Reports {previously irregularities) and Whistleblower complaints lodged
during the year.

The Committee members possess extensive experience of Finance, Accounting, Engineering and Manufacturing
industries and | am grateful for their contribution throughout the year. The Committee also appreciated the enthusiastic
support of Management. The Committee will continue over the coming year to support and work with the Board to
identify, monitor and mitigate potential risks through robust and appropriate control procedures and good standards of
Governance.

The Committee assessed the 2016 Annual Report and Financial Statements as fair balanced and understandable and
that it provided sufficient information to enable the shareholders to assess the performance.

Chaimrman of the Audit Committee
Mr. Feroz Rizvi

As at December 31, 2016 the Board comprises of one Executive Director, three independent Directors, four
Non-Executive Directors, one of whom is an Executive Director in another Engro Group company, who have the
collective responsibility for ensuring that the affairs of Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited are managed
competently and with integrity.

A Non-Executive Director, Mr. Ghias Khan, chairs the Board and the Chief Executive Officer is Mr. Imran Anwer.
Biographical details of the Directors are given later in this section.

A Board of Directors’ meeting calendar is issued annually that schedules the matters reserved for discussion and
approval. The full Board met 6 times this year and discussed matters relating to inter alia, long-term planning, giving
consideration both to the opportunities and risks of future strategy.

All Board members are given appropriate documentation in advance of each Board meeting. This normally includes a
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detailed analysis on businesses and full papers on matters where the Board will be required to make a decision or give
its approval.

Code of Comporate Govemance 2012, mandatorily requires evaluation of the Board of Directors as a whole, its
Committees and the contribution of each Director to the strategic direction and steerage of the Company. In this
regard, a comprehensive range of self-evaluation surveys were conducted in EPCL with respect to the performance of
its Board of Directors and Principal Board Committees. Purposive feedback from all Board members was solicited on
areas of strategic clarity & beliefs, direction of business plan and functional adequacy of its role. Equally emphasised,
the individual contribution of each Director was assessed and evaluated during the year by both Chaimman of the
Board and CEOs of the respective companies - highlighting significant areas of development for them.

+ Has clarity on Company beliefs, values and strategic / business plans

¢ Board meetings are conducted in a manner that ensures open communication, meaningful participation and timely
resolution of issues

e Quality material is received by Directors, for Board meetings

+ Board Members receive timely meeting notices along with advance written agendas

¢ Clear and concise background material for the meetings is provided

+ Minutes of the Meeting are accurately documented

¢ Board receives timely reports on finances / budgets / compensation and other important matters

+ Board Members respect the difference between the Board's policy making role and CEO's management role
¢ Board goals, expectations, and concerns are communicated to the CEO

+  Overall rating for the performance of the Board

In 2016, the Board of Directors held 6 meetings to cover its complete cycle of activities. The attendance record of the
Directors is as follows:

Director's Name Meetings Attended
Mr. Imran Anwer

Mr. Kimihide Ando

Mr. Shahzada Dawood
Mr. Zafar Hadi

Mr. Asad Said Jafar

Mr. Shoichi Ogiwara

Mr. Feroz Rizvi

*Mr. Omar Yaqoob Sheikh
*Ms. Naz Khan

**Mr. Khalid S. Subhani
M. Ghias Khan

FETAN & G o YT & I =S o B o B & 7

*Mr. Omar Yaqoob Sheikh resigned October 08, 2016
“Ms Naz Khan resigned November 07, 2016

“**Mr. Khalid Siraj Subhani resigned November 30, 2016
“**Mr. Ghias Khan appointed December 09, 2016
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Governance Performance

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited launched the Lean Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) in 2011. It is the policy of
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited to view Risk Management as integral to the creation, protection and enhancement
of shareholder value by managing the uncertainties and risks that could possibly influence the achievement of our
Corporate Goals and Objectives. Operating in a highly dynamic environment mandates assessment of the
Organisation's strategy and quantum of risk that the entity is willing to accept by adequately assigning responsibilities
throughout the Organisation. It is a continuous cycle led by the Chief Risk Officer (CRO), endorsed by the Board of
Directors and Management, with the objective of proactively managing risks across the Company over the years.

= Impact
~“Reduction - ~ EPCL is the sole manufacturer of PVC in Pakistan with annual production capacity
"~ in domestic - of 178 kilo tons. Considering that Pakistan has the lowest Per Capita consumption
demand of- - of PVC in the world, there exists op portunity for market to develop. The reduction
- PYC and -~ T in demand of these products is governed by many intemational factors such as the

commodity market fluctuation, general economic sentiment. Reduction in demand
will cause a dent to the financial position of the Company.

_ Caustic

Strategy

PVC: Debottlenecking measures have a stream of analysis as a base to support
PVC demand persistence in Pakistan. Moreover, EPCL believes in partnering with
its customers for improving the existing product and also developing innovative
products for the landscape. The implementation of such strategy will stimulate
demand for PVC and help the Company increase domestic share.

Caustic: Continual focus on customer satisfaction by leveraging dedicated and
superior supply chain system, quality assurance, timeliness. The Company will
focus on developing strong customer relations to address and identify potential
opportunities. EPCL entered the caustic soda industry in 2009 and penetrated the
market in a short span of time. Through its strategy the company holds leadership
position in South along decent foothold in mid country and Northern region.

Risk - 2 et

Supply The Company has an integrated Chlor - Alkali facility and is primarily dependent on
shortfall ethylene for uninterrupted plant operations. The plant operations are contingent on
hindering ethylene and thereby the supply of PVC to the local customer as well.

availability of Strategy

CIRRARNSEY Ethylene: The Company has not only entered into contracts with its principal suppli-

material er but has also developed strong relations with other traders. EPCL is continuously
on the watch out for potentially expanding, and diversifying its supplier base for
ensuring smooth procurement. The Company also identifies different regions with
product availability.

Annual Report | 2016

EJ



engro polymer & chemicals

Risk—3 -
—Further

Impact
Gas is essential for plant operations and changes in gas prices are directly linked to

increa_se in profitability of the Company.
--gas prices

Strategy

Gas: EPCL is implementing energy efficiency projects to minimise the impact of
increase in gas prices. Further the Company has also initiated study on alternative fuel
options to contain its cost of production in the event of hefty increase in gas price.

Impact

Plant operations are imperative for EPCL to maintain its position as key supplier to
domestic market. Disruptions in plant operations compromise the current position
of EPCL.

Strategy

Plant Operations: Ensure sustainable operations via continuously monitoring plant
operations. Identifying potential impediments in plant operations and terminate at
budding stage. The Company has ensured sustainable operations at VCM & PVC and
achieved highest production it is now looking ahead to its debottlenecking activities to
fortify plant stability. Maintenance activities for the plant are carried throughout the year
to augment plant reliability.

During the year, the Board has approved a Financial Risk Management policy for the Company following guidelines
issued across all Engro Group companies. The objective of this document is to enforce a harmonised systematic basis
for identifying, prioritising, measuring, managing and reporting risks emanating from routine business operations.

Liquidity Risk Management:

Liquidity Management is a crucial aspect of our business owing to a combination of various external factors including
volatility in international commodity prices, currency exchange rates and gas prices. The Company diligently monitors
current and future cash position of the Company. Frequent cash forecasting enables the Company to determine
capital requirements, with a clear distinction between short-term and long-term funding. Long-term cash requirements
are measured in our Corporate Planning Cycle over a 5 year hotizon. Peak cash cycles are mitigated using approved
lines of credit. Excess cash is placed in instrument to earn the best possible returns which include government
securities and mutual funds units. Overall working capital cycle in days of the Company, remains positive as our sales
are mostly based on cash while we enjoy credit from our raw material suppliers.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management:

EPCL'’s revenues, import liabilities and foreign currency borrowings are subject to risk of foreign exchange volatility.
PVC revenue is determined in US Dollars with reference to international PVC pricing. The effect of USD / PKR
fluctuation on the Company’s US Dollar denominated liabilities provides a partial natural hedge against the effect of
USD / PKR volatility on the Company’s revenues. Furthermore, the Company frequently monitors its Net Foreign
Currency liabilities exposure and accordingly takes decisions to restrict the downside from currency devaluation by
booking forward contracts on usance import LCs.

Interest Rate Risk Management:

The Company's capital structure involves sizeable leverage exposing EPCL to Interest Rate Risk. As of December 31,
2016, outstanding KIBOR based borrowings stood at Rs. 9,164 Million. Further, Rs. 417 Million (USD 4 Million) is
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related to LIBOR based foreign currency loan. The Company has hedged a portion of its Interest Rate Risk by entering
into floating-to-fixed interest rate swaps on its foreign currency borrowings. The Company tends to evaluate various
derivatives from time to time to hedge against interest rate risk.

Credit Risk Management:

The Company diligently monitors and manages the credit quality of its financial assets. Exposure to credit risk is
minimal as unsecured receivables from customers and advances to vendors are restricted. The majority of trade debt
is secured by bank guarantees and letters of credit, accepted only through financial institutions with credit ratings as
approved by the Board. Credit risk with regard to investments is limited, as the Company places its idle funds with
institution approved by the Board or with institutions possessing minimum credit ratings as approved by the Board.
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Profile of Directors

Chairman — Non-Executive Director

Ghias Khan is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Engro
Comporation Limited. Before being appointed President and CEO on
December 1, 2016 he had held several executive and board roles
across Dawood Hercules Group companies. Joining Dawood group
via acquisition in 2005, Ghias was the CEO of Inbox Business
Technologies, one of Pakistan’s largest technology companies.
During his 15 years at Inbox, Ghias, grew the number of employees
to over 1900, and pivoted the company from a computer
manufacturer to a systems integrator, and then again to a technology
enabled digital services company. Most recently Ghias was the
Executive Director & Head of the Chairman’s Corporate Office at
Dawood Hercules. He was the principal aide of the Chairman of the
Group on a range of matters of institutional importance including but
not limited to board governance, communications, external
relationships and special projects. Ghias also served as Chaimrman of
Elixir Securities from 2011-2014.

Ghias is a strong believer in the social enterprise and the
responsibility of businesses to environmental and human wellbeing.

Ghias holds an MBA from the Institute of Business Administration in
Karachi.

President & Chief Executive

Imran is a Chartered Accountant with over 21 years of experience.
Before becoming the CEO of Engro Polymers in 2015, he was VP
Business Development and Finance at Engro Foods since 2005,
prior to which he worked for PwC Karachi and Deloitte Jeddah.
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Zafar Hadi is a graduate in engineering from NED Karachi with more
than 38 vears of experience in process and fertiliser industry. His
wide ranging experience includes project planning and management,
managing FFC fertilizer plants and their debottlenecking. He was the
group leader of FFC for takeover of the NFC PakSaudi plant at
Mirpur Mathelo after privatisation. As Project Director of the joint
venture between Fauji group and OCP Morocco, he was leader of
the team to set up a phosphoric acid plant in Morocco. Prior to his
retirement he was heading the business development group of Fauiji
Fertilizer Company.

Asad was named the Chaimman and CEO of Philips Pakistan
Limited in January 2009. His professional joumey with Philips
spans over seventeen years and he has held various senior
positions in Pakistan, Indonesia, Thailand and Singapore during this
period. Besides managing his responsibilities in his current role at
Philips Pakistan, Asad is also involved in various other initiatives.
He was the President of Overseas Investors Chamber of Commerce
and Industry (OICCI) for the year 2014. He presently serves on the
Board of Directors of Pakistan Institute of Gorporate Governance
(PICG). He is a member of the Institute of Business Administration
(IBA) Corporate Leaders Advisory Board (ICLAB) and also mentors
MBA students as part of the Karachi School of Business &
Leadership (KSBL) CEO Mentorship program. He holds a
Bachelor's degree in Electrical Engineering from NED University,
Karachi and an MBA degree from the Imperial College Business
School, London, UK where he studied as a Britannia Chevening
scholar.
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Independent Director

Mr. Rizvi qualified as a Chartered Accountant from England and
Wales. On return to Pakistan, he joined ICI Pakistan Limited and
moved through various business on function including a period of
secondment to ICl Head Office in London, retired from the company
as Finance Director. Mr. Rizvi has vast experience in the field of
Corporate Finance, Strategy Corporate Restructuring merge and
acquisition. He has worked in Pakistan, UK and Saudi Arabia.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Shoichi Ogiwara has joined Mitsubishi Gorporation in 1988 and
has held several positions during this time. He is cumently the
General Manager of Mitsubishi Corporation's Chlor-Alkali
Department and has a degree in Law from Tokyo University in
Japan. He joined the EPCL Board in 2015.
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Kimihide Ando was posted as General Manager for Pakistan,
Mitsubishi Corporation in April 2010. This is his second assignment
to Pakistan, the first of which was during 1998 - 2003. He has a
Bachelor of Liberal Arts degree from the International Christian
University, Tokyo and joined Mitsubishi Corporation, Japan in 1982.
He has spent most of his career in the Chemical Group. During his
tenure, other than Pakistan he was assigned to Egypt, Iraq, Saudi
Arabia, Malaysia and Indonesia, and has diverse experience in
Marketing, Chemicals, HRD and Manufacturing. He is also Director
of Tri-Pack Films Limited. Moreover, he is Vice Chairman of PJBF
{Pakistan Japan Business Forum) and is also a President of OICCI
{Overseas Investors Chamber of Commerce and Industry) and
Trustee of FDSK i{the Foundation for Diffusion of Scientific
Knowledge). He joined the Board in 2010.

Shahzada Dawood serves as a Director on the Boards of Dawood
Hercules Corporation Limited, Engro Corporation Limited, DH
Fertilizers Limited, Dawood Corporation (Pvt) Limited, Engro Foods
Limited, Engro Powergen Limited, Engro Powergen Qadirpur
Limited, Engro Vopak Terminal Limited, Pebbles (Pvl) Limited, Patek
(Pvt) Limited, Sirius (Pvt) Limited and Tenaga Generasi Limited He
also serves as a Director of Dawood Lawrencepur Limited and
Engro Fertilizers Limited. He is a Trustee of The Dawood
Foundation, which is one of the largest public charitable trusts in
Pakistan, supporting education and health initiatives. He serves as
a Member of the Board of Governors of the National Management
Foundation, the sponsoring body of Lahore University of
Management Sciences (LUMS). Mr. Dawood is an M.Sc. in Global
Textile Marketing from Philadelphia University, USA, an LLB from
Buckingham University, UK and a Certified Director of Corporate
Govemance from the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Govemance.
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Principal Board
Committees

The Board has established two committees to oversee essential aspects of the organisation

T B a -7 o R

The Board Audit Committee meets at minimum once every quarter and assists the Board in fulfiling its oversight
responsibilities, primarily in reviewing and reporting financial and non-financial information to shareholders, systems of
Internal Control, Risk Management and the Audit Processes. The BAC has the power to call for information from the
Management and to consult directly with extemal auditors or their advisors as considered approprate.

The Chief Financial Officer and the Head of Internal Audit regulady attend BAC meetings by invitation to discuss
matters relating to financial statements and audits. The Committee also frequently meets with external auditors
independently. The Gommittee met 5 times during 2016.

Feroz Rizvi (Chairman)
Kimihide Ando (Director)
Naz Khan* (Director)
Zafar Hadi (Director)

Secretary
Muneeza Kassim

The Board Compensation Committee meets with the aim of reviewing and recommending all elements of the
compensation system, as well as the Organisation and employee development policies relating to Senior Executives
including Members of the Management Committee. It reviews the key human resource initiatives and the
ormganisational structure of the Company.

The President attends BCC meetings by invitation, and the CGommittee met twice during 2016. The Members of the
Committee are as follows:

Khalid Subhani {Chairman)**
Kimihide Ando (Director)
Shahzada Dawood (Director)
Asad Said Jafar (Director)

Secretary
Shmaz Mir

*Naz Khan rasigned from tha EPCL Board on 7th Novem ber, 2018
*Khalid Subhani resiged from the EFCL Board on 30th November, 2016
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Functional Committees

HSE Committee
Meeting Frequency - Monthly

Chairman Mr. Syed Ali Akbar

Secretary Mr. Muhammad Hassan Azwar
Member Mr. Farrukh Igbal Qureshi
Member Mr. Abdul Qayoom Shaikh
Member Mr. Muhammad Imran Khalil
Member Mrs. Muneeza Kassim
Member Mr. Shmaz Mir

Compensation Organisation & Employee Development (COED)

Mr. Imran Anwer Chairman

Mr. Jahangir Waheed Member

Mr. Abdul Qayoom Sheikh Member

Mr. M. Imran Khalil Member

Mr. Syed Ali Akbar Member

Mr. Shmaz Mir Member / Secretary

Salary & Compensation Committee (SCC)

Mr. Jahangir Waheed Chairman
Mr. M. Imran Khalil Member
Mr. Aneeq Ahmed Member
Mr. Rizwan Ahmed Tagqi Member
Mr. Shmaz Mir Member
Mr. Imran Baloch Member
Ms. Fatima Zehra Secretary

Lean Six Sigma Executive Council

Mr. Imran Anwer Chairman
Mr. Jahangir Waheed Member
Mr. M Imran Khalil Member
Mr. Syed Ali Akbar Member
Mr. Shmaz Mir Member
Mr. Tauseef Al Secretary

Inquiry Committee
(Harassment of Women at the Workplace Act 2010)

Mr. Jahangir Waheed Chairman

Mr. Syed Ali Akbar Member

Mr. Abdul Qayoom Sheikh Member

Ms. Muneeza Kassim Member / Secretary

Annual Report | 2016
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Management Committee

Vice .ii’res|d'en‘t£'Manufac'tur|ng

Jahangir Waheed is Vice President Manufacturing at
Engro Polymer & Chemicals. He brings with him almost
31 years of manufacturing experience, and has held key
positions at Engro Fertilizer, Engro Powergen and
SAFCO KSA. Jahangir completed his Master’s in
Chemical Engineering with specialisation in Research in
Industrial Computerised Control from King Fahad
University KSA in 1987.

&1

Chlef ,Exélc:;u'tlvé 6fficer / Chairman of MC

Imran is a Chartered Accountant with over 21 years of
experience. Before becoming the CEO of Engro
Polymers in 2015, he was VP Business Development and
Finance at Engro Foods since 2005, prior to which he
worked for PwC Karachi and Deloitte, Jeddah.

Ehief Financial Off.iE:.er

Imran is a Chartered Accountant by profession with over
14 years of post qualification experience in finance and
audit. Prior to joining EPCL in 2015, he was associated
with Engro Foods as General Manager Internal Audit. He
has also held various other senior positions including
Chief Financial Officer at UBL Funds and KASB Funds.
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Management Committee

General Mé'ri;ag.er Supply Chain

Ali has been associated with EPCL since 1998. He has
held several positions in the Company including
Services and Training Manager, Operations Manager
and Commissioning and Startup Manager. He is
currently heading the Supply Chain department. He has
a Bachelor's degree in Chemical Engineering from
Dawood College of Engineering and Technology.

General Manager Marketing

Abdul Qayoom Sheikh started his career at Engro
Polymer and Chemicals as a graduate trainee engineer
in 2001. He has spent the last fifteen years in different
key positions at EPCL. He was previously heading the
Operations department and took over as Technical
Manager in 2015. He is currenfly heading the Marketing

division as General Manager. He has a Bachelor’s
degree in Chemical Engineering from NED University.

Annual Report | 2016

Manager Human Resource

Shmaz is working as Manager Human Resources and
Corporate Services Group since 2014. He has
diversified experience of operations management,
business consultancy, human resources, IR and
corporate communications.
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Management Committee

Manager Maintenance

Aneeq Ahmed started his career at Engro Polymer and
Chemicals and is currently heading Maintenance
Department at EPCL. He has 15+ years of professional
experience, and has held several key positions in
Maintenance and Projects. He also played a pivotal
role in the VCM plant relocation from USA. He has a
Bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Engineering from
N.E.D University and Master's degree in Business
Administration from IBA.

Annual Report | 2016 L
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President’s Review

In 2016, Engro Polymer and Chemicals paved way
through multiple challenges facing its business dynamic
and successfully achieved economic prosperity. Primary
drivers of profitability were improved Vinyl Chain
margins, PVC sales volume growth of 12% against 2015,
reassessment of economic benefit from manufacturing
facility, business efficiencies, operational optimisation
and the unwavering commitment of its people.

EPCL continued to follow stringent systems and policies
to inculcate strong consideration for Health, Safety and
Environment in its operational and nonoperational fronts.
During the year, several milestones were achieved in this
account. The Company undertook an OHIH 2nd party
audit and achieved highest ever rating of 3.7. The focus
on human safety led to 8.6 million safe man-hours
without any loss workday injury. The Company
continued its focus on the preservation of environment
and successfully attained recertification from WWF.
Furthermore, several other initiatives on preservation of
environment and operational safety took place.

On the Operational front, the Company achieved highest
ever PVC & VCM production. A maintained emphasis on
operational efficiencies resulted in smooth plant
operation. Caustic Soda production improved against
last year after repair measures successfully rehabilitated
the Chlor-Alkali unit. Furthermore, continued focus was
maintained on the Plant site during the year to ensure
sustainable and safe operations.

The domestic market for PVC exhibited a remarkable
growth of ~ 17%. The Company achieved significant
volumetric growth in PVC sales and captured 80% of
market share. The volumetric growth was mainly driven
by increased penetration and scrap import substitution.
Increase in core margins on the Vinyl Chain supported
the Company’s bottom line. PVC prices showed positive
trajectory in fourth quarter of the year, on account of
relative tightness in supply as against previous years.
Ethylene prices maintained a fairy stable trend through
the year on the back of supply rationalisation. The
Company increased its focus on diversifying supply base
for key raw material and for the first time successfully
procured Ethylene from the USA. The Company
continued to channelise efforts to further enhance PVC
demand in the country and has also begun focusing on
opportunities that are yet to enter the domestic market.
The Company will continue to focus on adding value
through the chain by maintaining focus on market
development activities and identifying spaces of
opportunity in the current landscape.

58

The Caustic Soda market remained competitive
throughout the year but EPCL maintained its leading
position in South market. The Company preserved focus
on ensuring market share and maintained 32% share.

The Company successfully attained economic prosperity
in the year 2016. The Company achieved profit after tax
of Rs. 660 Mn as compared to loss after tax of
Rs. 644 Mn in 2015. Focus on diversifying sources for
raw material procurement, streamlining plant operations,
efficient fund management system, reassessment of
plant useful life and a firmer grip on cost cutting were the
main drivers of economic profitability. Management’'s
efforts led to success in getting revision in import duty
on EDC, which reduced to 4% as compared to 6%
pre-revision.

During the year, the Gompany remained committed in
efforts to re-profile debt. The Company managed to raise
Rs. 5.75 Bn long-term debt, used to re-profile its existing
long-term and payoff short-term debt. The tenor of these
loans is generally 7 years with a grace period of 2 years
that provides the Company fiscal space to focus on its
expansion and other projects. Repayments are spread
out in a prudent manner proportionate to expected
future eamings that are expected to not exert any undue
pressures on cash flows. The new long-term debt also
carries an attractive mark-up spread of 0.8% and softer
terms of covenants.

In 2016, IT maintained focus on consolidation of SAP
System to ensure smooth operations. Various
enhancement exercises were carried out to improve the
implemented processes further.

On the front of CSR, employees showed ample
involvement in giving back to the community under
Envision - the employee volunteer program. The
volunteers from the Company camried out various
developmental activities in the surrounding communities
of Port Qasim throughout the year. Furthermore,
donation money raised internally among the employees
was used in activities that benefit schools and hospitals
in the low income communities.

On the HR front, the Company placed key focus on
increasing employee engagement and motivation level.
To achieve this target, a number of formal and informal
sessions were held by the Human Resource department
to identify opportunity areas and capitalise on them.
Human Resource efforts bore fruit, as the employee
engagement index improved by 16%, against the last
survey, to stand at a remarkable 63%.
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In pursuit of quality talent induction, the assessment tool by the name ‘Professional Learning Indicator’ is used as an
entry filter since 2013. In 2016, 59 technical Trainees were employed specifically to address long-term needs of
technical side of the organisation.

Envision volunteers from the EPCL plant organised an Iftar at Allah Bakhsh Goth, in Al Mustafa educational academy.
A carnival was held at Indus hospital to raise funds for free treatment of patients. Volunteers from Engro Polymer and
Chemicals Limited took part in organising and raising funds. Extensive work was also done for local Thalassemia
patients with HWIT in terms of awareness building and a blood donation drive.

Looking forward, the demand outlook for PVC, strong demand in the construction sector, planned investments under
infrastructure projects, spending of Public Sector Development Program (PSDP) and agreement with Chinese
govemment to establish China-Pakistan Economic Coridor (CPEC) will most likely serve as catalysts for growth.
Caustic Soda will continue to remain stable. The Management will continue to focus on safe and stable Plant
operations coupled with operational efficiencies across all aspects of business, so as to achieve the objective of
reaping optimal economic benefits. However, economic value creation of the Company remains largely linked to
uncontrollable factors such as Vinyl Chain prices, energy prices and currency volatility.

With an optimistic view on the domestic economy and a promising outlook for PVC demand, the Company will
increase plant capabilities by debottlenecking measures. Plant debottlenecking activities will be the highlight of the
year 2017, increasing production capacity to 195 Kilotons. Engro Polymer will strive to serve the domestic market by
ensuring delivering volumes and ensurng quality to create a sustainable value chain for each stakeholder. | would like
to express my gratitude to our employees, suppliers, customers, business partners and stakeholders for standing with
us during challenging and benefiting times. | look forward to our valuable business partnership in upcoming years.

Annual Report | 2016 _
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited are pleased to submit the Annual Report and audited accounts
for the year ended December 31, 2016. The period under review was marked by highest ever production, strong
volumetric growth in sales, and cost efficiency measures, while maintaining our focus on HSE measures. This
translated into an economic benefit for the Company.

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited ("EPCL” or “The Company”) is a subsidiary of Engro Corporation Limited (*ECL”
or “The Holding Company of EPCL"), which is a subsidiary of Dawood Hercules Cormporation Limited {(“DH Corp” or
“The Holding Company of ECL”). EPCL was incorporated in 1997 as a Public Limited Company under the Gompanies’
Ordinance 1984 and commenced commercial operations in 1997. Shares of the Company are listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange. The principal activity of the Company is to produce and market Chlor-Vinyl products which include Poly
Vinyl Chloride (PVC), Vinyl Chloride Monomer (VCM), Caustic Soda, Hydrochloric Acid and Sodium Hypochlorite. The
Company’s flagship brand ‘SABZ’ has become synonymous to quality PVC in the country. EPCL strongly endorses its
triple bottom line philosophy - People, Planet and Profit.

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited operates in the Chlor-Vinyl segment; its growth is influenced by the overall
macro-economic scenario of the country while profitability is determined by growth in domestic demand, international
vinyl chain prices, energy price, competition in Chlor-Alkali market, operational efficiencies, and currency fluctuations.
The Company has implemented a multi-tier strategy focusing on expansion of the domestic PVC market, enhanced
plant capacity and improved operating efficiencies but is still susceptible to volatility in intemational commodity prices,
competition in Chlor-Alkali market and energy prices.

Integrated Business Model

Production decisions based on market forecast, focus
Manufacturing on quality to ensure customer satisfaction and continual
g focus on cost efficiencies

e ; Procurement spedialists ensure to maintain inventory
Supply Chain .. balance, a critical watch out for potential savings,
and diversifying supplier base

Marketing

U!L{!!{!MMMHMM“ l\“w Strategic business partnerswho seek talent, ensure

organisation culture, employee retention and well-being

. Debt servicing, working capital management,
Finance internal and external stakeholder reporting

Value creation is at the heart of EPCL's business model for customers, suppliers, employees &

O stakeholders O
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The Company posted a profit after tax of Rs. 660 Mn translating into Eamings Per Share of Rs. 0.99 in 2016 as
compared to a loss after tax of Rs. 644 Mn and negative Earning Per Share of Rs. 0.97 in 2015. Improved PVC sale
volume, better business efficiencies, strict cost controlling measures, reassessment of plant useful life coupled with
healthier core margins on Vinyl Chain translated into positive eamings for the Company, despite compressed margins
at Caustic Soda due to competitive market dynamics.

In 2016, the Company was successful in achieving all its primary objectives. Going forward, the broad objectives of
the Company remain intact, while the Management has simultaneously devised a comprehensive strategy to sustain
economic prosperity for the Company. To summarise, the Company plans to sustain profitability regime by maintaining
focus on operational strength, increasing production capabilities via debottlenecking, cost optimisation and assigning
further emphasis on the marketing frontier. In this regard, the objectives have been set and a defailed strategy has
been crafted to achieve them. The Company will continue to keep key focus on the HSE policy and ensure all
measures uphold the objectives.

Crifical Performance
Indicators

Objectives

Performance is measured against
‘several benchmark ratings and is
also verified by external
authorities

Global outreach to
develop clean technology
knowledge base

Minimise
environmental impact

Impact
Health, Safety & Environment (HSE) is our Core Value, we take pride in our practices
and will continue to seek excellence on an organisational scale for the health and safety

of our people and community
Q )
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Objectives

Maintain optimal
production levels

Maintain raw material /
energy consumption ratio

Enhance plant reliability
and efficiency

Critical Performance
Indicators

Targets of production
and quality are set for all
products

All major ratios for raw
material consumption
and energy consumption

Critical equipment, reliatility,
efficiency, timely and routine
inspections

Impact

Manufacturing

Strategy

Monitor the production

facility closely, identify

and eliminate
bottlenecks

Ratio targets set for the
hWanagement team

Inspection cf critical
equipment is planned
periodically

Manufacturing ability is the backbone of commodity business, strong production profile
will further facilitate the Company's ability to capitalise rising price trends and ensure

product availability in the domestic market.

Objectives

Penetrate domestic
market and optimise
sales mix for Chlor-Alkali
segment

Mew application
development

Marketing

Critical Performance
Indicators

Volume growth, segment
agrowth and overall
incustry growth

Introduce new PYVC
applications and equip the
market with cost effective

and guality substitute

' Impact

Strategy

Develop indicators and
deploy resources to
identify and capture

market growth

Thorough R&D to
identify areas of
opportunity

Domestic market expansion is the key towards economic consolidation; these measures
O will enhance product offtake and optimise resource utilisation O

61
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@ Human Resource O

Objectives Critical Performance

Indicators Strategy

Impact
Human Resource is an integral part of organisational success, we engage
@ with employees to ensure a motivated workforce

Finance

Objectives Critical Performance

Indicators Sidiegy

Impact
Financial management plays a key role in rotating the wheel of business activity. We ensure smooth
O operations with continual focus on working capital requirements and actively monitor key ratios O

EPCL continues to uphold the significance placed on performance and more importantly the course utilised to
achieving objectives. The performance of the Management is assessed against specific Critical Performance
Indicators. The comprehensive objective measurement system in place acts as a benchmark for the Company’s
performance and reliably keeps the trajectory intact. Organisational results are meticulously monitored against the
Critical Performance Indicators on a weekly basis by the Management Committee. Strategies are constantly
evaluated, enhanced and cemented to work towards achieving the benchmark targets. Every quarter, the Company
conducts a companywide stewardship meeting to monitor annual objectives, analyse departmental performance and
setting the tone for the upcoming challenges.

The Company, also engages extemal bodies such as DuPont Safety Management Systems, British Safety Council,
150-14001 Environment Management System and 150-9001 Quality Management System to measure performance.

Annual Report | 2016
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The fiscal year 2016, proved to be a year of economic prosperity for Pakistan. GDP growth continued its positive
trajectory and posted growth of 4.71%, which is the highest in eight years. GDP posted a reasonable growth despite a
setback in the agriculture sector, on account of massive decline in the cotton production. This was compensated by
remarkable growth in industrial and services sector as both outperformed expectations by crossing growth targets.

Going forward, economic growth of the country will be driven by improving Law & Order situation, resolving energy
crisis and creating opportunities to boost socio-economic condition. Continuing Public Sector Development
Programme {(PSDP) and launch of China-Pakistan Economic Corridor (CPEC) will most likely create new opportunities
for economic development of the country. Implementation of infrastructure development and energy projects under
CPEC are expected to yield benefits for the country in multiple dimensions.

PVC & Allied Products

Global PVC downstream demand stood close to 42 Mn Metric Tons in 2016. PVC market continued to be oversupplied
in 2016 with cumulative overcapacity slightly declining to 14 Mn Metric Tons. Producers were challenged to achieve
cost efficiencies in order to compete in this oversupplied market. Operating rates in 2016 witnessed an increase
against last year to close at ~ 75% exhibiting a shift in lackluster industry operating rates. In terms of end uses, pipes
& Fittings was the bedrock of demand for PVC resin. Pipes and Fittings segment accounted for approximately 44% of
consumption, Films & Sheets was 18% and Profiles & Tubes was 17 %.

Global PYC Demand Supply Scenario

437 78%
76%
= - 74%
72%
15
70%
- ; . . L 68%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

B cemend B oy e— _filisE0n

Product Wise Application

Others 12% |
Wires and Cables 8%

'u

Bottles 1%
- Pipes and Fittings 44%

Profiles and Tubes 17%

Films and Sheets 18%
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In terms of consumption, Asian demand accounted for approximately 66% of the global demand with major
contribution coming from Northeast Asia, which contributed around 47% of the total global demand. Northeast Asian
demand is primarily led by China, where there has been a surge in domestic supply. Stagnant Chinese domestic
demand over the last two years, amid lower economic growth and supply in downstream sectors, has curtailed

Northeast Asia’s total demand growth lower than expected. China, however, will continue to account for the bulk of
regional demand at 85% and will remain the engine of growth in the region.

Consumption Pattern - Peer Group
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In terms of consumption, Pakistan has one of the lowest PVC resin consumption per capita in the region i.e. 1.03 kg
ahead of Bangladesh which is at 0.85 kg. PVC consumption in Pakistan is likely to be supported by the increasing

construction activity and the above per capita consumption indicates that there remains significant potential for
growth.

In 2016, intemational PVC prices ranged between $720/ton to $970/ton. Qutside China, most developing markets
witnessed stronger growth rates than expected. PVCG prices maintained a positive frajectory due to supply concems

from acetylene route to produce PVC. PVC demand brefly softened during demonetisation of Indian currency,
however, supply constraints within the region maintained price support.

Internatioanal PYC & Ethylene Price Trend 2016 International PYC Margins
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Ethylene prices remained stable to moderately soft through the year 2016, thereby, providing a relief to downstream
consumers. Low crude oil prices, influx of Ethylene from outside Asia, return of major crackers online maintained
prices stable throughout the year. Ethylene prices hovered between $868/MT - $1,160/MT for the year 20186.
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Caustic & Allied Products

In 2016, global Caustic Soda demand reached ~ 73 Mn tons growing at a CAGR of 3%. Global Chlor-Alkali demand is
a function of economic growth. Developing economies were the main drivers of demand growth. Region wise, Asia
retained its position as global leader accounting for approximately 62 % of consumption. Supply overhang remained a

key phenomenon during the year.
Global Caustic Demand Supply Scenario

Tons Mn Tons

80 SRR 100 7 - 80%
| a0 1 - 78%

60 60 - - 76%
| 40 4 - 74%

40 - 20 4 - TO%
; 5 » n o — - - 1= e T 70%’0

oo MR BN SN RN 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 :
(P C TR [ —
The majority of Gaustic Soda production was consumed in Alumina, Inorganic Chemicals, Pulp & Paper, Organic
Chemicals, Textile and Detergents. The global Caustic Soda consumption per capita in 2016 was estimated to be

around 10 kg.

Global Caustic Application
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Global Caustic Soda prices depicted an increase against previous years from strong demand from the Alumina sector;
price range for Southeast Asian market was $333/MT to $465/MT.

Global operating rates were lower than general historical levels, due to the excess capacity added in the recent years,
with capacity utilisation rates hovering around 78% to meet market demand. Moving ahead, it is anticipated that
developed countries will exhibit slower economic growth compared to the developing countries. These areas are
anticipated to be the main driving factors behind the demand growth for Caustic Soda.

PVC & Allied Products

In 2016, domestic PVC market posted a healthy growth of ~ 17%. The Company captured substantial volumetric
growth in sales. The growth was primarily driven by increased penetration in the domestic market and import
substitution. Domestic PVC is manufactured solely by Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited which sells under the brand
name of "SABZ”. In 2016, EPCL’s market share stood at ~ 80%. The Company consistently evaluates its sales mix to
gauge market needs and assess possible opportunities.

PVC Scrap imports were estimated to be approximately 4.8 KT in 2016, which is an estimated decline of 20% from
2015. Low differential between Resin and Scrap price encouraged scrap manufacturers to consume Resin, which
supported EPCL sales in the domestic market.

In 2016, Pipes and Fitlings continued to dominate the PVC market. PVC Pipes and Fittings are gaining rapid
acceptance in residential and commercial construction projects. Strong demand from the Construction Sector
combined with increased consumption of PVC pipes in government and large scale infrastructure projects contributed
towards significant growth in EPCL sales.

The Company continues to channelise efforts to further enhance PVC pipe demand in the country and has also began
focusing on opportunities that are yet to enter the domestic market. EPCL will strengthen its efforts towards helping
downstream consumers identify superior value of PVC relative to other thermoplastics and competing material. The
Company is pursuing an aggressive marketing strategy and is working extensively with its customers, government
agencies, architects and construction consultants for PVC market development and to increase domestic sales of the
Company. The Company is hopeful that these efforts will continue to bear fruit for the stakeholders in times to come.

Strong outlook of Gonstruction Sector, Public Sector Development Programme along with positive economic activity
especially the launch of China-Pakistan Economic Comidor (CPEC) is likely to support PVC demand in the domestic
market, positively contributing to PVC consumption.

On the production front, we remained steadfast to our strategy of converting maximum VCM to PVC and meeting all our
PVC production requirements through in house VCM. In 2016, we produced the highest level of PVC i.e. 172 Kilotons.

Domestic PYC Application -EPCL

Others 7%

Cable Compound 7%

Garden Hose 9%

Shoes 9%

Pipes and Fittings 57%
Film Packaging 10%
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PYC and YCM Production
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Market Development Activities

In terms of PVC consumption, Pakistan is the 6th largest population in the word and has one of lowest per capita PVGC
consumption in the region, providing a great market potential. At present, our sales mix is dominated by Pipes and
Fittings segment, we are committed to bring in innovation and technological advancement in the sector and aim to
ensure that the domestic market remains abreast with global advancements. Along with Pipes and Fittings, we have
also channelised our efforts towards the development of new PVC applications for Pakistan. In this regard, we have
deployed a dedicated team working on technical and market feasibilities for new PVC products in Pakistan.

Caustic & Allied Products

The Caustic Soda market size in 2016 remained at 265 KT. EPCL sold 83 KT in domestic market compared to same
figures last year, with a market share of 32%. Focus on energy efficiencies and sustainable plant operations steered
the industry theme for the year.

With consistent gas supply to industries in Punjab, and improvement in energy situation for key producers led to an
inevitable overhang of supply. This led to a general competitive market situation during the year.

Caustic Sales and Production Caustic Market Share in 2016 *
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" Market Share and product application have not been verified by an independent source and is
based on company’s estimate
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Main demand drivers for Caustic remained the Textile and Soap industry. Textile demand remained consistent, while
denim segment posted some growth which was offset by lower consumption from woven sector. Soap and Detergent
segment posted a 3% growth. Opportunity exists in some of the segments to grow as downstream consumption in
the coming years may improve on the back of more focus on health, sanitation and hygiene.

Domestic Caustic Application - EPCL

Edible Oil 2% - Paper 3%
Beverages 1% .. f

Retail / Trader 3%

Water Treatrment 6%
Textile 49%

Miscellaneous 4%

Soap and Detergent 25% =

Manufacturing demonstrated improved productivity in 2016. PVC production stood at 172 KT, VCM at 174 KT, while
Caustic Soda at 103 KT. PVC and VCM produced were the highest ever, however, Caustic Soda production was lower
than plan due to a major repair at the Power Plant, which has now been concluded.

Extensive work was put in to reduce the Safety Vulnerabilities at the Plant site, keeping in view the hazards associated
with working at a Petro-Chemical facility. Major replacements and additional inspections of the facility were completed
which has significantly reduced the HSE risks at site.

Efficiency initiatives taken in 2016, include dedicated investment projects: OXY Grid modification, Hydrogenator &
Chlorination projects would not only manifest higher efficiencies, but also ensure more sustainable site operation.
Multiple Lean Six Sigma workouts were executed focusing on reduction of conversion cost, improving efficiency
thereof.

On the reliability front, in-house overhaul of both gas turbines was completed safely, successful rehabilitation of the
cooling towers was performed for the first time, replacement of vulnerable furnace tubes and plant heat exchangers
were attended, improving the sustainability of operation. Plant tumaround scope was executed successfully and safely
in May 2016.

To keep ourselves abreast with the growing demand of PVC in Pakistan, substantial work was carried out for the study
on debottlenecking of PVC & VCM plants. Product quality was meticulously monitored and maintained at superior
levels for customer satisfaction.

The basic theme for 2017 is maintaining the current level of excellence attained in process and personnel safety,
maximise VCM conversion to PVC resin and sustain Chlor-Alkali operations to keep pace with market demands.
Moving forth, the challenge would be to successfully execute the debottlenecking project to enhance PVG production
and ensure consistent perfformance at VCM plant for availability of in-house VCM. Furthermore, optimisation of Plant
operations, keeping raw material conversion ratios on a downward trend, and capitalising all possible avenues of
Energy & Resource conservation, are also on the slate for 2017.
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During 2016, the Company achieved profit after tax of Rs. 660 Mn as compared to loss after tax of Rs. 644 Mn in
2015. The Company’s focus on diversifying sources for raw material procurement, streamlining plant operations,
efficient fund management and firmer grip on cost cutting, played a significant role in performance of the Company.
The international dynamics of the PVC industry also recovered after a turbulent and subdued year of 2015, providing
financial relief to the Company. Efficiency in plant operations and the Management's vision to reach out global
procurement solutions defined the tune for the year 2016. Despite competitive landscape in the Chlor-Alkali segment,
the Company maintained its share in the primary market while also outperforming its previous records in the Vinyl
segment, achieving the highest ever PVC salesin 2016.

Profitability

In revenue terms, the Company withessed 3% increase in the top line due to an increase in PVC prices and volumes
compared to last year. A drop in Chlor-Alkali margins exerted a pressure on Company’s profitability, however stability
in natural gas prices and uptick in Vinyl margins provided considerable support to the bottom line thereby offsetting
the dent from the chemical segment. On the tax frontier, Management decided to write-off deferred tax amounting to
Rs. 153 Mn approximately.

During the year, Management reassessed the estimates of useful life of plant assets based on the belief that the
Company can derive future economic benefits from its existing assets for number of years greater than the current
assessed useful life. The Company therefore acquired the services of a renowned consultant, and assessed the
physical condition, wear-and-tear and usability of its plant assets. The designated team recommended revising the
useful life estimate of the plants which led to a positive post-tax adjustment of ~ Rs. 297 Mn in depreciation expense

Liquidity & Cash flows

The financial performance of the Company restored healthy cash generation from its operations. Additionally, efficient
cash management enabled the Company to sustain operations without compromising on required CAPEX and debt
obligations. The Company successfully recapitalised its balance sheet by re-profiling debt, creating a smooth
ecosystem for operations.

Aggressive marketing strategy allowed the Company to achieve significant growth in volume, and strict cost cutting
measures resulted in effective management of working capital. Efficient plant operations, and development of supply
chain network also augmented cash management. On the tax front, resourceful utilisation of tax credits led to hefty
savings in outflow.

Financing

During the year, the Gompany remained committed in efforts to re-profile debt. The Company has managed to raise
Rs. 5.75 Bn long-term debt, used to re-profile its existing long-term and short-term debt. The tenor of these loans is
generally 7 years with a grace period of 2 years that provides the Company fiscal space to focus on its expansion and
other projects. Repayments are spread out in a prudent manner proportionate to expected future eamings that are
expected to not exert any undue pressures on cash flows. The new long-term debt also carries an attractive mark-up
spread of 0.8% and softer tenms of covenants.

Throughout the year, the Company has also maintained focus on driving down its working capital costs. Utilisation of
Export Refinance Facility and Money Market Loans has helped in building cost efficiencies on running finance needs.
Trade finance has also been structured during the year to bring efficiencies on LC related costs.

The Company has already identified further initiatives to drive finance costs further downward that will be focused on
in 2017.

Capital Structure

The assets of the Gompany are financed by debt and equity in the ratio of 40:60 as compared to 50:50 in 2015, while
our interest cover was 2.25 in 2016 as compared to negative 0.7 in 2015.

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited launched the Lean Enterprise Risk Management framework in 2011. It is the
policy of Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited to view Risk Management as integral to the creation, protection and

Annual Report | 2016



V-

engropclymer & chemicals

enhancement of shareholder value by managing the uncertainties and risks that could possibly influence the
achievement of our corporate goals and objectives.

We recognise that we are operating in a complex business context; the Company mandates assessment of the
Organisation’s strategy and quantum of risk that the enftity is willing to accept by adequately assigning responsibilities
throughout the Organisation. EPCL entrusts accountability at all levels and requires monitoring, communicating and
reporting changes in the Risk Envionment and the effectiveness of actions taken to manage identified risks on an
ongoing basis.

Risks are identified from across the Organisation and are ranked based on their impact and probability. Upon
identification of risks, a strategy is devised to mitigate its impact which is regularly monitored by the Management
Committee. Risk Management process is led by Chief Risk Officer (CRO) and endorsed by the Board Audit Committee
(BAC).

The key risks identified are as follows along with the outcome:

O Strategic Risk O

Volatility in plant operations
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O

Commercial / Operational Risk

Imposition of duty on primary raw material

Strategy

Engaging with relevant government authorities for
rationalisation of Vinyl Chain duty structure and
availing DTRE for raw material used in exports

International commodity prices

Strategy

Developed in-house

business intelligence,

established network with international olefins
analysts to have better insight of intermational price
trend and fundamentals defining market dynamics

Energy prices

Strategy
Implemented energy conservation projects and devised
a strategy for different price levels of natural gas

Result

Management's efforts led to success in getting
revision in import duty on EDC, which reduced to
4% as compared to 6% earlier

Result

Management reviews Core Margins on a weekly
basis to determine go-to-market strategy with a view
to better forecast price trends and capitalise on
market arbitrage opportunities

Result

The impact of increase in gas price is being
managed through efficiency enhancement but the
Company remains vulnerable to hefty increase in
gas price, therefore, study on alternative fuel
options such as Coal / LNG has been initiated
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O

Financial Risk

Liquidity Risk / Balance sheet profile

Strategy

Developed strategy for equity injection and balance
sheet re-profiling, arranged financing by Holding
Company and enhanced running finance lines to bridge
the gap in cash flow requirement of the Company

Foreign Exchange Risk

Strategy

Closely collaborated with banks and kept monitoring
key economic indicators to hedge foreign exchange
exposure on liabilities using forward contracts
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Result

Enabled the Company to re-capitalise balance sheet
by Rs 6 Bn. and enhanced short-term borrowing
facilities to create short-term operational liquidity

Result

Reduced the Company’s vulnerability to sudden
exchange rate movements, but the cost of mitigation
is that it limits ability to capitalise occasional
favourable movement; also, implementation of this
strategy is dependent on availability of “forwards™ in
the market
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Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited recognises its responsibility to operate and ascertain protection of business
operations from any sort of disruption. With this vision and intent, the Company initiated the Business Continuity Plan
in 2013. The plan ensures smooth functioning of critical business processes in the event of an unforeseen disaster and
has the following objectives:

* To provide a framework for building resilience and the capability for an effective response that safeguard the
interests of key stakeholders, reputation, brand and value creating activities

+ To assess the risks to our operations and to understand the impact of the risks should they materialise whilst
considering business priorities and organisational interdependency

+ To manage the response to and aftenrmath of any potential disruption, in an effective and appropriate manner to
minimise impact

* To recover business operations as quickly as possible, should an incident result in disruption o our critical
business operations or support services

¢ To test and review at regular intervals and revise as required, the plans supporting the Business Continuity

The plan encompasses EPCL's response strategy, minimum operating requirements, BCP team organisation, damage
assessment, and primary site restoration activities. It ensures preservation of critical data by mapping out key
elements of the process of disaster recovery. The Management evaluates the threats to its business & infrastructure
and has developed a strategy to adequately respond to any unpredictable challenges it might face.

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited recognises its responsibility towards the environment and society; in this regard,
we ensure that our actions are in line with best practices.

Treatment of Effluents & Chemical Discharge

Chlor-Vinyl plants use chemically active substances on site; we realise our responsibility to ensure safe handling of
such chemicals. The Company is well equipped with incineration plant, air strippers and evaporation pond to ensure
safe handling and disposal of emissions and effluents. Environmental performance and parameters are voluntarily
reported to Environment Protection Agency (EPA), Sindh at a defined frequency.

Quality Assurance & Testing

The Company has a dedicated team that is working to elevate quality standards in PVC downstream industry. In this
regard, EPCL, has developed coherence with Pakistan Standards and Quality Control Authority (PSQCA) aiming
towards standardisation and enforcement of quality standards for the Pipe Industry and PVC Geomembrane initially.
PSQCA invites different stakeholders of PVC Spiral Pipe & PVYC Geomembrane including manufacturers, consumers,
consultants and specialists to review and approve the standards. The Spiral Pipe’s and Geomembrane’s product life
cycle’s adherence to standards will enhance the confidence level of the consumers.

EPCL aims to deliver the highest quality standards not only to its primary customers but also to the end user. It was
noted that inability to test for impurities in pipes was allowing penetration of sub-standard material especially in public
sector projects.

The Company established a pipe quality testing lab at the department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and
Public Health Engineering (PHE), Lahore, which is fully equipped to test the product for impurities in-house. The
initiative will enable Public sector departments to ensure installation of quality material in public municipalities. In
addition to this, our mobile testing labs have been offering on-site testing to facilitate project owners and end users to
test for impurities in pipes.

Business Ethics & Anti-Corruption

Business Ethics is our fundamental value and lies at the heart of what we do at Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited. The
Board of Directors of the Company has univocally set down the acceptable business practices and behaviours in
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the “"Code of Conduct” to ensure that all our business dealings are undertaken whilst maintaining highest standards of
ethical values. We uphold a “Zero Tolerance” policy against all sorts of unethical practices, no matter how adverse the
outcome. This is ascertained through implementation of effectively designed and executed audit plans and assurance
procedures which prescribe all sorts of unethical behaviours and highlight matters causing concerns in respect of
business conduct. In addition, thereto, multiple channels are available to our Stakeholders fo speak-up and identify
practices and behaviours that are unacceptable to our Fundamental and Core Values.

Corporate Governance affects the way we direct our Company and the relationship we have with interested parties.
Management has placed due emphasis on transparency and ethical practices which play a fundamental role in
developing our employees and those dealing with us in the capacity of vendors and customers as responsible
professionals and corporate citizens.

Energy Management - Conservation

Energy is crucial to our operations; the Company is self-sustainable in terms of electricity but is dependent on gas for
electricity production and is exposed to fluctuations in gas price. In this regard, the Company has benchmarked
energy consumption for each unit of production and performance is measured against it. We will continue to analyse
and undertake energy conservation projects.

Contribution to National Exchequer

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited is a significant contributor to the national exchequer. In 2016, the Company
contributed approximately Rs. 4.9 Bn on account of Sales & Income tax.

The CSR program of the Company is consolidated under the umbrella of Engro Foundation, together with all Engro
subsidiaries, with an aim to create a greater impact on the society.

Community Investment & Welfare Schemes 8

Our employees showed ample involvement in giving back to the community -
under Envision, the employee volunteer program. The volunteers from the &
Company carry out various developmental activities in the surrounding §
communities of Port Qasim throughout the year. The donations money is
usually raised among the employees and used in activities that benefit the
schools and hospitals in the low income communities.

Envision, volunteers from the EPCL
plant organised an Iftar at Allah Bakhsh ™ .
Goth, in Al Mustafa educational academy. Indus Hospltal held a camival to
raise funds for its free treatment of patients and volunteers from Engro Polymer
| and Chemicals Limited took part in organising and raising funds for this event.
| A lot of work was also done for the local Thalassemia patients with HWIT.
Awareness sessions about the disease were carried out by volunteers in local
¥ communities and a blood donation drive was organised at the Engro Polymer &
¢ Chemicals Limited plant, where employees donated blood for this cause.

' Rural Development and Donations

The Company signed an MOU with The Citizens Foundation in December 2013
to set up a school in Ghaghar Phatak. This school has been operational since
April, 2015. Children from the surrounding small villages and communities have
access to quality education, because of this campus. Each year, varous
educational and informative sessions are carmied out in the campus by
volunteers from EPCL. In 2016, the Marketing Department celebrated 25th of
December, Quaid-e-Azam day, at the school. The students took part in various
patriotic competitions and were distributed prizes. A tree plantation activity
also took place.
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Health, Safety and Environment is amongst the significant Core Values of the Company. EPCL follows stringent
policies, procedures and systems to ensure that HSE considerations become a part of our routine business. We
believe in Safety Culture where employees conduct self-audits to minimise the distress and disruption caused by an
incident, injury or work related illness.

The Company conducts all of its business in a manner that protects the Health & Safety of employees, contractors,
community and all involved in its operations. Safety is an integral part of all of the Company’s business decisions and
the employees achieve business goals in- line with the Company’s HSE Policies & Principles .

In 2016, there was no Lost Time injury. Total Recordable Injury Rate (TRIR) of the Company stood at 0.12; which is a
word class personnel safety performance. The Company is fully committed for achieving “"Goal Zero” — Zero Injuries,
Incidents & Environment Excursions.

Safety was taken to a new paradigm, by aligning our DuPont Process and Personnel Safety System with the revised
22 Element Process Safety Model. Innovations on the Risk Assessment & Hazard Analysis front continued by
conducting Safety Integrity Level (SIL) and Layer of Pprotection Analysis (LOPA) of PVC Plant. Successful testing of
IHS Sphera (The new Safety Management Information System) concluded and is progressing as per plan.

_ A second party assessment on Occupational Health &
I I Industrial Hygiene Management has been conducted and a

rating of 3.7 has been awarded to the Company. This rating
depicts that EPCL has excelled in OSHA compliance of
OHIH by adopting DuPont best practices.

The Company has been excelling as per The British Safety
Council 5-Star Program and WWF Green Office. This
initiative intends to elevate the Environmental Program
beyond minimum compliance of 150-14001 (Environment
Management System). During the year, 2 new buildings
became Green Office Certified and 8 buildings were
recertified as Green Offices by WWF.

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited has a fleet of 58 dedicated vehicles for liquid products and intermediates. Fleet
Safety Program and Safety Performance Indices were benchmarked with world best practices and implemented both
for products, intermediates and employee transportation. Consequently, core concept of Fleet Safety was re-vamped,
which resulted in a high class performance in this area as well. Fleet Accident Frequency Rate for the organisation was
2.5, which can be benchmarked with any good organisation.

EPCL retained its membership with CCPS (Centre for g
Chemical Process Safety), NSC (National Safety Council) £
and BSC (British Safety Council). Through them, the
Company gets the updated information on the best HSE
practices.

The Company has made successful strides in surpassing its
previous performances in the Integrated Management
System (MS) to assimilate the Quality Management System
(QMS), Environmental Management System EMS) and |
OSHAS-18001 (Occupational Safety and Health ===pF=}
Assessment Seres). The Company was successfully -
recertified this year.

The coming year could be termed as the Year of Audits, as we aim to complete PSM 22 Element 2nd party, British
Safety Council extemal and OHIH Dupont Audits. Furthermore, Integrated Management System Certification on the
revised 2015 standards has been scheduled.

Moving forward, the Company has set a key objective to embark on IHS Sphera as new face of Health, Safety and
Environment. It's a perfect combination of HSE Practices and Software Engineering skills to unlock new dimensions in
HSE Reporting, Recordkeeping and Analysis. IHS Sphera will be launched in 2017 targeting a full integration of this
system within the calendar years to come.
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Planned and executed the SAP roll out for material management at Plant to replace Maximo. E fficient negotiations
and thorough working secured low cost licenses options for plant users resulting in a saving. This will provide the way
forward for SAP Phase Il (Production Planning & Plant Maintenance) implementation planned for 2017.

The Information Technology department also supported various key initiatives taken throughout the company.
These included implementation of Vendor Support Portal, Transformation of EPCL website in Urdu in line with
SECP requirement, Online Trade Apprentice at different locations & Contracts Implementation in SAP.

The journey to improve systems and processes will continue in 2017 as the Information Technology looks to
transform from 'Systems of Records’ to ‘Systems of Engagement’ resulting in a truly enterprise organisation
that harnesses all our expertise and skills, working to common standards to deliver innovation that adds real
value to Engro and partnering with businesses to deliver this value.

The year 2016 was one where Human Resources primarily focused on enhancing employee engagement and motivation
within the Company. In this regard, numerous programs and sessions were conducted for employees
during the year.

Productivity and Efficiency Improvements

On the productivity improvements front in 2016, the Lean Six Sigma program results were more successful than ever.
Lean Six Sigma is a culting edge methodology that reduces waste by improving the efficiency of processes. 15 Green
Belt projects were completed during the year and respective 15 employees became Lean Six Sigma Green Belt
cerfified.

Ensuring that our supply of skilled talent remains uninterrupted is equally important. It protects the Organisation from
being vulnerable to any unplanned loss of talent. Furthermore, the extensive training framework was followed for the
growth and personal development of employees. Middle and Senior Management went through the word renowned
training program of *Situational Leadership’.

Many events and sessions also took place to boost the morale of employees; however, the most important is the
introduction of “Hajj Policy” for junior cadre management employees.

Workforce Quality & Services

The Company’s HR strategy is to strengthen EPCL's leadership pipeline through induction of trainees. The concept is
that they form a ready talent pool of young individuals who are already familiar with the processes of the Company.

In our endeavour to ensure induction of quality talent, the assessment tool by the name ‘Professional Leaming
Indicator’ is used as one of the entry filter for hiring since 2013. In 2016, 59 technical trainees were employed
specifically to address long-term needs on the technical side of the Organisation.

Overall, the focus remained on providing opportunities to home-grown talent. As a result, out of the total hiring done
during the year, 71% were from within the Company, primarily from the Trainee programs. The number may also be
attributed to the upward and horizontal mobility provided to the employee as part of our promise for career growth and
talent retention.

The retention of our skilled workforce is critical for smooth business continuity and long-term growth of the enterprise.
Attrition rate has financial implications on account of rehiring, retraining and foregone revenue. In 2016, the attrition
number reduced to 9.44% comparing to 10.27% in 2015, hence a sign of better engagement level.

Workforce Diversity and Employment of People with Disabilities

Under the umbrella of workforce diversity, the focus remained on improving the ratio of female employees and hiring
People With Disabilities (PWDs). Unfortunately, no suitable PWD could be inducted during the year, despite interviews
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and recommendations to other subsidiaries. EPCL has, however, been working closely with the NGO NOWPDP for
hiring of possible candidates in the future. The Company also hosted a ‘Bring Your Child to Work Day’ event, where
employees were encouraged to bring their children to office to take part in various fun-filled activities.

The Company believes in engaging with stake holders at all #98

levels, during the year we used press releases securities
analyst briefings on quartedy and annual results,
disclosures to the stock exchanges on strategic events
{(including the disclosure in Note 1.4 of the Company’s
consolidated financial statements), plant visits and informal
conversations with relevant stakeholders.

The Company complies with all regulatory requirements
and in this regard maintains close coordination with
relevant regulators including the Stock Exchanges, tax
authorities and Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan.

EPCL has hundreds of vendors and customers and we
seek to engage them from time to time through formal and
informal meetings and conferences. We have engaged
with our customers regularly to provide them with technical

assistance related to their businesses for the benefit of the X

industry.

The Company considers employees as an integral driver of ¢

growth, we measure employee motivation and satisfaction
through various benchmarks & findings; results are shared
by the respective managers and HR strategy is tfailored to
address the highlighted areas.

S YEAR
SERVICE AWARD

The Company is confident about displaying continued strong operational performance in 2017. It is hopeful that its
marketing activities will continue to yield positive impact in the upcoming year. PVC market is likely to exhibit strong
growth, on account of favourable outlook for construction and an overall positive economic sentiment. However,

Caustic Soda market is expected to remain stable.

Going forward, plant debottlenecking and targeted efficiencies will remain under key focus. However, economic value
creation of the Gompany will continue to be influenced by uncontrollable factors such as Vinyl Chain Prices, Energy

Prices and Currency Volatility.
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Shareholding in the Company
The shareholding in the Company as at December 31, 2016 is as follow:

Shareholders’ Category Number of Number of Percentage

T : Shareholders Shares held -of Holding

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Spouse and Minor Children 11 5,010 0.001%
Associated Companies, undertaking and related parties 4 538,955,827 81.23%
Banks, DFls, Non-Banking Financial Institutions 4 161,000 0.02%
Insurance Companies 3 1,225,000 0.18%
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 7 4,780,000 0.72%
Shareholders holding 10% 3 537,914,987 81.08%
General Public (Individuals)

a. Local 29,984 91,995,710 13.87%

b. Foreign
Others 101 26,346,241 3.97%

Information of shareholding required under the reporting framework is as follow:
1. Associated Companies, Undertaking and Related Parties

y Number of
Shareholders’ Category Shares: held
Engro Corporation Limited 372,809,989
Intemational Finance Corporation 97,155,000
Mitsubishi Corporation 67,949,998
EPCL Employees' Trust 1,040,840

538,955,827
2. Modarabas and Mutual Fund

; Number of
Shareholders’ Category Shares held
Trustee Faysal Balanced Growth Fund 100,000
Trustee AKD Opportunity Fund 1,500,000
Trustee UBL Stock Advantage Fund 825,000
Trustee NADA Multi Asset Fund 985,000
Trustee First Habib Stock Fund 40,000
Trustee Nafa Asset Allocation Fund 1,005,000
Trustee UBL Retirement Savings Fund - Equity Sub Fund 325,000

4,780,000

3. Directors and their Spouse / Minor Children

Number. of

Shareholders’ Category Shares held

MR. ASAD SAID JAFAR

MR. FEROZ RIZVI

MR. IMRAN ANWER

MR. GHIAS KHAN

MR. KIMIHIDE ANDO

MR. SHAHZADA DAWOOD 5,00
MR. SHOICHI OGIWARA

MR. ZAFAR HADI

1
1
1
1
1
1
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4. Execufives

Number of

Shareholders’ Category Shares held

Executives 772,949

5. Public Sector Companies and Corporations

Number of

Shareholders’ Category Shares held

Public Sector Companies and Corporations 250,000

6. Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Insurance, Takaful, Modarabas & Pension Funds

3 Number of
Shareholders’ Category Shares held
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non-Banking Finance Companies,

Insurance, Takaful, Modarabas & Pension Funds 161,000

7. Shareholding Five Percent or more Volting Interestin the Company
Number of Percentage

Shdreholdors® Tategony Shares held of holding

Engro Corporation Limited 372,809,989 56%

Intemational Finance Corporation 97,155,000 15%

Mitsubishi Corporation 67,949.998 10%

8. Defails of Purchase/ Sale of Shares by Directors, Executives and their Spouse / Minor Children
Shares Shares Dateé of

NS PR e SEUICR act Purchased Sold Rty Purchase/ Sale
Muhammad Saeed Shakir 500 9.29 March 7, 2016
M. Kamran Anari 46,775 9.77 May 24, 2016
Muhammad Irfan Alahi 25,000 9.6 June 1, 2016
Syed Waqgar Hussain 2,000 9.05 June 10, 2016
Syed Wagar Hussain 2,000 9.05 June 10, 2016
Ali Haider 500 8.65 July 14, 2016
Amir Mahmud 9,500 8.59 July 22, 2016
Muhammad Bilal Ahmed 100,000 9.88 September 19, 2016
Hussain Hasanali 100,000 9.83 September 19, 2016
Khadija Raza 5,000 10.07 September 21, 2016
Muhammad Bilal Ahmed 20,000 11.02 November 10, 2016
Muhammad Saadullah Abulkhairi 5,000 12.65 November 14, 2016
Muhammad Saadullah Abulkhairi 2,500 1297 November 14, 2016
Muhammad Saadullah Abulkhairi 2,500 12.97 November 14, 2016
Muhammad Bilal Ahmed 120,000 12.62 November 15, 2016
Anthony Santamaria 5,000 12.73 November 17, 2016
Anthony Santamaria 5,000 13.45 November 18, 2016
Anthony Santamaria 5,000 13.01 November 18, 2016
Ali Mohsin Bhagat 19,000 12.75 November 24, 2016
Muhammad Bilal Ahmed 125,000 15.68 November 29, 2016
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9. Pattern of Shareholding — As At December 31,2015

Number of Size of Holding

Shareholders From To No. of Shares
446 1 - 100 11,415
19,819 101 - 500 9,499,138
6,130 501 - 1,000 4,353,907
2,383 1,001 - 5,000 5,786,796
488 5,001 - 10,000 3,923,345
194 10,001 - 15,000 2,925,198
115 15,001 - 20,000 2,174,818
95 20,001 - 25,000 2,283,579
46 25,001 - 30,000 1,309,336
28 30,001 - 35,000 935,324
31 35,001 - 40,000 1,209,353
iliz: 40,001 - 45,000 745,630
51 45,001 - 50,000 2,5925512
16 50,001 - 55,000 847,394
11 55,001 - 60,000 651,475
14 60,001 - 65,000 885,750
B! 65,001 - 70,000 201,150
12 70,001 - 75,000 890,629
8 75,001 - 80,000 633,000
4 80,001 - 85,000 328,600
2 85,001 - 90,000 173,500

5 90,001 - 95,000 466,691
43 95,001 - 100,000 4,295,000
5 100,001 - 105,000 516,500
5 105,001 - 110,000 541,375
2 110,001 - 115,000 228,000
4 120,000 - 125,000 491,500
2 130,001 - 135,000 267,000
5 140,000 - 145,000 700,500
) 150,000 - 155,000 750,000
2 160,000 - 165,00 322,500
2] 170,000 - 175,000 519,000
3 175,001 - 180,000 529,500
2 185,001 - 190,000 378,000
23 195,001 - 200,000 4,598,000
2 200,001 - 205,000 406,500
2 205,001 - 210,000 417,000
3 210,001 - 215,000 641,000
l 225,001 - 230,000 229,500
2 230,001 - 235,000 465,500
4 250,000 - 255,000 1,002,500
2 270,000 - 275,000 540,500
2 275,001 - 280,000 559,500
1 280,001 - 285,000 283,000
4 295,000 - 300,000 1,195,000
1 305,001 - 310,000 305,875
1 315,001 - 320,000 316,869
2 325,000 - 330,000 650,000

2 355,001 - 360,000 718,651
2! 360,001 - 365,000 1,091,925
1 365,001 - 370,000 366,500
1 380,001 - 385,000 382,000
4 400,000 - 405,000 1,601,000
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Number of
Shareholders
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Size of Holding

From

420,000
475,000
490,000
500,000
520,001
540,000
555,000
600,000
615,001
670,001
675,001
695,000
715,000
725,000
730,001
760,001
780,001
825,000
860,001
985,000
1,000,000
1,040,001
1,050,000
1,155,001
1,185,001
1,340,000
1,385,001
1,500,000
1,600,000
1,780,000
1,795,001
2,790,001
3,000,000
3,600,000
5,850,000
67,945,001
97,155,000
372,805,001

To

425,000
480,000
495,000
505,000
525,000
545,000
560,000
605,000
620,000
675,000
680,000
700,000
720,000
730,000
735,000
765,000
785,000
830,000
865,000
990,000
1,005,000
1,045,000
1,055,000
1,160,000
1,190,000
1,345,000
1,390,000
1,505,000
1,605,000
1,785,000
1,800,000
2,795,000
3,005,000
3,605,000
5,855,000
67,950,000
97,160,000
372,810,000

No. of Shares

845,000
475,000
490,000
4,010,000
1,047,500
540,000
555,000
600,000
618,199
672,850
675,500
2,095,000
715,000
1,453,000
731,500
762,000
781,500
825,000
861,500
985,000
2,005,000
1,040,840
2,104,000
1,157,000
1,189,500
1,340,000
1,388,500
1,500,000
1,600,000
1,780,000
1,795,500
2,793677
9,000,000
3,600,000
5,850,000
67,949998
97,155,000
372,809989
663,468,786

82



&

engropclymer & chemicals

In 2016, the Board of Directors held 6 meetings to cover its complete cycle of activities. The attendance record of the
Directors is as follows:

- ; Meetings
Director’s Name Attended
Mr. Imran Anwer 6/6
Mr. Kimihide Ando 5/6
Mr. Shahzada Dawood 3/6
Mr. Zafar Hadi 6/6
Mr. Asad Said Jafar 4/6
Mr. Shoichi Ogiwara 5/6
Mr. Feroz Rizvi 6/6
Mr. Omar Yaqoob Sheikh (™ 1/6
Ms. Naz Khan © 4/6
Mr. Khalid Siraj Subhani © 5/6
Mr. Ghiasuddin Khan! 1/6

Mr. Omar Yaqoob Sheikh Resigned October 08, 2016
E;MS. Naz Khan Resigned November 07, 2016
]

“IMr. Khalid Siraj Subhani Resigned November 30, 2016
Mr. Ghiasuddin Khan Appointed December 09, 2016

T

Major Judgment Areas

Main areas related to Income Taxes, Derivative Financial Instruments, Deferred Tax Assets, Retirement Benefit Obligations,
etc. are detailed in Notes to the accounts.

Accounting Standards

The accounting policies of the Company fully reflect the requirements of the Companies Ordinance 1984 and such approved
Intemational Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards, as have been notified under this
ordinance as well as through directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Provident Fund

In 2013, the Company replaced its provident fund with the provident fund (the Fund) operated and managed by Engro
Corporation Limited - the Holding Company. Accordingly, the following information is based on the latest audited financial
statements of the Fund maintained by the Holding Company as at June 30, 2015 and unaudited financial statements as at
June 30, 2016.

Details of the fund are as follows:

Rs. ‘000 Provident Fund

June 30,2016 June 30,2015
Size of the fund - Total assets 3,205,658 3,161,499
Cost of the Investment made 2,800,793 2,333,996
Percentage of Investments made 94% 87%
Fair Value of Investments 3,015,867 2,736,879
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Accounting Standards

The accounting policies of the Company fully reflect the requirements of the Companies Ordinance 1984 and such approved
International Accounting Standards and International Financial Reporting Standards, as have been notified under this
ordinance as well as through directives issued, by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Compliance with Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors reviews all significant matters of the Company. These include Company’s strategic direction, annual
business plans and targets, decision on long-term investment and borrowings. The Board of Directors is committed to
maintain high standards of Corporate Governance.

The Board of Directors is pleased to report that:

e The financial statements prepared by the management present fairly its state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash
flows and changes in equity

e Proper books of accounts have been maintained

e  Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment

e |International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements
and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed

e The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored
e There are no significant doubts upon the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern
e There have been no departures from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing regulations

Shares traded and average prices

During the year, ~ 709.5Mn shares of the Company were traded on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The average price of the
Company’s share based on daily closing rates was Rs. 10.23. The 52 week low high during 2015 was Rs. 8.2 — 18.45 per share
respectively.

Dividends

Accumulated losses of the Company on a consolidated basis stand at Rs. 1,593 Mn, therefore, the Board has not
recommended any dividend during the year.

Auditors

The present auditors, M/s A.F Ferguson & Co. retire, and offer themselves for reappointment. The Board Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors have endorsed the recommendation.

Imran Anwer Kimihide Andor
President and Chief Executive Officer Director
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Consolidated Statement of Value
Added

For the year ended December 31, 2016

| \"’\2016 - bt I: "J€‘2I0-15

\RS. In*000 *-* % | . Rs:In %000

Wealth Generated

Gross Sales and Other Income 26,714,508 25,763,294

Materials and Services Purchased (18,112,996) {18,637,742)
8,601,512 100% 7125552 100%

Wealth Distributed

Employees 1,267,998 15% 1,285,009 18%

Salaries, Wages and Other Benefits

Society 4575 0% 11,127 0%

Donations and Other CSR Activities

Providers of Finance 919,587 11% 1,064,980 15%

Fianance Costs

Government 4,871,223 56% 4,124 581 58%

Income tax, Sales Tax Qutput, Duties, WWF and WPPF

Retained within business 1,538,129 18% 639,855 9%

Retained Eamings, Depreciation and Amortisation

8,601,512 100% 7,125,552 100%

Distribution of value added -2016

Government 56%

Providers of Finance 11%

Society 0%-

Other 74%

Employees 15% ~ =

Retained within business 18%
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Distribution of value added -2015

Government 58%

Providers of Finance 15%

Society 0% -

Other 67 %

Ermployees 18%

Retained within business 9%
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Quarterly Analysis

PYC- Ethylene Core Delta
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PVC domestic market remained strong due to robust demand from Construction
Sector and infrastructure projects

Scrap imports remained limited - low price differential caused conversion of end
customers from Scrap to Resin

Caustic demand remained stable

PVC domestic market continued to grow due to consistent demand from
Construction Sector and limited Scrap imports

PVC - Ethylene core delta improved against previous quarter due to supply
rationalisation of Ethylene

Caustic prices remained under pressure due to competitive market structure

PVC demand in the domestic market remained consistent due to positive outlook of
the Construction Sector

PVC prices maintained positive trajectory throughout the quarter, on the back of
healthy demand. Ethylene prices remained stable thus augmenting the core delta

Caustic Soda market remained competitive

International PVC prices maintained positive trajectory on account of supply
constraints within the region especially in China. Production halts in Ghina created a
large supply gap, thereby, pushing up prices

Reassesment of plant’s useful life

Partial deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 171 Mn was written-off during the quarter
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Six Years Cash Flow with
Direct Method

Cash Flow Statements - Direct Method 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
{Rsin million)

Cash flows from custorrers 22,835 22,382 23,789 24,335 20,412 17,263
Cash payments to suppliers and others {18,527) (22,157)  {21,033) (20,118}  (17,560) (12,539)
Cash generated from operations 4308 225 2,756 4217 2,852 4,724
Finance costs ©85.00) (995) {1,026) (1.412) (1.670) (1,795)
Long-term loans and advances (4.00) - (14 [16)] (12) 3
Retirerment benefits paid {138.00) (119 (120) {(56) ©9) {41)
Incorme tax paid {178.00) {(263) {456) 62 (270) (381)
Net cash flow from operating activities 3,101 (1,194) 1,140 2,808 a3 2,510
Purchase of operating assets and intangibles ©45.00) {661) (1,052) ©40) (364) 533
Proceeds from disposal of operating assets 7.00 11 12 8 18 18
Purchase of short-term investments - - - @24) (F50) (540)
Proceeds from the sale of short-term investments - - - Q28 754 546
Incorme on investrments and bank deposits 0.92 34 47 26 a8 5]
Net cash flow from investing activities (637) (616) (293) (602) (334) (503)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 804.00 2,150 1,700 1,956 700 -
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 15.91 819 300 620 1,250 -
Repayment of borrowings (1,050.00) (2.998) 2,554) 2,873) 2,245) (1,613)
Issue of share capital - - - - - -
Dividend - - 100 200 - -
Net cash flow from financing activities (230) 29 454) (97) (995) (1,613)
Net cash flows 2,234 {1,839) {307) 2,109 {498) 394

Six Years Summary Profit and Loss
Account and Balance Sheet

Rs. in Million 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
PROFIT AND LOSS

MNet Sales 22,854 22,264 23,819 24,592 20,466 16,8806
Gross Profit 3,935 2773 1,821 4,911 3,453 2,075

Operating Profit / {Loss}) 2,107 776 (370) 2,718 1,813 630

Profit / {Loss) before Tax 1,180 {366) (1,435) 1,344 166 {1.117)
Profit / {Loss) after Tax 655 {649) {1,.016) 717 50 (729)
BALANCE SHEET

Property, Plant and Equiprment 16,008 16,249 16,923 17,133 17,715 18,538
Intangibles, Investments, Deferred Taxation and

Long-term Loans & Advances 760 145 1,134 608 1,015 1,021

Current Assets 7,692 6,878 8,244 7,500 6,227 4,969
Current-Liabilities 9,742 13,659 14,219 10,731 11,030 9,550

Long-term Liahilities / Mon-Current Liabilities 8,750 5,280 6,143 7,575 7,728 8,840

Share Capital 6,635 6,635 6,635 6,635 6,635 6,635

Shareholder’s Equity 5,968 5,303 5,939 6,934 6,198 6,139
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Six Years Analysis

Shareholders’ Equity

The movement of shareholders’ equity remained contingent on its cyclical nature of business which is primarily driven
by the movement of international PVC and Ethylene prices, local economic environment and downstream business
demand of finished products. The Company remained firm on its efforts to maximise shareholders’ return by
diversifying supplier base for key raw material, strict cost cuting measures and increasing focus on efficiency of plant
operations. The efforts bore fruit and translated into economic earning for the year 2016. The Company recorded a
Profit after tax of Rs. 655 Mn as against Loss after tax of Rs. 649 Mn.

Non-Current Assets

For the year 2016, the Company booked Rs. 644 Mn in capital expenditure activities. The Company re-evaluated the
life of expected economic benefit from its operating facility and a third party concluded an extension of the useful life
of the plant, thereby, recalibrating the economic benefit and costs taken into account thus far. The decline in property,
plant and equipment can be attributed to depreciation booked during the year.

Additionally, deferred tax asset declined during the year to further impact the non-current assets to the tune of
Rs. 358 Mn. An adjustment of current period taxable income with carried forward taxable losses led to the mark down
of deferred tax asset.

Current Liabilities

Overall current liabilities have recorded a 29% decrease as compared to year ago. This decrease is mainly attributable
to decrease in current portion of long-term liabilities and short-term borrowings.

Non-Current Liabilities

Non-current liabilities only comprise of long-term loans. To ensure fiscal space for smooth business activities, the
Company succeeded in efforts to reprofile its long-term debt. The Company managed to raise Rs. 5.75 Bn long-term
debt, used to reprofile its existing long-term debt and pay off short-term debt. The tenor of these loans is generally 7
years with a grace period of 2 years which provides ample space for fiscal activity to the Company.

Current Assets

There is an increasing trend in the current asset since 2008. During the year, increase has been mainly driven by
balances in saving accounts and short-term investments which are a result of better cash flow management. Due to
efforts on cash flow management, the current ratio has improved by 0.29 times where quick ratio has also improved
by 0.15 times.

Revenue

Revenue over the preceding two years recorded a decline mainly on account of lower PVC prices which can be
attributed to sharp decline in the Petrochemical Industry. Supply overhang was a main driver, globally, of such a price
decline. Volatility in global Petrochemical Industry has a strong impact on topline of the Company. During 2016, the
Petrochemical Industry recovered from a soft period of two years and the Company recorded a 2.65% increase in
revenue.

The topline of the Company will depend on the global economic dynamics and also domestic demand. Pakistan has
one of the lowest PVC consumption per capita; the Company hopes that advent of economic activity through multiple
fronts, such as CPEC, results in an increase of PVC consumption.

Gross profit

Due to cyclic nature of business the Company witnessed heavy fluctuation in Gross Profit. As compared to last year,
current year's Gross Profit exhibited a positive trend. This can be attributed to increase in sales, reduction in raw
material prices, by diversifying supplier base and reassessment of plant useful life, cumulatively resulting in increase in
Gross Profit by 41.9%. The Gross Profit Margin will rely on many factors such as international PVC and Ethylene
prices, gas prices and cumrency fluctuations.
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As a result of the aforementioned improvements, Gross Profit Margin has also increased to 17.22% as compared to
12.46% last year.

Finance and Other Costs

Finance Cost has recorded a decreasing trend during the last five years as the debts have become repayable from

2012. Furthermore, the decline in finance cost could be witnessed due to fairy stable / favourable exchange rates
during the year.
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Ratio Analysis

Profitability Ratio

Strong market demand and relatively favourable conditions in petrochemical industry during 2016 have significantly
impacted both profit before tax and profit after tax, which depict a remarkable picture as compared to last year.
Significant improvement can be witnessed in EBIDTA, which has also increased by Rs. 923 million. Furthermore, profit
margin ratio has also shown a turnaround as the same has been raised to 2.86% in 2016 as compared to -2.92% last
year which measures effectiveness of convertibility of the Company’s sales into net income.

The increase in Gross Profit Margin translated into ensuring high profitability for the Company.

Liquidity Ratio
Current ratio has increased by 0.29% as compared o last year and quick ratio has increased by 0.15%. Better cash

flow management and repayments of short-term debt translated into an improved liquidity condition. It has further
been enhanced due to improvements in debtor and stock turnover days.

Capital Structure Ratios

Over past few years, financial gearing of the Company has shown significant improvement. Current year made a
significant impact on overall financial leverage of the Gompany which has declined significantly due to reduction in
short-term borrowings of the Company. Furthermore, the weighted average cost of debt has remained fairy constant.

Investment / Market Ratios

Profit during the year resulted in positive EPS. Average market value per share is approximately Rs. 14.23 and the
current year closing share price is also around Rs. 18.45, which depicts an increase trend of market value of shares.

Activity / Turnover Ratios
Cash operating cycle of the Company has decreased by 27 days as compared to last year.
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DuPont Analysis
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Balance Sheet Vertical and

Horizontal Analysis

2016 2016 2014 2013 2012 2011
ASSETS
MNon-Current Assets 16,769 17,363 18,058 17,740 18,730 19,5592
Current Assets 7,002 5,879 3,244 7,500 8,227 4,969
Total Assets 24,461 24,242 26,301 25,240 24,957 24,523
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 5,963 5,303 5,939 5,234 5,199 5,139
MNon-Current Liabilities 8750 5,280 8,143 7,575 T, 729 3,832
Current Lisbilities Q742 13,659 14,2192 10,731 11,029 2,550
Total Equity & Liabilities 24,461 24,242 26,301 25,240 24,957 24,523
ASSETS
Mon-Current Assets 59%% T2% 59%% 705%% 75% B0%
Current Assets 31% 28% 31% 30% 25% 20%
Total Assets 100%% 100%% 100% 100% 100% 100%%
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 2459 22% 23% 27% 25% 25%
Mon-Current Lighilities 36%0 2245 23% 3085 318 36%%
Current Ligbilities 40% 56% 54% 425%% 445%% 3954
Total Equity & Liabilities 10056 100%% 100% 100% 100%% 100%%
2016 20156 2014 2013 2012 2011
over over over over over over
2016 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
ASSETS
Mon-Current Assets -3% -4%% 2% -5% -5% 0%
Current Assets 12% -17% 10% 20% 27% 10%%
Total Assots 1% -85 4% 1% 254 204
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 13% -11% -145%4 12% 1% -11%
Mon-Current Lichilities B6%% -14%% -19%% 2% -13%% -20%
GCurrent Ligbilities -29% -4% 32% -4% 15% 55%
Total Equity & Liabilities 1% -85 454 1% 2% 204

2F
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Profit and Loss Account Vertical
and Horizontal Analysis

Rs. in million
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
MNet Sales 22,854 22,264 23819 24,592 20,466 16,886
Cost of Sales (18,919 (19420  {22,151) (12,681)  (17,014) (14.811)
Gross Profit 3,935 2,773 1,668 4,911 3452 2,075
Distribution and Marketing expenses (1,180) 1,217 (1,409) (1,344 (1,134 @54
Adrrinistrative expenses 519 (515) {(494) (606) {(478) {386)
Other Operating expenses (149 (325) (309) B521) (528) {226)
Other Income 20 57 174 2758 501 21
Operating Profit / (Loss) 2,107 778 {370) 2,718 1,813 830
Finance Costs <L7) (1,144 {1,065) (1,374) (1,647) (1,747)
Profit / (Loss) before Taxation 1,180 (366) (1,435) 1,344 166 (1,117
Taxation {(525) {(283) 419 {€27) (116) 388
Profit / (Loss) for the year 655 649 (1,0186) 717 50 729)
Vertical Analysis 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
% of Sales
MNet Sales 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Cost of Sales -83% -88% -96% -80% -83% -88%
Gross Profit 17% 12% 7% 20% 17% 12%
Distribution and Marketing expenses -5% -5% 6% 6% 6% -5%
Adrrinistrative expenses 2% 2% -2% -2% -2% -2%
Other Operating expenses -1% -1% -1% 2% -3% -1%
Other Income 0% 0% 1% 1% 2% 0%
Operating Profit / (Loss) 9% 3% -2% 11% 9% 4%
Finance Costs 2% -5% -4% 6% 8% -10%
Profit / (Loss) before Taxation 5% 2% 6% 5% 1% 6%
Taxation 2% -1% 2% -3% -1% 2%
Profit / (Loss) for the year 3% -3% -4% 3% 0% -4%
Horizontal Analysis 2016 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Year on Year Over Over Over Over Over Over Over
2015 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
MNet Sales 3% 26% 15% 21% 20% -3% 7%
Cost of Sales -3% 29% 10% 15% 16% 13% -12%
Gross Profit 42% 3% 74% 66% 42% -66% 66%
Distribution and Marketing expenses -3% 30% 40% 33% 19% 5% -14%
Adrrinistrative expenses 1% 51% 24% 24% 27% -18% 4%
Other Operating expenses -54%4 -26% 32% 134% -1% -41% 5%
Other Income 64% -78% -5% 2286% -45% -37% -67 %
Operating Profit / (Loss) 171% -65% 245% 188% 50% -114%  -310%
Finance costs -19% 137% 24% 6% -17% -22% %
Profit / (Loss) before Taxation -423% 418% -13% 115% 710% -207% -74%
Taxation 86% 2643% -18% -130% 441% -167% -168%
Profit / {Loss] for the year -201% 251% -10% 107% 1334% -242% -36%
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Key Financial Information

INVESTOR INFORMATION Unit 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit Ratio % 17.22 12.46 7.65 19.97 16.87 12.29
MNet Profit / {Loss) to Sales % 2.86 (2.9 (4.27) 292 0.24 {4.32)
EBITDA Rs.inkn 2,985 2,062 867 3,897 2,902 1,793
EBITDA to Sales % 13.06 9.26 3.64 14.60 14.62 10.62
Operating Leverage Ratio Mo. of Times 64.46 (47.53) 12.05 3.58 11.23 25.55
Return on Equity % 10.96 (12.24) (17.11) 10.34 081 (11.87)
Return on Capital Employed % 4.44 {©.14) ©.44) 497 0.36 {4.94)
Liquidity Ratios

Cash Flow from Operations to Sales MNo. of Tires 0.19 0.01 0.12 0.17 0.14 0.28
Cash to Current Liabilities Mo. of Tirres 0.11 {0.08) 0.05 0.0¢ 0.10) {0.06)
Current Ratio MNo. of Times 0.79 0.50 0.58 0.71 0.57 0.52
Quick Ratio MNo. of Tires 0.32 0.18 0.20 0.27 017 0.15
GCapital Structure

Interest Cover Ratio MNo. of Times 2.27 0.c& -0.35 1.98 1.10 0.36
Long-term Debt to Equity Ratio MNo. of Times 1.47 0.22 1.03 1.08 1.22 1.40
Weighted Average Cost of Debt % 9.16 9.09 10.25 11.21 11.21 10.9¢
Financial Leverage % 161 214.09 163.58 151.49 18698 19277
Price to Book Ratio Rs. 0.50 0.29 0.30 0.35 0.27 0.20
Earning Assets to Total Assets % 76 76% 76% 76% 7% 81%
Activity / Turnover Ratios

Fixed Assets Turnover MNo. of Tires 1.43 1.37 1.41 1.44 1.16 0.21
Total Assets Turnover MNo. of Times 0.67 0.59 0.59 0.68 0.57 0.50
Inventory Turnover MNo. of Days 57.54 o64.04 58.20 58.45 59.23 55.77
Debtor Turnover MNo. of Days 6.14 7.54 818 5.44 377 7.35
Creditor Turnover MNo. of Days 158.4 199.91 165.00 151.35 16488 123.05
Operating cycle MNo.ofDays  (94.72) (128.62) 97.92) (@747 (101.88) (59.93)
Investment / Market Ratios

Murmber of Outstanding Shares at Year End MNo. in kn 663 663 663 663 663 663
Earnings Per Share - Basic and Diluted Rs. 0.99 {0.98) (1.53) 1.08 0.07 (1.10)
Price Earning Ratio Mo. of Times 5.36 Q.37 (12.76) 8.05 0.62 (1429
IMarket Value Per Share (at the end of the vear) Rs. 18.46 10.44 12.00 13.41 10.12 7.34
IMarket Value Per Share (highest during the year) Rs. 12.00 14.14 17.25 14.55 13.82 15.87
IMarket Value Per Share {lowest during the year) Rs. 8.20 7.9 10.65 8.50 8.20 7.15
Break up Value Per Share Rs. 9 8.00 8.96 10.46 9.35 9.26
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Share Price Sensitivity Analysis

During the year, 709.5 Mn shares were traded at the Karachi Stock Exchange. Initially, the share price could not
maintain parity with the index, however, the trajectory of stock price picked up towards the start of fourth quarter. The
uptick in value can be attributed to the increased Vinyl Chain core margins, and optimisation in operational
efficiencies. The average price of the Company share based on daily closing rates was Rs. 10.23 while 52 week low /
high was Rs. 8.2 - 18.45 per share respectively.

Share Price and KSE 100 Index in 2016

Stock Price Movement Mn Shares
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PVC - Ethylene Margins

PVC constitutes a significant portion of revenue at EPCL. The profitability of Vinyl Chain is largely a function spread
between PVC & Ethylene prices. The movement of PVC and Ethylene prices moulded to benefit bottom line of the
Company. The improvement in the margins was lamgely translated towards year end 2016 as the Company benefited
from increasing PVC prices and relatively stable Ethylene prices. This trend is also reflected in the share price since
4Q °16.

Plant Operations

Stable plant operations lead to higher production and efficiency gains. Disruptions at production facilities negatively
impact the Company’s financial performance and have the potential to impact share price adversely. During 2016,
EPCL demonstrated strong operational performance and achieved highest ever VCM & PVC production. Caustic Soda
Unit also performed well post rehabilitation measures. The overall operations of the Company remained smooth and
strong throughout the year.

Interest Rate

The Company has a sizeable debt on its books and is, therefore, dependent on interest rate movements. In case of
upward movement in interest rates, profitability can be dented and can, therefore, have a negative impact on share price.

Exchange Rate volatility

Major proportion of the Company’s profitability is sensitive to exchange rate. The Company’s primary raw materials
prices are denominated in Dollar, therefore, any volatility in exchange rate can potentially impact the business. The
Company also has Dollar based liabilities, which are sensitive to movements in exchange rate. The Company has
robust Treasury Management to manage exchange rate risk. Downside risk due to currency fluctuation is mitigated
through forward contracts depending on availability.
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Graphical Presentation
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engropolymer &chemicals

statement of compliance

with the code of corporate governance
For the year ended December 31, 2016

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Govemnance (the CCG) contained in Regulations of the
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for the purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby a listed company is
managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

1; The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors representing minority
interests on its Board of Directors. As at December 31, 2016 the Board included the following members:

Category Name
Independent Directors Asad Said Jafar
Feroz Rizvi
Zafar Hadi
Executive Director/{CEC} Imran Anwer
Non-Executive Directors Kimihicle Ando

Shahzada Dawecod
Shoichi Ogiwara
Ghias Khan

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence under clause i(b} of the CCG. Of the non-executive directors,
Mr. Ghias Khan is an executives in other Engro Group Company.

2. The Directors have confirmed that none of them are serving as a Director on meore than seven listed companies, including
this Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable.)

3. All the resident Directors of the Company are registered as tax payers and none of them have defaulted in payment of any
loan to a banking company, a DF| or an NBFI, or being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared as a defaulter
by that stock exchange.

4, Three casual vacancies cccurred on the Board on October 8, November 7 and November 30, 20186, The casual vacancy

occurring on November 30, 2016 was filled by the directors within 9 days. While the remaining two vacancies will be filled
up in due course, within the prescribed time limit.

5. The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct’ comprising of Ethics and Business Practices policies and has ensured
that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

6. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company.

A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has
been maintained.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including appointment and
determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEQ and the mesting fees payable to the
non-executive directors, have been taken by the Board.

8. All meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written
notices of the Board meetings, along with the agenda and working papers were circulated at least seven days before
the meetings, except for a meeting held on a short notice to discuss urgent matters. The minutes of the meetings were
appropriately recorded and circulated.

9. Seven of the directors have already completed the directors training course conducted by the Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance (PICG). One of the directors will be attending the course in the ensuing year,
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10.

131

12,
13.

14.
15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

21.

24,
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There has been no new appointment of the CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Intemal Audit. The remuneration of the
CFC, Company Secretary and Head of Intemal Audh has been approved by the Board.

The Directors' report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the CCG and fully describes
the sallent matters required 1o be disclosed.

The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by the CEC and CFO before approval of the Board.

The Dirgctors, CEQ and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that disclosed in the
pattern of shareholding.

The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the CCG.

The Board has formed and Audit Committee. Upto Novemlber 07, 2016 the Committes compriaed of four members of
whom two were non-executive directors and two were independent direciors and the Chairman of the Commitiee was an
independent director. Due to resignation of Ms. Naz Khan a new member will be nominated on the Commitiee in due course.

The meetings of the Audit Commitiee were held at least once in every quarter prior 1o approval of interim and final results
of the Company and as required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the committee have been formed and advised to
the committee for compliance.

The Beard has formed & Human Resource and Remuneretion Committes, i.e. the Board Compensation Committes.
Upto November 30, 2016 it comprised of four members, of whom three were non-executive directors and one was an
independent director and the Chairman of the Committee was a non-executive director. Due to resignation of Mr. Khalid
Siraj Subhani, a new members will ba nominated on the Committas in duse course.

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function manned by suitably qualified and experienced personnel that are
involved in the internal audit function on a full time basis.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality
control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAF), that they or any of the partners of
the firm, thelr spouses and minar chlldren do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all Its partners are In
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of athics as adopted by the ICAP.

The stanntory audhors or the persons assoclated with them have not been appolmied to provide other services except In
accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confimmed thet they have cbserved IFAC guidslines in this regard.

The ‘closed perlod’, prior 1o the announcement of Interim/final resulis, and business declslons, which may materally affect
the market price of compeny’s securities, was determined and intimated to directors, employees and stock exchange(s).

Materalfprice senslive Informatlon has been disseminated among all market particlpants at once through stock
exchange(s).

The Company has complled with the requirements relating to malntenance of reglster of persons having access to Inslde
imfarmation by designated senior management officer in a timely manner and maintained proper record including basis
far inclusion ar exclusion of names of persens from the said list.

Wae confirm that all ather maaterial principles enshrined in the CCG have besn complied with,

NS

Ghlas Khan Imran Anwer
Chaimnan President & Chisef Executive
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review report to the members
on statement of compliance

with best practices of code of corporate governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate Governance
{the Code) prepared by the Beard of Directors of Engre Polymer and Chemicals Limited {the Company) for the year ended
December 31, 2016 to comply with the Code comtained in the Regulations of Pakistan Steck Exchange Limited (formerly Karachi
Stock Exchange, in which the Lahore and Islamabad stock axchanges have merged), where the Company is listed.

The responslibliity for compllance with the Code Is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsiblifty Is to review,
to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the Staternent of Compliance reflects the status of the
Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Code and report if it does not and o highlight any non-compliance with the
requirements of the Code. A review ig limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Code.

As part of our audit of financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control
systems sufflelent to plan the audit and develop an effactive audit approach. We are not required to conslder wheather the Board
of Directors’ stetement on intemal control covers all risks and controls or to forrm an opinion on the sffectivenass of such internal
conirols, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place
before the Board of Directors, for their review and approval of its related party transactions distinguishing between transactions
carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions and tfransactions which are not executed at arm'’s
length price, recording proper justification for using such alternate pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of requirement to the extent of approval of related perty transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation
of the Audlt Committee. We have not carrled out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactlons were
undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us tc believe that the Statement of Compliance does
not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as
applicable to the Company for the year ended December 31, 2016.

§! P—— S
T
Charterad Accountants

Karachi
Dated: March 9, 2017
Engagement Partner: Waaas A. Shelkh

{A. F. FERGUSON & CO., Chartered Accouniants, o member firm of the the Pw(C network
State Life Bullding No. 1-C, LI Chundrigar Rouad, P.O. Bax 4716, Rarachl-74000, Pukistan
Tel: +92 (21} 32426682-6/32426711-5; Feoe: +92 (21) 32415007/ 32427938/ 32424 740; <www.pwe.com/ pk>

mKARACHI m L AHORE =S| AMABAD
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auditors’ report
to the members

Woe have audited the annexed balance shest of Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited (the Company) as at December 31, 2016
and the related profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and staternent
of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended and we state thet we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belisf, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management o establish and maintain a systern of internal control, and prepare and
present the ebove said statements in conformity with the approved eccounting standards and the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. These standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the above seid statements are free of any material
misstatemnant. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the above said
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant estimates made by management, as well as,
evaluating the overall presentation of the above said statemenis. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
apinion and, after due verification, we report that:

{a} in our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984;
(b) in our opinion:

{i} the balance sheet and profit and loss account together with the notes thereon, have been drawn up in conformity with
the Companies Crdinance, 1984, and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in accordance with
accounting policies consistently applied;

{ii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Company's business; and

{ii) the business conducted, investments made end the expenditure incurred during the year were in accordance with
the objects of the Company;

(e} in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the balance sheet, profit
and loss account, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan,
and give the information required by the Companies Ordinance, 1984, in the manner so required and respectively give a
true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at December 31, 2016 and of the loss, total comprehensive loss,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended; and

{d) in our opinion, no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1880 (XVIIl of 1980).

(] P—_ S
T

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Dated: March 9, 2017

Engagement Pariner: Wagas A. Shelkh

{A, F. FERQUSON & 0., Chartered Accountants, a member flirm of the the PuwC network
Siate Life Bullding No. 1-C, LI Chundrigar Road, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/ 32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/ 32427938/ 32424740; <wuny.pwe.com/ pic»
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engropolymer & chamicals

balance sheet

as at december 31, 2016

{Amounts in thousand) Note: 2016 2015
—— Rupees

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 4 16,008,366 16,248,080

Intangibles 5 90,855 90,345

Long temn investment - at cost 8 50,000 50,000

Long term loans and advances 7 69,971 66,372

Deferred taxation 8 549,328 908,103

16,768,520 17,363,870

Current Assets

Stores, spares and loose toals 9 1,645,381 1,639,344

Stock-in-trads 10 3,024,268 2,941,206

Trade debts - considered good 11 456,396 436,852

Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 12 431,435 390,511

Taxes recoverable 13 1,122,953 1,115,596

Short term investments 14 740,000 300,000

Cash and bank balances 15 371618 154,778
7,892,049 §,878,288

TOTAL ASSETS 24 460,569 24,242 168

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Sharae capital 16 6,634,688 6,634,688

Share premium 964,029 864,029

Hedging resarve {1,475) {11,993)

Accumulated loss {1,628,905) {2,283,693)
5,968,337 5,303,031

Non-Current Liabilities

Long term berrowings 17 8,750,000 5,262,612

Derivative financial instruments 18 - 17,382
8,750,000 5,279,994

Current Liabilities

Current portion of long term borrowings 17 416,903 3,064,064

Derivative financial instruments 18 2,107 23,982

Service benefit obligations 19 45,622 38,976

Short term bomrowings 20 414,638 3,026,180

Trade and other payables 21 6,722,102 6,300,942

Accrued interest / mark-up 22 11,006 56,116

Provisions 23 2,129,764 1,148,873
9,742,232 13,669,133

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 24,460,569 24,242,158

Contingencies and Commitments 24

The annexad notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Imran Anwer Kimlhide Ando
Presldent & Chlef Executive Diractor
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profit and loss account

for the year ended december 31, 2016

[Amounts In thousand except for Profit / {Loss) per share] Note
Net revenue 25
Cost of sales 26
Giross profit

Distribution and marketing expenses 27
Administrative expenses 28
Other operating expenses 29
Other income 3o

Operating profit
Finance costs A

Profit / (Loss) before taxation

Taxation 32
Profit / (Loss) for the year
Profit / (Loss) per share - basic and diluted 33

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financiel stetements.

Imran Anwer
President & Chisef Executive
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2016 2015
Rupess

22,854,024 22,263,742
(18,919,015) {19,490,499)
3,935,009 2,773,243
(1,179,769) (1,211,486)
(518,898) (515,348)
(149,457) (325,474)
20,358 57,489
2,107,245 778,414
(927,181) (1,144,194)
1,180,084 (365,780)
(525,276) (283,077)
654,788 (648,857)
0.89 {0.98)

Kimlhide Ando
Director

110



engropolymer & chamicals

statement of
comprehensive income

for the year ended december 31, 2016

{Amounts in thousand) Note

Prcfit / {Loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income :

Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss

Deferred tax charge releting to revaluation
of equlty related Items - share lssuance cost

ltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Hedging reserve
Loss arising during the year, net

Reclassffication adjustments for
losses included in profit or loss

Income tax relating to hedging reserve

Other comprehensive income
for the year - net of tax

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Imran Anwer
President & Chief Executive

111

20186 215
Rupees
654,788 {648,857)
= (4,946)
(698) {5.417)
15,973 32,449
{4,757) {9,268)
10,618 17,764
10,518 12,818
665,306 {636,039)

Kimihlde

Ando

Dirgctor
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statement of
changes In equity

for the year ended december 31, 2016

{Amounts in thousand)

RESERVES
CAPITAL REVENUE
Share Share Hedging Accumulated Total
Capital premium reserve loss
Rupees
Belance as at January 1, 2015 6,634,688 964,029 (29,757) {1,629,890) 5,939,070
Total comprehensive loss for the year
ended December 31, 2015 - - 17,764 (653,803) (636,039}
Balance as at December 31, 2015 6,634,688 964,029 {11,993) {2,283,693) 5,303,031
Total comprehensive income for the year
ended December 31, 2016 - - 10,518 654,758 665,306
Balance as at December 31, 2016 6,634,688 964,028 {1,475) {1,628,805) 5,968,357

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these financial statements.

el

Imran Anwar Kimihids Ando
President & Chief Executive Director
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engropolymer & chamicals

statement of cash flows

for the year ended december 31, 2016

{Amounts in thousand) Note 2016 2015
——— Rupees —————

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash gensrated from operations 36 4,306,837 224,788

Finance costs paid {885,669) {994,685)
Long term loans and advances {3,599) (21}
Retirement benefits paid {137.752) {161,593)
Income tax pald {178,615) {263,011)
Net cash generatad from / {utilized in} operating activities 3,101,202 {1,194,522)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases cof:

- property, planrt and equipment {629,683) {807,339)
- intangible asssts (14,974} (53,368}
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 8,855 10,898
Income on short term investment and bank deposits 815 33,828
Net cash utilized in investing activities {837,087) {615,884)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term borrowings 6,600,000 2,150,000
Repayments of long term borrowings {5, 795,736) {2,998,192)
Proceeds from short term borrowings 15,906 818,004
Repayments of short term borrowings {1,050,000) -
Nat cash utilized in financing activities {229,830) (29,008)
Net increase / {decrease) in cagh and cash equivalents 2,234,285 (1,833,504}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year {1,152,307) 687,197
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 37 1,081,978 {1,152,307)

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of thesse financial statements.

i

Imran Anwer Kimihide Ando
President & Chief Executive Director
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engropolymer &chemicals

notes to the
financial statements

for the year ended december 31, 2016

{Amounts in thousand)

1.

1.1

1.2

21

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan in 1997 under the Companies
Crdinance, 1984. The Company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The Company is a subsidiary of Engro Corporation Limited (the Holding Company) which is a subsidiary of Dawood
Hercules Corporation {the Ultimate Parent Company). The address of its registered office is 16th Floor, The Harbor Front
Building, HC-3 Marine Drive, Block 4 Clifton, Karachi. The Company’s principal activity is to manufacture, market and sell
Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC}, Vinyl Chloride Monomer (VCM), Caustic soda and other related chemicals. The Company is
also engaged in the supply of surplus power generated from its power plants to Engro Fertilizers Limited.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the histerical cost convention as modified by remeasurement of
certain financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Ordinance, 1984
(the Ordinance), directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the approved
accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are netified under the
provisions of the Ordinance. Wherever, the requirements of the Ordinance or directives issued by the SECP differ with
the requirements of these standards, the requirements of the Crdinance or the requirements of the said directives
take precedence.

The preparaticn of financial statements in conformity with the above requirements requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. The areas involving high degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

Initial application of a Standard, Amendment or an Interpretation to an existing Standard
a) Standards, amendmenis {o published standards and interpretations effective in 2016

The following amendments to published standards are mandatory for the financial year beginning January 1, 2018
and are relevant to the Company:

- IFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’. There are two amendments:

* Servicing contracts - If an entity transfers a financial asset to a third party under conditions which allow the
transferor to derecognize the asset, IFRS 7 requires disclosure of all types of continuing involvement that the
entity might still have in the transferred assets. The amendment provides guidance ahout what is meant by
continuing involvement. The amendment is prospective with an option to apply retrospectively.
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{Amounts in thousand)
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b)

» |nterim financial statements - The amendment clarifies that the additional disclosure required by the amendments
to IFRS 7, ‘Disclosure — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities’ is not specifically required for all
interim periods, unless required by IAS 34. The amendment is retrospective.

These amendments only affects the disclosures in the Company's financial statements.

- |AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ {effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016).
The amendments provide clarifications on a number of issues, including:

» Materiality — an entity should not aggregate or disaggregate information in a manner that obscures useful
information. Where items are material, sufficient information must be provided to explain the impact on the
financial position or performance.

» Disaggregation and subtotals — line items specified in IAS 1 may need to be disaggregated where this is
relevant to an understanding of the entity’s financial position or performance. There is also new guidance on the
use of subtotals.

» Notes — confirmation that the notes do not need to be presented in a particular order.

» OCl arising from investments accounted for under the equity method — the share of OCI arising from equity-
accounted investments is grouped based on whether the items will or will not subsequently be reclassified to
profit or loss. Each group should then be presented as a single line item in the statement of other comprehensive
income.

According to the transitional provisions, the disclosures in IAS 8 regarding the adoption of new standards/
accounting policies are not required for these amendments. These amendments only affects the disclosures in
the Company’s financial statements.

- |AS 34, ‘Interim financial reporting’. This amendment clarifies what is meant by the reference in the standard to
‘information disclosed elsewhere in the interim financial report’. The amendment also amends |AS 34 to require
a cross-reference from the interim financial statements to the location of that information. The amendment is
retrospective. This amendment only affects the disclosures in the Company's interim financial information.

The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the
financial year beginning on January 1, 2016 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the
Company's financial reporting and operations.

Standards, amendmenis fo published standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not
been early adopied by the Company

The following new standards and amendments to published standards are not effective for the financial year
beginning on January 1, 2016 and have not been early adopted by the Company:

- |IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (effective for pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2018). This standard is yet to
be notified by SECP. This standard replaces the guidance in |AS 39. It includes requirements on the classification
and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces
the current incurred loss impairment model. It is unlikely that the standard will have any significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements.

Annual Report | 2016



engropolymer & chemicals

{Amounts in thousand)

- IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ {effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018).
This standard is yet to be notified by SECP. This standard stupulates clarifications of the guidance on identifying
performance obligations, accounting for License of intellectual property and the principal versus agent assessment
(gross versus net revenue presentation). New and amended illustrative examples have been added for each of
those areas of guidance. The |ASB has also included additional practical expedients related to transition to the
new revenue standard. The Company is yet to assess the full impact of the standard; however, initial indicators
are that it may not affect the Company’s financial statements significantly.

- IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ (effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019). This standard is yet to be notified
by SECP. This standard replaces the current guidance in IAS 17 and is a far reaching change in accounting
by lessees in particular. Under I1AS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction between a finance lease
(on balance sheet) and an operating lease (off balance sheet). IFRS 16 now requires lessees 1o recognize a
lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. The IASB
has included an optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets; however, this
exemption can only be applied by lessees. For lesscrs, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the
IASB has updated the guidance on the definition of a lease {as well as the guidance on the combination and
separation of contracts), lessors will also be affected by the new standard. At the very least, the new accounting
rmodel for lessees is expected to impact negotiations between lessors and lessees. Under IFRS 16, a contract is,
or containg, a lease if the contract conveys the right to contrel the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. The Company is yet to assess the full impact of the standard.

- |IAS 7, ‘Cash flow statements: Disclosure initiative’ (effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017).
This amendment requires disclosure to explain changes in liabilities for which cash flows have been, or will be
classified as financing activities in the statement of cash flows. The amendment enly covers balance sheet items
for which cash flows are classified as financing activities. In case other items are included within the reconciliation,
the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities will be identified separately. A reconciliation of the
opening to closing balance is not specifically required but instead the information can be provided in other ways.
In the first year of adoption, comparative information need not be provided. It is unlikely that the amendment will
have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 12, ‘Income taxes’ on Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses (effective for
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017). These amendments on the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealized losses clarify how to account for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

- IFRIC 22, 'Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’ (effective for pericds beginning on or after
January 1, 2018). This IFRIC addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of transactions where there is
consideration that is denominated or priced in a forgign currency. The interpretation provides guidance for when
a single paymentfreceipt is made as well as for situations where multiple payments / receipts are mads. The
guidance aims to reduce diversity in practice. It is unlikely that the interpretation will have any significant impact
on the Company's financial statements.

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not vet effective
and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented here.

2.2 Property, plant and equipment
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, except capital work-in-progress. Cost

in relation to fixed assets signifies historical cost. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Capital work-in-progress is stated at historical cost less impairment, if any.
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Depreciation on assets is charged to income using the straight line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives at rates given in note 4.1. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which
the asset is put to use and no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to income during the year in which
these are incurred.

Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset's
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable armount and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in income. The recoverable amount is the
higher of fair value less expected sslling expenses and value in use. Reversal of impairment is effected in the case of
indications of a change in recoverable amount and is recognized in income, however, is restricted to the original cost of
the asset.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense in the period of disposal or retirement.

Capital spares

Spare parts and servicing equipment are classified as property, plant and equipment rather than stores, spares and loose
tools when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. Upon utilization, the capital spares and servicing
equipment are depreciated over their useful life, or the remaining life of principal asset, whichever is lower.

Intangible assets - Computer software

Costs associated with developing and maintaining computer software programmes are recognized as an expense as
incurred. Costs that are directly attributable to identifiable software and have probable economic benefits exceeding one
year, are recognized as an intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchase cost of software and related overhead cost.

Expenditure, which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its original specification and
useful life is recognized as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software.

Computer software cost freated as intangible assets are amortized from the date the software is put to use on straight-line
basis over a period of 5 to 10 years. The carrying amount of the intangible assets is reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount and is recognized
in income. Reversal of impairment losses are also recognized in income, however, is restricted to the original cost of
the asset.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost net of provision for impairment, if any. This investment is classified as long
term investment.
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26 Financial instruments
2.6.1 Financial assets
Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held to maturity and available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

a) At fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorized
as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets
if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, these are classified as non-current.

b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets. The Company’s loans and receivables comprise of
‘trade debts’, ‘loans and depoesits’, ‘other receivables’ and ‘cash and cash equivalents’ in the balance sheet.

c) Held to maturity

Held to maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity with a positive intention to hold to maturity.

d) Available for sale

Available for sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. These are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management
intends to dispose off the financial assets within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date — the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs except
for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available for sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to
maturity financial assets are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category
are presented in the profit and loss account within ‘other income / operating expenses’ in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at ‘fair value through profit or loss’ is recognized in the profit and loss account
as part of ‘other income’ when the Company's right to receive payments is established. Gains or losses on sale of
investments at “fair value through profit or loss’ are recognized in the profit and loss account as ‘gains and losses from
investment securities’.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized in
other comprehensive income are included in the profit and loss account as ‘gains and losses from investment securities’.
Interest on available for sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the profit and loss
account as part of “other income’. Dividends on available for sale equity instruments are recognized in the profit and loss
account as part of ‘other income’ when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.
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The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and
for unlisted securities), the Company establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis,
and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific inputs.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available for sale, a significant or prelonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available for sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit
or loss — is removed from equity and recognized in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognized in profit and
loss on equity instruments are not reversed through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities
Allfinancial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial liability is derecognized when the cbligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit
and loss account.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at weighted average cost except for items in transit which are stated at invoice value plus other charges
paid thereon till the balance sheet date. Provision is made for slow moving items older than ten years, and is recognized
in the profit and loss account.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost in relation to raw materials represent the weighted
average cost and in relation to finished goods and work-in-process represents weighted average cost comprising direct
materials, labour and related manufacturing overheads.

Cost of stock-in-transit repregents the invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon till the balance sheet date.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost of complstion and costs
necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sales. Provision is made for slow moving stocks, where considered necessary.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment Is established when there
is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the provision is charged to income. Trade debts and other receivables considered
irrecoverable are written-off.

Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of trade debts and other receivables in foreign currency
are added to the carrying amount of the respective receivables.
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2.10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows include cash in hand and in transit, balance with banks,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less and short term finances. Short term finances on the balance sheet are shown as part of current liabilities.

2.11  Share capital

Crdinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs, if any, directly attributable
to the issue of new shares or options are recognized in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.12 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are subseqguently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional / contractual right to defer
settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months after the balance sheet date.

2.13 Retirement and other service benefits

2.13.1 Gratuity fund
The employees of the Company participate in a defined contribution gratuity fund (the Fund) operated and managed
by Engro Corporation Limited - the Holding Company. As per the terms of the defined contribution plan, the Company
contributes to the Fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary. Annual contribution by the Company is charged to profit
and loss account.

2.13.2 Provident fund
The employees of the Company participate in defined contribution provident fund (the Fund) operated and managed
by Engro Corporation Limited - the Holding Company. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 10% of the basic
salary are made both by the Company and the employees to the Fund. Annual contribution by the Company is charged
to profit and loss account.

2.13.3 Compensated absences
Accrual is made for employees' compensated absences on the basis of accumulated leaves and the last drawn pay.

2.13.4 Cther benefits - Service Incentive Plan
Provision is made under a service incentive plan for certain category of experienced employees to continue in the Company's
employrment. The provision is made on the basis of management’s estimates of incentives to be paid to employees on fulfilliment
of criteria given in the incentive plan.

214  Trade and other payables
These are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount
of the respective liabilities.
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2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and itis
probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current
best estimate.

216  Taxation
2.16.1 Current

Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income for the year, determined in accordance with the prevailing law
for taxation on income, using prevailing tax rates. The charge for current tax also includes tax credits and adjustments, where
considered necessary, for prior years determined during the year or otherwise considered necessary for such years.

2.16.2 Deferred

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying ameounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability
is settled. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account except to the extent that it relates to the items
recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

217  Foreign currency transactions and translation

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
profit and loss account.

2.18 Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if se, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain
derivatives as either:

a) hedges of the fair value of recognized assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge); or

b) hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
{cash flow hedge}.

Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the profit

and loss account, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are aftributable to the
hedged risk.
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Cash flow hedge

On an ongoing basis, the Company assesses whether each derivative continues to be highly effective in offsetting
changes in the cash flows of hedged items. If and when a derivative is no longer expected to be highly effective, hedge
accounting is discontinued.

The sffective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognized in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately
in the profit and loss account.

Amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the prefit and loss account in the periods when
the hedged item affects profit or loss account i.e. when the transaction occurs. The gain or loss relating to the effective
portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is recognized in the profit and loss account or the cost of
the related asset for which the borrowing is being utilized. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for e.g. stock-in-trade or property, plant and equipment) the gains and losses
previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset.
The deferred amounts are ultimately recognized in cost of sales in case of stock-in-trade, or in depreciation in case of
property, plant and equipment.

When a hedging instrument expires of is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognized when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognized in the profit and loss account or the cost of the related non-financial assst {for e.g. stock-in-trace
or property, plant and equipment) as applicable. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the profit and loss account.

The fair values of various derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 18. Movements on
the hedging reserve are shown in statement of comprehensive income. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is
classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of hedged item is more than 12 months and as
a current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives
are classified as a current asset or liability.

2.19  Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized 1o the extent It is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and is
recognized on the following basis:

- sales are recognized when the product is dispatched to customers;
- revenue from the supply of electricity is recognized based upon the output delivered;
- dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment is established; and
- return on deposits is recognized on accrual basis using the effective interest method.
2.20 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs are directly
attributable to the acqguisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, in which case, such costs are capitalized as part
of the cost of that asset. Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
these are regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs.

221  Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company that makes strategic decisions.
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222 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved.
3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Company makes estimates
and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual
results. Estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustiment to the camying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are as follows:

3.1 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company reviews appropriateness of the useful life and residual value, where applicable, used in the calculation of
depreciation / amoertization on an annual basis. Further, where applicable, an estimate of recoverable amount of assets is made
for possible impairment on an annual basis. During the vear, the Company has reassessed the useful lives of its property, plant
and equipment as disclosed in note 4.1.1.

32 Derivative financial instruments designated as cash flow hedges

The Company reviews the changes in fair values of the derivative hedging financial instruments at each reporting date based on
the valuations received from the contracting banks. These valuations represent estimated fluctuations in the relevant currencies
[ interest rates over the reporting period and other relevant variables signifying currency and interest rate risks.

33 Stock-in-trade

The Company regularly reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution in the respective
carrying values. Net realizable value is determined with reference to estimated selling price less estimated expenditure
to make the sales.

34 Income taxes

In making the estimates for current income taxes payable by the Company, the management locks at the applicable
law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

35 Deferred tax asset

In assessing the recognition of the deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences, become
deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projects future taxable income
and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. The amount of deferred tax assets considered realizable,
however, could change in the near term if future estimates of projected taxable income during the carry forward period

are revised.
4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2016 2015
Rupees
Operating assets, at net book value - note 4.1 15,245,662 15,520,580
Capital work-in-progress - note 4.4 679,306 642,520
Capital spares 83,398 85,950
16,008,366 16,249,050
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41 Operating assets

Leasehold  Buildingon  Plant and Pipelines Furniture,
land leasehold  machinery fixtures and
land Water VOM Ethylene Gas equipment  Vehicles Total
Rupees
As at January 1, 2015
Cost 194,127 503682 22511487 398,968 26,122 50,315 33,849 186,651 98,908 24,004,109
Accumulated depreciation (36.954)  (120566) (5977.462)  (1B5,636) 19,753) (12,790) (10812)  (128813) (53,848) (7,531,634)
Net book value 157,173 383,116 15534025 233,332 6,369 37525 23,037 57,838 40,060 16,472,475
Year ended December 31, 2015
Opening net boak value 157,173 383,116 15,534,025 233,332 6,369 37,525 23,037 57,838 40,060 16,472,475
Additions - note 4.4 - 1,008 315,102 - - - - 10,683 2700 329,584
Disposals - note 4.3
Cost 5 - = - = = - (283) (33,421)|| (33.704)
Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - - 44 ‘ 21,335 21,379

- (239) (12,086)  {12,325)
Wiite offs - note 4.3

Cost - - - - - - - 125 - (125)
Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - - 79 - 79

- - - - - - - (46) - (48)
Depreciation charge - note 4.2 (3934)  (20471) (1,195745)  (19,999) (1,317) (2,516) (1,693)  {15828) {7,595) (1,269,108)
Net book value 153,239 363744 14653382 213333 5,052 35,009 21,344 52,398 23,079 15,520,580

As at January 1, 2016

Cost 184,127 504,781 22,826,588 398,968 26,122 50,315 33,848 196,926 68,187 24,208,864
Accumulated depreciation (40,888)  (141,087) (3173.207)  (185635) {21,070 (15.308) (12505)  (144,528) {45,108) (8,779.284)
Net book value 163,239 363,744 14,653,382 213,333 6,052 35,008 21,344 52,398 23,079 15,520,580

Year ended December 31, 2016

Opening net book value 153,239 363,744 14,653,382 213,333 5,052 35,009 21,344 52,398 23,079 15,520,580
Additions - note 4.4 - - 558,399 - - - - 37,050 - 585449
Disposals - note 4.3

Cost - = = - - - - (146) (21,838)|[ {(21,984)
Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - - 138 15,592 15,730 ‘

s = = = = - - @ (6,246) {6,254)
Write offs - note 4.3

Cost - - - - - - - {1,199) B R T
Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - - 813 - 813

- . . . . . - (381) . (381)
Depreciation charge - note 4.2 (3.933) (20851)  (791,136) {19,999) (1.317) (2.516) (1,693) (18.919) (3,368)  (863,732)
Net book value 149,306 342,893 14,420,645 193,334 3,735 32493 19,651 70,140 13,465 15245662
As at December 31, 2016
Cost 194,127 504,781 23,384,988 398,968 26,122 50,315 33,849 232,636 46,349 24,872,135
Accumulated depreciation {44821)  (161.888) (8,964.343)  (205,634) {22,387) (17.822) (14,198)  (162,496) (32,884) (9,626,473)
Net book value 149,306 342893 14,420,645 193,334 3,735 32493 19,651 70,140 13,465 15245662
Annual Rate of Depreciation (%) 2fo214  25t010 251025 3 5 3 5 51033 51025
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4.1.1

4.2

4.3

1125

During the year, as required under the Company's accounting policy, the Company re-assessed useful lives of its
plant and machinery. For this purpose, the Company engaged an independent expert / valuer and, based on the
assessment carried out by the expert, has increased the useful lives of relevant assets by 5 to 31 years. Based on
the report of the expert the useful lives of the relevant assets have been increased with effect from January 1, 2016.
This change in the accounting estimate of useful lives has been accounted for prospectively in accordance with the
requirements of IAS 8 - ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’, which has resulted in
reduction in depreciation charge for the year by Rs. 443,612 and increase in carrying value of property, plant and
equipment by the same amount.

Had there been no change in the accounting estimate of useful lives of plant and machinery, the profit after tax for the
current year would have been lower by Rs. 297,472,

2016 2015
Rupees —————
Depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales - note 26 849,672 1,247,190
Distribution and marketing expenses - note 27 3,348 3,839
Adrministrative expenses - note 28 10,712 18,079
863,732 1,269,108
The details of operating assets disposed / written-off during the year are as follows:
Cost  Accumulated  Net Proceeds Mode of Particulars of
depreciation  book disposal purchaser
value
Rupees
Vehicle 750 600 150 674 ) Wagar Ahmed
By auction
2 854 523 131 568 Imran Ahmed
Vehicle 8000 5,625 2,375 2,000 \ Jahangir Piracha
* 1,638 1,162 486 410 Under |kram Nabi
“ 1,648 1,030 618 464 Company Rahim Anwar
“ policy to : :
1,638 1,203 435 409 > existing/ Mudassir Bashir
“ 2,068 1,447 611 5156 separating Najam Saeed
" 2176 1,632 544 544 employees Syed Ali Akbar
= 1,638 1,203 435 410 J Muhamamd Imran Baloch
“ 1,638 1177 461 410 - M. Saad Khan
Under specific
21,838 15592 6,246 6,304 approval to
separating
Laptop 146 138 8 8 smployees Adeeb Malik
Computer equipment 1,194 813 381 343 } Written-off EFU Insuarance Claim
20186 23,178 16,543 6,635 6,655
2015 33,829 21,458 12,371 10,966
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4.4 Capital work-in-progress
Building on Plant and Furniture, Advfz;r:ces
leasehold machinery fixtures and volicloa® Total
land equipments T
Rupees
Year ended December 31, 2015
Balance as at January 1, 2015 4,975 343,163 1,859 16,562 366,659
Additions during the year 3,604 572,521 27,325 55,3684 658,814
Transferred to:
-Operating assets - note 4.1 {1,099) {315,102) {10,683) (2,700) (329,584)
-Intangible assets note § - - (53,369) {53,369)
Balance as at December 31, 2015 7,480 600,582 18,601 15,857 642,520
Year ended December 31, 2016
Balance as at January 1, 2016 7,480 600,582 18,601 15,857 642,520
Additions during the year 2,175 612,464 23,045 9,525 647,209
Transferred to:
-Operating assets - note 4.1 - {558,399) {37,050) - (595,448)
-Intangible assets - note 5 - - - (14,974) {14,974)
Balance as at December 31, 2016 9,655 654,647 4,596 10,408 679,306
5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - Computer software Rupees
As at January 1, 2015
Cost 107,686
Accumulated amortization {55,838)
Net book value
Year ended December 31, 2015
Opening net book value 51,847
Additions at cost - note 4.4 53,369
Amortization charge - note 28 {14,871)
Closing net book value 80,345
As at December 31, 2015
Cost 161,065
Accumulated amortization {70,710)
Net book value 5
Year ended December 31, 2016
Opening net book value 90,345
Additions at cost - note 4.4 14,974
Amortization charge - note 28 {14,464)
Closing net book value 90.855
As at December 31, 2016
Cost 176,029
Accumulated amortization {85,174)
Net book value 90,855
5.1 The cost is being amortized over a period of 5 to 10 years.
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7.3

7.4

7.5
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LONG TERM INVESTMENT

Subsidiary - at cost
Engro Polymer Trading (Private} Limited
5,000,000 (2015: 5,000,000) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
- Considered good

Executives - notes 7.1, 7.2, 7.4 and 7.5
Less: Current portion shown under current assets - note 12

Employees - notes 7.3 and 7.5
Less: Current portion shown under current assets - note 12

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans and advances to executives is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year
Add: Disbursements

Less: Repayments / Amortizations

2016 2015
—— Rupees ——————
50,000 50,000
101,029 101,023
(31,058) {34,653)
69,971 86,370
806 16
{806) (14}
- 2
69,971 66,372
2016 2015
—— Rupees ——————
101,023 99,847
57,079 70,725
(57,073) (69,549)
101,029 101,023

Balance at end of the vear

These include interest free loans and advances to executives for house rent, vehicles, home appliances and investments
given in accaordance with the terms of employment. Loans for house rent and investments are repayable in 18 to 36 equal
monthly installments. Loans for home appliances are repayable in 5 equal annual installments. Advances for vehicles are

charged to profit and loss account over a period of 4 years.

These include interest free loans to employees for home appliances and investments, given in accordance with the terms

of employment. Loans are repayable in accordance with the terms stated in note 7.2.

The maximum aggregate amount due from the executives at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 121,646 (2015:

Rs. 139,119). These are secured by way of promissory notes.

The carrying values of these financial assets are neither past due nor impairec. The credit quality of these financial assets

can be assessed with reference to no material defaults in recent history.
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2016 2015
Rupees
8. DEFERRED TAXATION
Credit balances arising due to:
- accelerated tax depreciation (3,178,960) {2,995,947)
Debit balances arising due to:
- recoupable carried forward
tax losses - note 8.1 2,778,309 3,424 568
- regoupable minimum furnover tax - note 8.2 168,659 -
- unpaid liabilities B7,783 70720
- provision for Gas Infrastructure Development
Cess and Special Excise Duty 618,568 325412
- provision for net realizable value of stock-in-trade 7,208 14,312
- provision for slow moving stores and spares 17,662 14,182
- fair value of hedging instrument 632 5,389
- share issuance cost, net to equity 49,467 49 467
3,728,288 3,904,050
549,328 908,103

8.1 Deferred income tax asset is recognized for tax losses available for carry-forward to the exdent that the realization of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The aggregate tax losses available for carry-forward as at Decermnber 31, 2016
amount to Rs. 9,261,030 (2015: Rs. 11,415,228).

8.2 During the year, the Company has recognized deferred tax asset on recoupable minimum turnover tax in respect of current year
amourting to Rs. 168,653 (2015: Nil) as the Company, based on its financial projections, expects to recoup itin the ensuing years.
In 2013, the High Court of Sindh, in respect of ancther company, overturned the interpretation of the Appellate Tribunal on Section
113 (2) (c) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and decided that minimurm tumover tax cannot be carried forward where there is
no tax paid on accourt of loss for the year or carried forward losses. The Company’s management is however of the view, duly
supported by the legal advisor, that the above order would not be maintained by the Suprerme Court, which the Company intends
to approach if required. Accordingly, the Company has recognized deferred tax asset on recoupable rminimum turnover tax.

2016 2015
Rupeses
9. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Consumable stores and spares 1,606,707 1,621,069
Less:
- Provision for slow moving stores and spares - note 9.1 61,326 52,525
- Stores and spares written-off - note 26 - 29,200
1,645,381 1,539,344
9.1 The movement in the provision for slow moving stores
and spares is as follows:
Balance at beginning of the year 52,525 28,023
Add: Recognized during the year - note 26 8,801 24,502
Balance at end of the year 61,326 52525
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10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

1.

1.2

11.3

129

2016 2015
Rupees
STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw and packing materials - notes 10.1 and 10.2 1,876,110 1,975,662
Work-in-process 2,635 23,5633
Finished goods - own manufactured product - notes 10.1 and 10.3 1,145,523 942,011
3,024,268 2,941,206
This includes stocks held at the storage facilities of the following parties:
- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited, a related party 345,812 459,663
- Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited 4,286 -
- Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited - 8,755
- Al-Rahim Trading Company (Private} Limited 14,083 108,297
- Al-Hamd Traders 1,581 -
365,762 576,715

This includes goods in transit amounting to Rs. 548,142 (2015: Rs. 416,837).

This includes carrying value of Poly Vinyl Chloride resin, net of realizable value reduction of Rs. 25,028 {2015:
Rs. 51,299).

2018 2015
Rupees
TRADE DEBTS - considered good
Secured - notes 11.1 and 11.2 291,581 301,035
Unsecured - note 11.2 164,815 135,817
456,396 436,852
These debts are secured by way of bank guarantees and letters of credit from customers.
Includes amounts due from the following related parties:
Aging Analysis
Upto 1 month 2 to 6 months 2016 2015
Rupees
Engro Fertilizer Limited 8,614 15,107 23,721 16,896
Engro Foods Limited 397 28 425 2,689
9,011 15,135 24,146 19,585

The carrying values of these financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. The credit quality of these financial assets
can be assessed with reference to no default in recent history.
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2016 2015
Rupees
12. LOANS, ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good
Current portion of long term loans and advances - note 7
- executives 31,068 34,653
- employees 806 14
31,864 34,667
Advances to employees 2,184 2,829
Advances to suppliers and others 54,735 71,605
Deposits 20,883 19,957
Prepayments 88,529 85,746
Receivable from Government of Pakistan
- Sales tax and Federal excise duty refundable 224,969 169,035
- Qctroi / duty claims 152 152
225,121 169,187
Due from related parties:
Engre Vopak Terminal Limited 8 1,800
Engre Foods Limited 39 7
Engro Powergen Limited 4,124 -
Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited 220 -
Engro Corporation Limited 290 2
Engro Foundation 7 -
Engro Powergen Qadirpur Limited 9 253
4,697 2,080
Other receivables 3,422 4,480
431,435 390,511
Considered doubitful
Custom duty claims refundable - note 12.1 18,043 18,043
Less: Provision for impairment - note 12.3 {18,043) {18,043)
Special Excise Duty (SED) refundable - note 12.2 36,687 36,687
Less: Provision for impairment - note 12.3 {36,687) {36,687)
431,435 390,511

12.1  The Custorns Appellate Tribunal, Karachi Bench, through its order dated October 31, 2011, disposed off the Company's
appeal filed on April 11, 2008 against the order of Collector of Customs, Port Muhammad Bin Qasirm, Karachi, for the
refund of custormn duty paid during the period June 16, 2006 to July 24, 2006 on imports of Vinyl Chloride Monomer
(VCM). The Tribunal was informed that all the aforementioned VCM consignments were released after the issuance
of SRO 565(1) / 2006 dated June 6, 2006 and the benefit of five percent duty reduction was also passed on to the
custormers. However, as the price of the Company's product was increased which is linked with international market,
the Tribunal inadvertently presumed that the said benefit had not been transferred to the custorners and passed an
order against the Company.

The Company has filed an appeal with the High Court of Sindh against the aforesaid order of the Tribunal. However,
based on prudence, the Company is maintaining full provision against the aforementioned custorm duty refundable till
such time that all available legal courses are exhausted.
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12.2  During the year 2007, Special Excise Duty (SED) amounting to Rs. 91,616 was paid on import of certain fixed assets.
Out of the total SED paid, an amount of Rs. 54,299 was adjusted through input claim in sales tax returns. Subsequently,
the rernaining amount of Rs. 36,687 could not be adjusted as the said cuty was disallowed as adjustment from output
tax under section 7 of Sales Tax Act, 1990. Therefore, the Company has fully provided the said amount on the basis of
prudence. However, the Company is pursuing the recovery of the remaining amount from the tax authorities based on the
view that the SED can be recovered as it was paid prior to the change in the Sales Tax Act.

12.3  As at December 31, 2016, receivables aggregating to Rs. 54,730 (2015: Rs. 54,730} were deemed to be impaired and
have been provided for in full, based on prudence. The remaining balances of loans, deposits, due from related parties
and other receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

13. TAXES RECOVERABLE
131 Taxvyear 2008

The Deputy Commiissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) through the order dated November 26, 2009 raised a tax demand of
Rs. 213,172. The demand arose as a result of additions on account of trading liabilities of Rs. 47,582 under section 34(5)
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance); disallowance of provision for retirement benefits of Rs. 5,899; adding
imputed interest on loans to employees and executives of Rs. 16,069 to income; disallowing finance cost of Rs. 134,414
and not considering adjustment of minimum tax paid for tax years 2004 to 2007 against the above demand.

The Company filed an appeal against the aforesaid order before the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals [CIR(A)], but
discharged the entire demand through adjustment against assessed refunds of Rs. 180,768 and paying the balance of
Rs. 32,404 ‘under protest’. Through his appellate order, the CIR(A) maintained certain additions aggregating Rs. 189,810
including finance cost amounting to Rs. 134,414 and remanded back the issue of imputed interest on loans to employees
and executives and directed the DCIR to allow credit of the minimum tax charged for the period of tax years 2004 o
2007. An appeal against the said appellate order was filed by the Company before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR). The departrment also filed an appeal against the said appellate order challenging the actions of the CIR(A).

In 2013, the ATIR issued an arder whereby the aforementioned appeal was disposed off by accepting Company's position
except for additions on account of trading liabilities to the extent of Rs. 20,280 and minimum turnover tax for tax years
2004 and 2007 to the extent of Rs. 19,692 and Rs. 7,300 respectively, which were maintained.

The Company filed a reference to the High Court of Sindh against the additions maintained by ATIR. Likewise, the tax
department has also filed reference to the High Court of Sindh against the order passed by the ATIR in favour of the
Company. The management of the Company, based on the advice of its tax consultant, is confident that the ultimate
outcorme of the aforementioned matters would be favorable and, accordingly, has not recognized the effects for the same
in these financial statements.
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13.2  Taxyear 2009

The DCIR through his order dated November 30, 2010 raised a tax demand of Rs. 163,206. The demand arose as a
result of disallowance of finance cost of Rs. 457,282; additions to income of trading liabilities of Rs. 21,859 under section
34(5) of the Ordinance; disallowance of provision for retirement benefits of Rs. 14,239, disallowance of provision against
Special Excise Duty refundable of Rs. 36,687; addition of imputed interest on loans to employees and executives of
Rs. 20,599 and not considering net loss.

The entire demand of Rs. 163,206 was adjusted against assessed tax refunds and an appeal was filed by the Company
before the CIR(A). Through his appellate order, the CIR{A) maintained certain additions aggregating to Rs. 493,271
including disallowance of finance cost amounting to Rs. 457,282 and remanded back the issue of imputed interest on
loans to employees and executives. An appeal against the said appellate order was filed before the ATIR. The depariment
also filed an appeal against the said appellate order challenging the action of CIR(A), regarding deletion of addition on
account of provision for the retirement banefits.

In 2013, the ATIR issued an order whereby the aforementioned appeal was disposed off by accepting Company’s position
except for additions on account of SED provision of Rg. 36,687 and imputed interest on loans to employees and executives
to the extent of Rs. 17,430, which were maintained.

The Company filed a reference to the High Court of Sindh against the additions maintained by ATIR. Likewise, the tax
departrment has also filed reference to the High Court of Sindh against the order passed by the ATIR in favour of the
Company. The management of the Company, based on the advice of its tax consultant, is confident that the ultimate
outcome of the aforementioned matters would be favorable and, accordingly, has not recognized the effects for the same
in these financial statements.

2016 2015
Rupees
14, SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Held to maturity
Term Deposits Receipts - note 14.1 740,000 300,000

141 These Term Deposits Receipts mature on January 28, 2017 and carry mark-up ranging from 6.15% to 7% (2015: 7.6%)

per annum.
2016 2015
Rupees
15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 919 886
Cash at bank:
- current accounts 36,284 39,164
- saving accounts - note 15.1 334,413 114,729
370,697 153,893
371,616 154,779

151  Includes Rs. 32,943 (2015: Rs. 36,679) held in foreign currency bank account.
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16.

16.1

17.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized capital

800,000,000 (2015: 800,000,000) ordinary shares

of Rs. 10 each

400,000,000 (2015: 400,000,000) preference shares

of Rs. 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
663,468,788 (2015: 663,468,788) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each, fully paid in cash - note 16.1

2015
Rupees
8,000,000 8,000,000
4,000,000 4,000,000
6,634,688 6,634,688

As at December 31, 2016, Engro Corporation Limited {the Holding Company) held 372,809,989 (2015: 372,809,989)

ordinary shares of Rs.10 each.

LONG TERM BORROWINGS, secured

Title

Master Istisna IV

Syndicated term finance |

Syndicated term finance |

Syndicated term finance V

Bilateral Loan |

International Finance Corporation
(IFC) (note 17.3)

Bilateral Loan Il

Bilateral Loan Il

Bilateral - IV {notes 17.1 and 17.4)

Bilateral - V (notes 17.1 and 17.4)

Bilateral - VI {notes 17.1 and 17.4}

Bilateral - VIl (notes 17.1 and 17.4)

Bilateral - VIIl (notes 17.1 and 17.4)

Subordinated loan from
Engro Corporation Limited (ECL)
(note 17.2)

Mark-up rate
per annum

& months KIBOR + 2.6%
6 months KIBOR +2.25%
6 months KIBOR + 3%

& months KIBOR + 1.5%
6 months KIBOR + 2%

6 months LIBOR + 2.6% to 3% 15 half yearly

6 months KIBOR + 1.35%
6 months KIBOR +1.35%
& months KIBOR + 0.8%
6 months KIBOR + 0.8%
6 months KIBOR + 0.8%
& months KIBOR + 0.8%
6 months KIBOR + 0.8%

3 months KIBOR + 3.5%

Current portion shown under current liabilities

133

Installments 2016 2015
Number Commencing Rl
from
Single April 2016 - 100,000
13 half yearly November 2010 - 1,385,616
13 half yearly June 2010 - 212,085
8 half yearly June 2015 - 991,605
6 half yearly June 2016 - 544,291
June 2010 416,903 1,246,479
6 half yearly June 2017 - 848,300
6 half yearly June 2017 - 848,300
10 half yearly July 1, 2019 1,500,000 -
10 half yearly July 1, 2019 1,500,000 -
10 half yearly June 1, 2019 750,000 -
10 half yearly June 28, 201% 1,250,000 -
6 half yearly June 1, 2019 750,000 -
Repayable full in five years 3,000,000 2,150,000
9,166,903 8,326,676
(416903)  (3.064,064)
8,750,000 5,262,612
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171

17.2

17.3

17.4

18.

18.1

18.2

During the year, the Company after negotiations with the relevant banks / financial instifutions pre-paid all its existing
borrowings, except for loans from IFC and subordinated loan from ECL (the Holding Company), and obtained new
finances from these financial institutions at renegotiated terms at lower interest / mark-up rates to re-profile its balance
sheet . The Company has obtained berrowings of Rs. 5,750,000 under the new financing arrangements.

The Company entered into a financing arrangement with the Holding Company to obtain a subordinated facility of
Rs. 4,000,000 payable at the end of five years from the date of disbursement. The loan carries markup at the rate of
3 months KIBOR plus 3.5% per annum, payable on quarterly basis. As at December 31, 2016 Rs. 3,000,000 (2015:
Rs. 2,150,000) have been drawn from the available facility.

These facilities are secured by a ranking hypothecation charge over the present and future movable assets of
the Company.

These finances are secured by way of hypothecation charge over all the present and future moveable fixed assets
(excluding land and building) of the Company. The charges have been initially registered as ranking charges, to be
upgraded to pari pasu charge in a period of upto 120 days from the date of first drawdown.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at December 31, 2016, the Company has outstanding interest rate swap agreements with banks for notional
amounts aggregating US$ 2,666 (2015: US$ 8,000) to hedge its interest rate exposure on floating rate foreign currency
borrowings from International Finance Corporation {IFC). Under the swap agreements, the Company would receive six
month USD-LIBOR on respective notional amounts and will pay fix rates, which will be settled semi-annually. Details of
these swap agreements are as follows:

Notional Amounts . s 2 Fair Values as at
S1E - Effective Termination Fixed 2016 2015
Us$ Date Date Rate % Rupees

1,000 3,000 December 15, 2008 June 15, 2017  3.385 790 7,602
333 1,000 June 15, 2009 June 15, 2017 3.005 264 2,132
1,000 3,000 June 15, 2009 June 15, 2017  2.795 790 5,731
333 1,000 June 15, 2009 June 15,2017  2.800 263 1,917
2,666 8,000 2,107 17,382

As at December 31, 2016, the Company has outstanding Exchange Rate Forward agreements with banks for amounts
aggregating Nil (2015: US$ 24,471) to neutralize exchange rate exposure on outstanding foreign currency payments
under the terms of supplier credit. Under the aforementioned agreements, the Company would pay respective rate
agreed at the initiation of the agreements on settlement dates. As at December 31, 2016 the fair value of these derivatives
is Nil (2015 : Rs. 23,982).
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19,

19.1

20.

201

20.2

203

204
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2016 2015
Rupees
SERVICE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Service incentive plan - note 19.1 45,622 38,976

This represents provision for annual employment benefit payable to eligible employees who have successfully completed
3 years vesting period with the Company.

2016 2015
Rupees
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Running finance utilized under mark-up
arrangements - note 20.1 29,638 527,086
Export refinance facility - note 20.2 300,000 750,000
Money market loans - note 20.3 - 1,080,000
Loan from Subsidiary - note 20.4 85,000 69,094
Sub-ordinated loan from Engro Corporation
Limited - note 20.5 - 600,000
414,638 3,026,180

The aggregate facilities for running finance available from various banks, representing the sales price of all mark-up
arrangements, amounted to Rs. 3,300,000 (2015: Rs. 3,050,000). The corresponding purchase price is payable on various
dates during the ensuing year. Mark-up is chargeable at rates net of prompt payment rebate, ranging from relevant period
KIBOR plus 0.9% to 1.25% (2015: relevant pericd KIBOR plus 0.9% to 1%) per annum. During the year, the mark-up rates,
net of prompt payment rebate, ranged from 7.02% to 7.52% (2015: 7.44% to 11.15%) per annum. These facilities are
secured by a floating charge over stocks and book debts of the Company.

This represents export refinancing facility carrying mark-up at the rate of 3% (2015: 4.5%) on rollover basis for six months.
This facility is secured by a floating charge over stocks and book debts of the Company.

These represent money market loans obtained from commercial banks carrying mark-up ranging from 6.9% to 7.06% per
annum. These loans were obtained for a period ranging from 7 to 40 days and were secured by a hypothecation charge
over the current assets of the Company.

This represents loan from Engro Polymer Trading (Private) Limited, the wholly owned subsidiary. The loan is subordinated

to other financial arrangements (cther than trade creditors) and carries markup at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 3.5%
per annum, payable quarterly.
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20.6

21.

22,

23.

This represented short term loan from Engro Corporation Limited (the Holding Cormpany) for meeting the working capital
requirements. The loan is subordinated o the finances provided to the Company by its banking creditors and carries

mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 3.5% per annum, payable quarterly.

The facility for opening letters of credit as at December 31, 2016 aggregates to Rs. 11,800,000 (2015: Rs. 13,175,000).
The amount utilized thereagainst as at December 31, 2016 was Rs. 5,503,000 (2015: Rs. 4,436,000). The facilities carry

commission at the rate of 0.05% to 0.1% flat (2015: 0.05% to 0.1% flat).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other creditors - note 21.1
Accrued ligbilities

Advances from customers - note 21.1
Retention money

Security deposits

Workers' welfare fund

Withholding tax payable

Workers' profits participation fund - note 29
Others

Includes due to following related parties:
- Engro Corporation Limited
- Mitsubishi Corporation
- Engro Fertilizers Limited
- Engre Vopak Terminal Limited
ACCRUED INTEREST / MARK-UP
Finance cost accrued on:

- long term borrowings

- short term borrowings

PROVISIONS

Provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess
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2016 2015
Rupees

4,964,248 4,474,429
1,282,790 1,239,837
291,480 437,624
10,895 11,887
28,955 41,937
49,764 43,764
- 4,858
62,424 -
31,635 46,606
8,722,102 6,300,842
i 392
2,682,171 2,195,710
108 485
- 93,6564
2,682,272 2,290,241
858 27.435
10,237 28,681
11,006 56,116
2,129,764 1,148,873
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Under the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2011, the Government of Pakistan levied Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess (GIDC) on all industrial gas consumers at the rate of Rs. 13 per MMBTU. Subsequently, the GIDC
rates were enhanced through netifications under OGRA Crdinance 2002, Finance Act, 2014 and GIDC Ordinance 2014
against which the Company has obtained ad-interim stay orders from the Sindh High Court. However, on prudent basis
the Company recognized a provision of Rs. 1,345,789 till May 21, 2015.

On May 22, 2015 the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Act, 2015 was promulgated whereby cess rate of
Rs.100 per MMBTU and Rs.200 per MMBTU were fixed for industrial and captive power consumption, respectively. The
GIDC Act, 2015 was made applicable with immediate effect superseding the GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC Ordinance, 2014.

The Company based on the advice of its legal counsel, is of the view that as per GIDC Act, 2015, the uncollected portion
of cess levied through GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC Ordinance 2014, shall not be collected from the industrial sector.
Therefore, the Company reversed the provision relating to industrial portion of GIDC amounting to Rs. 753,664 for the
period prior to promulgation of GIDC Act, 2015 and retained GIDC provision amounting to Rs. 592,125 in respect of
captive power.

Further, the Company has also obtained ad-interim stay order against the GIDC Act, 2015 from the High Court of Sindh.
This stay order has restrained Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGCL) from charging and / or recovering the cess
under the GIDC Act, 2015 il the final decision on this matter. However, based on prudence, the Company has recognized
a further provision of Rs. 1,577,639 pertaining to the period subsequent to promulgation of GIDC Act, 2015.

24, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

241  The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) through order dated January 8, 2016, raised a sales tax demand of
Rs. 524,589 on account of alleged short payment of sales tax due on the finished products that would have been produced
and sold from the excess wastage of raw material. The Company filed there against before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue Appeals [CIR(A)] on the grounds that the order passed against the Company was absolutely baseless as the
DCIR had used inappropriate theoretical assumptions for calculating the sales tax liability. The CIR(A) through his order
dated March 10, 2016, has decided the matter in favor of the Company. However, the department has challenged the said
order of CIR(A} before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). No proceedings regarding this matter has been carried
out by ATIR, till the year end. The management of the Company, based on the advice of its tax consultant, is confident of
favourable outcome of this matter, accordingly, no provision has been made in this respect.

242  The aggregate facilities for issuance of performance guarantees by the banks on behalf of the Company as at December
31, 2016 amounts to Rs. 1,156,750 (2015: Rs. 1,098,000). The amount utilized there against as at December 31, 2016 is
Rs. 1,140,950 (2015: Rs. 1,097,280).

243 The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements with Al-Rahim Trading Company (Private) Limited and
Fatirma fertilizer, for storage and handling of Ethylene Di Chloride (EDC) and Caustic soda, respectively. The total lease
rentals due under these lease arrangements are payable in monthly installments till July 2019, The future aggregate lease
payments under these arrangements are as follows:

2016 2015
Rupees
Not later than 1 year 14,400 16,834
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 22,800 37.200
37,200 54,034

244  The Company has entered into various contracts with Engro Vopak Terminal Limited, a related party, for storage and
handling of Ethylene and Vinyl Chloride Monomer (VCM) valid till March, 2026 and December 2018, respectively and
Ethylene Di-Chloride (EDC) valid till May 2018. Annual fixed cost payable to Engro Vopak Terminal Limited, under these
contracts, approximates to US § 9,165.
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2018 2015
Rupees
25. NET REVENUE
Gross local sales 26,542,263 23,997,674
Less:
- Sales tax 3,839,807 3,436,585
- Discounts 317,322 240,797
4,157 129 3677382
22,385,134 20,320,292
Export sales 415,758 1,872,443
Supply of electricity - note 25.1 53,131 71,007
22,854,024 22,263,742
251 Represents supply of surplus power to Engro Fertilizers Limited - a related party.
2016 2015
Rupees
26. COST OF SALES
Opening stock of work-in-process 23,533 21,632
Raw and packing materials consumed - note 26.1 10,874,303 11,277,158
Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 26.2 878,117 889,095
Fuel, power and gas - note 26.3 4,386,364 3,400,214
Repairs and maintenance 331,951 362,967
Depreciation - note 4.2 849,672 1,247,190
Consumable stores 312,977 314,741
Purchased services 187,020 165,669
Storage and handling 1,024,998 1,019,968
Training, conveyance and travelling 96,480 107,477
Communication, stationery and other office expenses 9,921 7,458
Insurance 110,825 95,478
Provision for slow moving stores and spares - note 9.1 8,801 24 502
Stores and spares written-off - note & - 29,200
Other expenses 30,190 24 068
19,101,629 18,965,186
Closing stock of work-in-process (2,835) (23,533)
Cost of goods manufactured 19,122 527 18,963,285
Opening stock of finished goods 942 011 1,469,225
Closing stock of finished goods (1,145,523) (942,011)
(203,512) 527,214
18,919,015 19,490,499

26.1 This is net of reversal of provision amounting to Nil {2015: Rs. 890,418} in respect of duty on import of raw materials.
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26.2 Includes Rs. 71,814 (2015: Rs. 81,352} in respect of staff retirement and other service benefits, referred to in note 34.

26.3 This is net of reversal of provision amounting to Nil {2015: Rs. 753,664}, in respect of GIDC of prior periods, as disclosed

in note 23.
2016 2015
Rupees
27. DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 27.1 123,923 143,706
Sales promotion 124,043 108,706
Product transportation and handling 860,571 899,332
Rent, rates and taxes 29,100 23,067
Purchased services 13,237 8,261
Depreciation - note 4.2 3,348 3,839
Training, conveyance and travelling 12,032 10,868
Communication, stationery and other
office expenses 4,139 3,209
Others 9,376 10,508
1,179,769 1,211,496

271 Includes Rs. 10,213 (2015: Rs. 21,414} in respect of staff retirement and other service benefits, referred to in note 34.

2016 2015
Rupees
28, ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 28.1 265,958 252,208
Rent, rates and taxes 57,945 65,802
Purchased services 101,959 97,031
Insurance 2,751 631
Depreciation - note 4.2 10,712 18,072
Amortization - note 5 14,464 14,871
Training, conveyance and travelling 27,612 26,285
Comrmunication, stationery and other office expenses 18,690 18,500
Others 18,805 21,841
518,896 515,348

281 Includes Rs. 19,110 (2015: Rs. 15,698} in respect of staff retirement and other service benefits, referred to in note 34.
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2016 2015
Rupees
29, OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Legal and professional charges 23,354 15,435
Auditors’ remuneration - note 29.1 4,153 6,127
Donations - notes 29.2 and 29.3 4,575 11,127
Workers' welfare fund 6,000 -
Workers' profits participation fund 62,424 -
Loss on disposal of operating assets - 1,429
Foreign exchange loss - net 38,181 291,310
Operating assets written-off, net - note 4.1 - 46
Others 10,770 -
149,457 325,474
291  Auditors’ remuneration
Fee for:

- Annual statutory audit 825 985
- Half yearly review 185 235

- Review of compliance with Code of
Corporate Governance a0 40
Taxation and other advisory services 2,823 4,594
Reimbursement of expenses 280 273
4,153 6,127

29.2 Includes donation to Engro Foundation - a related party amounting to Nil (2015: Rs. 2,000) which is a related party of the
Company as at year end.

29.3 The Directors and their spouses do not have any interest in any donees except for Mr. Imran Anwer who is the trustee of
Engro Foundation.

2016 2015
Rupees
30. OTHER INCOME

On financial assets
Income on bank deposits 15 26,680
Income from short term investments - 7,248
On nonfinancial assets
Profit on disposal of operating assets 20 -
Scrap sales 11,582 6,965
Others 7,841 16,596

20,358 57,489
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31.

32

321

32.2

141

2016 2015
Rupees
FINANCE COSTS
Interest / mark-up on:
- leng term borrowings 642,454 781,117
- short term borrowings 139,948 142,606
- running finances 58,247 34,293
840,649 958,016
Foreign exchange (gain) / loss on borrowings (2,400) 62,412
Guarantee commission 1,255 4,247
Bank charges and others 87,677 119,519
927,181 1,144,194
TAXATION
Current
- for the year - note 32.1 172,816 191,211
- for prior years (1,558) 48,063
171,258 239,274
Deferred
- for the year 354,018 43,803
- for prior years - -
354,018 43,803
525,276 283,077

Represents minimum tax at the rate of 1% (2015: 1%) on the turnover, in accordance with section 113 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001.

Relationship between tax expense and accounting loss

2016 2015
Rupees
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 1,180,064 (365,780)
Tax calculated at applicable rate of 31% (2015: 32%) 365,820 (117,050)
Tax effect of presumptive tax regime and income subject
to lower tax rates (9,160) (39,046)
Prior year tax charge / (reversal), net (1,558) 48,063
Effect of inadmissible expenses / permanent differences 1,795 4,505
Effect of non-recognition of deferred
tax on minimum turnover tax - 172,487
Derecognition of deferred tax asset on
minimum turnover tax - 154,348
Impact of change in tax rates 170,794 58,161
Others (2,415) 1,609
525,276 283,077
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33. LOSS PER SHARE - Basic and diluted

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, which is based on:
2016 2015
Rupees

Profit / Loss for the year 654,788 {648,857)

Number in thousands

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 663,469 663,469

34. RETIREMENT AND OTHER SERVICE BENEFITS

34.1  Provident fund
In 2013, the Company replaced its provident fund with the provident fund (the Fund) operated and managed by Engro
Corporation Limited - the Holding Company. Accordingly, the following infermation is based on the |atest audited financial
statements of the Fund maintained by the Holding Company as at June 30, 2015 and unaudited financial statements as
at June 30, 2016.

34.1.1 Details of the Fund

June 30, June 30,
2016 2015
Rupees
Size of Fund 3,205,658 3,161,499
Cost of the investment made 2,800,793 2,333,996
Percentage of investments made 94% 87%
Fair value of investments 3,015,867 2,736,879

34.1.2 Break-up of investments in terms of amount and percentage of size of the Fund is as follows:

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Description Investments Percentage Investments Percentage

in Rupees of investment in Rupees of investment

made made

National savings scheme 790,505 26% 223,037 8%
Government securities 702,336 23% 1,045,090 38%
Listed securities 927,211 31% 1,164,311 43%
Balances within savings account 595,815 20% 304,441 11%

3,015,867 100% 2,736,879 100%
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34.1.3 The investments out of the provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

34.1.4 During the year Rs. 55,632 (2015: Rs. 55,128} has been recognized in the profit and loss account in respect of the defined

contribution provident fund, maintained by Engro Corporation Limited, the Holding Company.

34.2 During the year Rs. 42,625 (2015: Rs. 60,373} has been recognized in the profit and loss account in respect of the defined

contribution gratuity fund, maintained by Engro Corporation Limited, the Holding Company.

34.3 During the year Rs. 2,880 (2015: Rs. 2,963) has been recognized in the profit and loss account in respect of the defined

contribution pension fund, maintained by Engro Corporation Limited, the Holding Company.

35. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

The details of amounts charged during the year in respect of remuneration and benefits to the Chief Executive, Directors

and executives are as follows:

2016 2015
Director Diractor
Chief OCthers Executives Chief Cthers Executives
Executive Executive
Rupees

Managerial remuneration 24,066 - 564,380 18,962 - 564,285
Retirement benefit funds 2713 - 88,571 1,324 - 88,007
Bonus - note 35.3 39,309 - 80,321 17,640 - 80,524
Other benefits 2,788 - 121,224 2,164 - 108,788
Directors fee - 2,250 - - 1,350 -
Total 68,876 2,250 854,496 40,090 1,350 842,602
Number of persons

including those who

worked part of the year 1 B 241 2 B 259

351 The Company also provides certain household items and vehicles for the use of Chief Executive and certain executives.

35.2  Premium charged in respect of Directors’ indemnity insurance policy, purchased by the Company, amounis to Rs. 7562

(2015: Rs. 720).

353 Bonus paid to Chief Executive includes bonus paid during the year to outgoing Chief Executive amounting to

Rs. 26,111 (2015: Nil)
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36.

36.1

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit / (Loss) before taxation

Adjustments for non cash charges
and other items:

Provision for staff retirement and other
service benefits
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for slow moving stores and spares
Stores and spares written-off
(Reversal of Provision) / Provision for net realizable value
of stock-in-trade, net
Write-off of damaged items of property, plant and equiprment
Income on bank deposits and short term investments
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) / loss on borrowings
Amortization of prepaid financial charges
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) on imports
and derivatives
Finance costs
Loss / (Profit) on disposal of operating assets
Provisions against concessionary duty on
import of raw materials and GIDC, net
Working capital changes - note 36.1

WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

(Increase) / Decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables - net

(Decrease) / Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
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2016 2015
Rupees
1,180,064 {365,780)
144,398 160,832
878,196 1,283,979
8,801 24,502
- 29,200
(26,271) (672,350)
- 46
(915) {33,928)
(9,544) 32,895
45,507 27,069
(23,982) {95,589)
840,649 958,016
(20) 1,429
980,891 134,690
289,063 (1,260,223)
4,308,837 224,788
2016 2015
Rupees
{14,838) (116,285)
{56,791) 1,628,647
(19,544) 117,814
(40,924) 145,179
(132,097) 1,775,355
421,160 (3,035,578)
289,063 (1,260,223)
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37. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2016 2015
Rupees

Cash and bank balances - note 15 371,616 154,779

Short term investments - note 14 740,000 300,000

Money market loans - note 20 - {1,080,000)
Running finance utilized under markup

arrangements - note 20 {29,638) (527,086)

1,081,978 (1,152,307)

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

38.1 Financial assets as per balance sheet

Held to maturity at amortized cost

Short term investments - Term Deposits Receipts 740,000 300,000

Loans and receivables as amortized cost

Long term loans 51,268 45,887
Trade debts - considered good 456,396 436,852
Loans, deposits and cther receivables 49,797 50,808
Cash and bank balances 371,616 154,779

929,077 688,326

38.2 Financial liabilities as per balance sheet

Financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost

Long term borrowings 9,166,903 8,326,676
Short term borrowings 414,638 3,026,180
Trade and other payables 6,318,424 5,814,696
Accrued interest / mark-up 11,006 56,116
15,911,061 17,223,668

Derivatives at fair value
Used for hedging purposes 2,107 17,382
At fair value through profit or loss - 23,982
2,107 41,364
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38.3 Fair values estimation
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The carrying values of all financial assets and liahilities reflected in the
financial statements approximate their fair values.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

¢ Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);

¢ |nputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

¢ |nputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (level 3).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees

Liabilities
- Derivative finangial instruments - 2,107 - 2,107

There were no transfers amongst the levels nor any changes in the valuation techniques during the year.
39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
39.1 Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's risk management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize the potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance. The
Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk factors. Risk management is carried out by the
Company’s finance department under guidance of the Company's Board of Directors.

a) Market risk
iy Currency risk

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign currency rates. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from currency exposures primarily with respect to US Dollars. The risk arises from outstanding payments for
imports, recognized assets and liabilities in foreign currency and future commercial transactions. In the current
econcmic environment, the Company is significantly exposed to currency risk because of the expected volatility
in exchange rates. The Company manages the currency risk through forward exchange contracts.

At December 31, 2016, the financial assets and liabilities exposed to foreign exchange risk amount to
Rs. 165,556 (2015: Rs. 183,824) and Rs. 5,169,209 (2015: Rs. 5,358,286) respsctively.

At December 31, 20186, if the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the US Dollar with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit / loss for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 250,183
{2015: Rs. 258,708), mainly as a result of foreign exchangs losses / gains on translation of uncovered US Dollar-
denominated liabilities. However, this change in profits or losses would be partially offset by a corresponding
change in margins as bulk of revenues is linked with movements in exchange rates.
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ii)  Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk arising from long
and short term running finances utilized under mark-up arrangements. Borrowing at variable rates exposes
the Company to cash flow interest rate risk, whereas, borrowing at fixed rate expose the Company to fair value
interest rate risk.

To manage its cash flow interest rate risk, the Company has entered into floating to fixed rate interest swaps on
its foreign currency borrowings. Under the interest rate swap agreements, the Company has agreed with the
banks to exchange, at half yearly intervals, the difference between contracted rates and the floating rate interest
amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional amounts.

As at December 31, 2016, if interest rate on Company's unhedged borrowings had been 1% higher / lower with
all other variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been lower / higher by approximately
Rs. 91,512 (2015: Rs. 86,219) mainly as a result of higher / lower interest exposure on variable rate borrowings.

i)y  Other price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair vale of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financials instruments or its issuers or factors affecting
all similar financial Instruments traded in the market. The Company Is exposed to equity security price risk as
the Company deals in securities. However, the Company is not exposed o equity securities price risk as at
December 31, 2016 as the Company has no investments in listed securities as at year end.

b} Creditrisk

Credit risk reprasents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter parties fail to dischargse their obligations.
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, trade debts, loans, deposits and other
receivables. The maximum exposure 1o credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of financial assets.

The Company is not materially exposed to credit risk as unsecured credit is provided to selected parties with no
history of default. Moreover, major part of trade debts are secured by bank guarantees and letters of credit from
customers. Further, credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably
high credit ratings.

The Company monitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical performance of such
assets and available external credit ratings. The carrying values of financial assets which are neither past due
ner impaired are as follows:

2016 2015
Rupees
Long term loans 51,268 45,887
Trade debts - considered good 456,396 436,852
Loans, deposits and other receivables 49797 50,808
Short term investments 740,000 300,000
Bank balances 370,697 153,893
1,668,158 987,440
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The credit quality of receivables can be assessed with reference to their historical performance with no defaults in recent
history. As at December 31, 2016 the credit quality of the Company’s liquid funds can be assessed with reference to
external credit ratings of banks as follows:

Bank Rating agency Rating
Short term Long term

Allied Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Askari Commercial Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AA
Bank AlFalah Limited PACRA Al+ AA
Bank AlHabib Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AAA
Burj Bank Limited JCR-VIS A2 BBE+
Citibank N.A. Moaody P1 Al
Deutsche Bank A.G Moody P2 Baa2
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AAA
Meezan Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AA
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Moody P1 Al
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
Meezan Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AA
National Bank of Pakistan JCR-VIS Al+ AAA
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
Summit Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al A-
United Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AAA
The Bank of Punjab PACRA Al+ AA-
JS Bank Limited PACRA Al+ A+
NIB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA-
Bank Islami Pakistan PACRA Al A+
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA-
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c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in mesting cbligations associated
with financial liabilities. The Company's liquidity management involves maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funds through an adequate amount of credit facilities and through its ability to close out
market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the business, the Company aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by
keeping committed credit lines available.

The table below analyses how management monitors net liquidity based on details of the remaining contractual
maturities of financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

2016 2015
Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity
upto one after one Total upto one after one Total
year year year year
Rupees
Financial liabilities
Long term borrowings 416,903 8,750,000 9,166,903 3,064,064 5,262,612 8,326,676
Derivative financial instruments 2,107 - 2,107 23,982 17,382 41,364
Trade and other payables 6,318,424 - 6,318,424 5,814,696 - 5,814,696
Accrued interest / mark-up 11,096 - 11,096 56,116 - 56,116
Short term borrowings 414,638 - 414,638 3,026,180 - 3,026,180

7,163,168 8,750,000 15,813,168 11,985,038 5,279,994 17,265,032

Net seftled derivatives comprise interest rate swaps used by the Company to manage the Company's interest rate profile.
The Company's net settled derivative financial instruments with a negative fair value have been included at their fair value of
Rs. 2,107 (2015: Rs.41,364) in the maturity analysis because the contractual maturities are essential for an understanding
of the timing of the cash flows. These contracts are managed on a net-fair value basis as well as maturity date.

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
provide expected returns to its shareholders by maintaining optimum capital structure to minimize the cost of capital. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new equity, manage dividend payouts to its shareholders
or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company manages capital by maintaining gearing ratio at certain levels. This ratio is calculated as long term
borrowings, as disclosed in note 17, divided by total capital. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the balance
sheet plus long term borrowings.
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The gearing ratio of the Company is as follows:

2016 2015
Rupees
Long term borrowings - note 17 8,750,000 5,262,612
Total equity 5,968,337 5,303,031
Total capital 14,718,337 10,565,643
Gearing ratio 0.584 0.498

41. SEGMENT INFORMATION

41,1 Based on the internal management reporting structure, the Company is organized into three business segments based
on the preducts produced and sold as follows:

- Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC) and allied chemicals: The segment is formed to manufacture and sell PVC and allied
chemicals to various industrial customers including pipe manufacturers, shoe and packaging industry. The Company
supplies the products throughout Pakistan mainly through dealers. Moreover, PVC is also exported to various countries
mainly in Asia Region.

- Caustic soda and allied chemicals: The segment is formed to manufacture and sell caustic soda and allied chemicals
mostly to textile and soap industry.

- Power supplies: The segment supplies surplus power generated from its power plants to Engro Fertilizers Limited.

Management monitors the operating results of abovementioned segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources to be allocated and of assessing performance. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit /
(loss) after tax for that segement, which in certain respects, as explained in table below, is measured differently from profit
cor loss in the financial statements. ltems which are directly attributable to a particular segment have been allocated to the
respective segment, while those which are not directly attributable have been allocated on the basis of revenue.

Annual Report | 2016
150



engropclymer & chemicals

{Amounts in thousand}

412

4.3

151

The following table pressnts the profit or loss and total asssts for the operating segments of the Company:

Poly Vinyl Caustic Powar Total
Chloride (PVC) soda and Supply
and allied allied
chemicals chemicals
2018 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Segment profit and loss e
Revenug 18376843 17825991 4422049 4,366,744 53,132 71,007 22854024 22,263,742
Less:
Cost of sales (excluding
depreciation) {15,022,716) (16077,297) (2,999,993) (2,868556)  (46,634) (51,120) (18,069,343) (18,996,973)
Reversal of GIDC for prior years = = = - = - - 753,664
Distribution and marketing
expenses (excluding depreciation) (892,313)  (916,753)  (284,108) (290,904 = - (1176421) (1,207,657
Allocaled depreciation (703977)  (967,104)  (146,729)  (283,189) (2.314) (736)  (853.020) (1,251,029)
Administrative expenses (M5117)  (#12.278)  (103,779)  (103,070) - - (518898)  (515343)
(Other operating expenses (101619)  (232,252) {47,719) {36,535) (120 (715)  (149.457)  (325474)
Other income 16,286 45,991 4,072 11,498 - " 20,358 97,489
Finance costs (742,870)  (907.700)  (180422)  (231,652) (3.889) (4.842)  (927181) (1,144,194)
Profit before tax 516517 (1,641.402) 663,371 364,336 175 13,593 1,180,064 {365,780)
Taxation (344588) 106889  (180,535)  (149,120) 52) (3592) (525275)  (283,077)
Profit / (Loss} for the year 171829  (1534513) 482,836 415,216 123 10,001 654,788  (648,857)
Segment assels
Total seqment assafs (nofe41.3) 14,883,358 14785606 4,854,186 5,083,381 32,573 12,585 19770117 19,891,662
Unallocated assets (note 41.3) 4690452 4,350,496
Total assets 24460569 24,242,158

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, stores and spares, stock in trade and trade debts. Unallocated assets include long term

investnent, long term loans and advancss, loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables, taxes recoverable, and cash and bank balances.
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42, TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
421  Transactions with related parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhers in these financial statements, are as follows:

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions Ao 203
Rupees
Holding Company
- Engro Corporation Limited Mark-up on suberdinated loan 301,483 110,981
Reimbursement made 108,068 92,646
Reimbursement received 1,845 7,917
Purchase of services 2,450 -
Life insurance contribution 619 506
Medical insurance contribution 181 221
Sub-ordinated long term loan received 850,000 2,150,000
Sub-ordinated short term loan received 1,000,000 -
Sub-ordinated short term loan repaid 1,800,000 -
Subsidiary Company
- Engro Polymer Trading (Private) Limited Short-term loan received 15,906 69,094
Mark-up on short-term loan 7,504 1,075
Associated Company
- Mitsubishi Corporation Purchase of goods 4,318,101 7,447,889
Sale of goods 01,262 94,696
Purchase of services - 48
Related parties by virtue of
commen directorship
- Engro Fertilizers Limited Sale of goods 13,569 14,757
Sales of utilities 65,282 95,427
Use of operating assets ] 1,417
Reimbursement made 18,694 33,213
Reimbursement received 8,825 2,495
- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited Purchase of services 1,027,914 1,024,413
Reimbursement made - 15,016
Reimbursement received 355 8,354
- Engro Elengy Terminal Limited Reimbursement received 126 464
Reimbursement made - 88
- Engro Foundation Reimbursement made 12 2,022
Donation - 2,000
- Engro PowerGen Qadirpur Limited Reimbursement received 4,338 4,196
Reimbursement made 8,306 -
- Engro PowerGen Limited Reimbursement received 15,045 -
- Engro Thar Power Limited Reimbursement received 24 -
- The Hub Power Company Limited Sales of goods 2,782 -
- Engro Foods Limited Sale of goods 26,536 38,239
Reimbursement received 3,397 814
Reimbursement made 6,859 -
Use of operating assets 165 145
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Nature of relationship Nature of transactions =0ty 2015
Rupses
- Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited Reimbursement received 705 -
- Shell Pakistan Limited Purchase of goods 5,875 3,471
- Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited Purchase of services - 14,493
- Lahore University of Management Sciences Purchase of services 328 418
- Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance Purchase of services 463 -
Annual subscription - 75
- Institute of Business Administration - Sukkur Reimbursement made - 88
- Pakistan Japan Business Forum Annual subscription 100 50
- Overseas Investors Chamber Annual subscription - 396
of Commerce & Industries
- Pakistan Society for Human
Resource Management Annual subscription - 20
Other related party
- Arabian Sea Country Club Purchase of services 191 41
Annual subscription - 393
Directors Fee 2,250 1,350
Advance paid - 4,950
Repayment of advance 4,125 825
Contribution to staff Managed and operated by the
retirement benefits Holding Company
- Provident fund 45,304 55,128
- Gratuity fund 37,791 60,373
- Pension fund 2,880 2,963
Key management personnel Managerial remuneration 73,480 70,248
Retirement benefit funds 12,055 8,755
Bonus 21,557 23,367
Other benefits 17,167 15,203

42.2 The related party status of outstanding balances as at December 31, 2016 are disclosed in the respective notes.
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43 FINANCING STRUCTURE / MODE

Conventional mode:

Assets

Short term investments
Cash and bank balances

Liahilities

Borrowings

Short term running finance

Mark-up / Interest

Shariah compliant mode:

Assets

Cash and bank balances

Liabilities
Borrowings

Short term borrowings

Mark-up / Interest
44, GENERAL

441  Number of smployees

2018 2015
Rupees

740,000 300,000
351,700 151,801
1,091,700 451,801
7,500,000 5,162,612
114,638 2,833,887
7.614,638 7,996,498
819,850 928,383
19,916 2878
1,250,000 100,000
300,000 182,203
1,560,000 292,293
20,999 29,6833

Number of permanent emplcyees as at December 31, 2016 was 421 (2015:; 433) and average number of employees

during the year was 418 {2015: 438).
44.2  Preduction capacity

PVC
ECC
Caustic soda
VCM

Power

45, DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorized for issue on February 7, 2017 by the Board of Directors

Imran Anwer
President & Chief Exacutive
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DG AFFERGUSON&CO,

auditors’ report
to the members

Woe have audited the annexed consolldated flnanclal statemants comprising consolldated balance sheet of Engro Polymer and
Chemicals Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiery company, Engro Polymer Trading (Private) Limited as at December
31, 2016 and the related consolldated profit and loss account, consolidated statement of comprehenslve Income, consolldated
staternent of changes in equity and consolideted statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year
then ended. Wae have also expressed separate oplnlons on the flnanclal statements of Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited and
Engro Polymer Trading (Privete) Limited.

These financiel statements are the responsibility of the Holding Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinlon on these financlal statements based on our audit.

Cur audit was conducted in accordance with the Intemational Standards on Auditing and accordingly included such tests of
accounting records end such other auditing proceduras as we considerad necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements present feirly the financial position of Engro Polymer end Chemicals Limited
{the Holding Company} and s subsidlary company as at December 31, 2016 and the results of thelr operations, changes In
equity and cash flows for the year then ended.

___Ko-/(__., )

O'pﬂh,f

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Dated: March 9, 2017

Engagement Pariner: Waqas A. Sheikh

{A, F. FERQUSON & 0., Chartered Accountants, a member firm of the the PuwC network
Siate Life Bullding No. 1-C, LI Chundriger Read, P.O. Box 4716, Karachi-74000, Pakistan
Tel: +92 (21) 32426682-6/ 32426711-5; Fax: +92 (21) 32415007/ 32427938/ 32424740; <wunw.pwe.com/ pic»

u KARACHI m LAHORE = [SLAMABAD
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engropolymer & chamicals

consolidated balance sheet

as at december 31, 2016

{Amounts in thousand) Note 2018 2015
—— Rupees ————
ASBETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 16,008,366 16,248,050
Intangibles 5 90,855 90,345
Long term loans and advances 6 69,971 68,372
Deferred taxation 7 549,328 908,103
16,718,620 17,313,870
Current Assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 8 1,545 381 1,539,344
Stock-in-trade 2] 3,024,288 2,941,208
Trade debts - considered good 10 456,396 436,852
Loans, advances, deposlits, prepayments and other recelvables 11 436,471 395,647
Taxes recoverable 12 1,123,578 1,115,723
Short term investments 13 740,000 300,000
Cash and bank balances 14 376,147 169,222
7,702,241 6,897,804
TOTAL ASSETS 24,420,761 24,211,764
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 18 6,634,688 6,634,688
Share premium 964,020 964,029
Hedging reserve (1,475) (11,993)
Accumulated loss {1,593,063) (2,252, 896)
6,004,179 5,333,728
Non-Current Liabilities
Long term borrowings 16 8,750,000 5,262,812
Derlvatlve financlal Instruments 17 - 17,382
8,750,000 5,270,004
Current Liabiliies
Current portion of long term borrowings 16 416,803 3,064,064
Derivative financial instruments 17 2,107 23,982
Service benefit obligations 18 45 622 38,976
Short term borrowings 19 329,638 2,957,086
Trade and other payables 20 6,731,452 6,310,020
Accrued interest / mark-up 21 11,096 55,041
Provisions 22 2,129,764 1,148,873
8,666,682 13,508,042
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 24,420,761 24,211,764
Contingencies and Commitments 23

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Imran Anwer Kimlhide Ando
President & Chief Exscutive Director
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engropolymer & chamicals

consolidated profit and
loss account

for the year ended december 31, 2016

[Amounts In thousand except for Profit / (Loss) per share] Note 2016 2015
Rupeaes

Net revenue 24 22,854,024 22,263,742
Cost of sales 25 {18,919,015) {19,490,493)
Gross profit 3,935,008 2,773,243
Distribution and marketing expenses 26 (1,179,763) (1,211,486)
Administrative expenses 27 (518,898) (515,348)
Cther operating expenses 28 (150,137} (326,315)
Other income 29 20,677 62,967
Operating proflt 2,106,884 783,051
Finance costs 30 (919,587} (1,143,122)
Prafit f {Loss) before taxation 1,187,207 (360,071
Taxation 31 (527,364) (284,053)
Profit / {Loss) for the year 659,933 (644,124)
Profit / {Loss) per share - basic and diluted 32 0.99 {0.97)

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Imran Anwer Kimihide Ando
President & Chisef Executive Director
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engropolymer & chamicals

consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

for the year ended december 31, 2016

{Amounts in thousand} Note 2016 2015
—  — Rupesgs —

Profit / (Loss) for the year 659,933 (644,124)
Other comprahensive incoma :

Items that will not be reclassifled
to profit or loss

Deferred tax charge relating to revaluation
of equity related items - share issuance cost - {4,948)

lterns that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Hedging reserve

Loss arising during the year, net (698) (5,417)

Reclassiflcation adjustments for

Iosses included in profit or loss 15,973 32,449
Income tex relating to hedging reserve {4,757) {9,268)
10,618 7,764

Other comprehsnsive income
for the yvear - net of tax 10,518 12,818
Total comprehensive income / {loss) for the year 670,451 (631,308)

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Imran Anwer Kimihide Ando
President & Chisef Executive Director
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engropolymer & chemicals

consolidated statement of
changes In equity

for the year ended december 31, 2016

{Amounts in thousand)

Balance as at January 1, 2015

Total comprehengive loss for the year
ended December 31, 2015

Balance as at December 31, 2015

Total comprehensive income for the year
ended Decembsr 31, 2016

Balance as at December 31, 2016

RESERVES
CAPITAL REVENUE
Share Share Hedging Accumulated Total
Capital premium reserve loss
Rupees
6,634,668 964,029 {29,757) (1,603,928) 5,965,034
- 5 17,764 (649,070) (631,306)
6,634,688 964,029 {11,993) (2,252,996) 5,333,728
- - 10,518 659,933 670,451
6,634,688 864,029 {1,475) {1,693,063) 6,004,178

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Imran Anwer
President & Chief Exacutive
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engropolymer & chamicals

consolidated statement
of cash flows

(Amounts in thousand) Note 2016 2015
Rupees

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 35 4,306,429 228,524
Finance costs paid (877,001) (994,685)
Long term loans and advances (3,599) {21)
Retirement benefits paid (137,752) (161,593)
Income tax paid {181,200) {263,666)
Net cash generated from / (utilized in) operating activities 3,106,877 (1,191,441)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchasas of:

- property, plant and equipment (629,683) {607,339)
- intangible assets {14,974) {53,369)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 6,655 10,896
Income on short term investment and bank deposits 1,234 38,692
Net cash utilized in investing activities (636,768) (611,120)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term borrowings 6,800,000 2,150,000
Repayments of long term borrowings (5,795,738) (2,898,192)
Proceeds from short term borrowings B 750,000
Repayments of short term borrowings (1,060,000) -
Net cash utilized in financing activities {245,736) {98,192)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents 2,224,373 {1,800,753)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (1,137 864) 762,889
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 36 1,086,509 (1,137,864)

The annexed notes 1 to 45 form an integral part of these consolidated financial staterments.

Imran Anwer Kimihide Ando
Presldent & Chlef Executive Director
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engropolymer &chemicals

consolidated notes to the
financial statements

for the year ended december 31, 2016

{Amounts in thousand)

1.

1.1

1.2

13

LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

The Group consists of Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary company, Engro Polymer
Trading (Private) Limited.

Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited (EPCL) was incorporated in Pakistan in 1997 under the Companies Ordinance,
1984. The Company is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

EPCL is a subsidiary of Engro Corporation Limited (the Holding Company) which is a subsidiary of Dawood Hercules
Corporation (the Ultimate Parent Company). The address of its registered office is 16th Floor, The Harbor Front Building,
HC-3 Marine Drive, Block 4 Clifton, Karachi. The Company's principal activity is to manufacture, market and sell Poly Vinyl
Chloride (PVC), Vinyl Chlcride Monomer (VCM), Caustic soda and other related chemicals. The Company is also engaged
in the supply of surplus power generated from its power plants to Engro Fertilizers Limited.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified by
remeasurement of certain financial assets and financial liakilities (including derivative financial instruments) at fair value.

These consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Crdinance, 1984 (the Ordinance), directives issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
and the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASE) as are
notified under the provisions of the Ordinance. Wherever, the requirements of the Ordinance or directives issued by the
SECP differ with the requirements of these standards, the requirements of the Ordinance or the requirements of the said
directives take precedence.

The preparation of consolidated financial staterents in conformity with the above requirements requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Company's accounting policies. The areas involving high degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 3.

Initial application of a Standard, Amendment or an Interpretation to an existing Standard
a) Standards, amendments fo published standards and Inferpretations effective In 2016

The following amendments to published standards are mandatory for the financial year beginning January 1, 2016
and are relevant to the Company:

- IFRS 7, 'Financial instruments: Disclosures’. There are two amendments:

* Servicing contracts - If an entity transfers a financial asset to a third party under conditions which allow the
transferor to derecognize the asset, IFRS 7 requires disclosure of all types of continuing involverment that the
entity might still have in the transferred assets. The amendment provides guidance about what is meant by
continuing involvement. The amendment is prospective with an option to apply retrospectively.
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engropolymer &chemicals

{Amounts in thousand)
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b)

» |nterim financial statements - The amendment clarifies that the additional disclosure required by the amendments
to IFRS 7, ‘Disclosure — Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities’ is not specifically required for all
interim periods, unless required by IAS 34. The amendment is retrospective.

These amendments only affects the disclosures in the Company's financial statements.

- |AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ {effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016).
The amendments provide clarifications on a number of issues, including:

» Materiality — an entity should not aggregate or disaggregate information in a manner that obscures useful
information. Where items are material, sufficient information must be provided to explain the impact on the
financial position or performance.

» Disaggregation and subtotals — line items specified in IAS 1 may need to be disaggregated where this is
relevant to an understanding of the entity’s financial position or performance. There is also new guidance on the
use of subtotals.

» Notes — confirmation that the notes do not need to be presented in a particular order.

» OClI arising from investments accounted for under the equity method — the share of OCI arising from equity-
accounted investments is grouped based on whether the items will or will not subsequently be reclassified to
profit or loss. Each group should then be presented as a single line item in the statement of other comprehensive
income.

According to the transitional provisions, the disclosures in IAS 8 regarding the adoption of new standards/
accounting policies are not reguired for these amendments. These amendments only affects the disclosures in
the Company’s financial statements.

- |AS 34, ‘Interim financial reporting’. This amendment clarifies what is meant by the reference in the standard to
‘information disclosed elsewhere in the interim financial report’. The amendment also amends |AS 34 to require
a cross-reference from the interim financial statements to the location of that information. The amendment is
retrospective. This amendment only affects the disclosures in the Company's interim financial information.

The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the
financial year beginning on January 1, 2016 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the
Company's financial reporting and operations.

Standards, amendmenis fo published standards and interpretations that are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Company

The following new standards and amendments to published standards are not effective for the financial year
beginning on January 1, 2016 and have not been early adopted by the Company:

- |IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (effective for pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2018). This standard is yet to
be notified by SECP. This standard replaces the guidance in |AS 39. It includes requirements on the classification
and measurement of financial assets and liabilities; it also includes an expected credit losses model that replaces
the current incurred loss impairment model. It is unlikely that the standard will have any significant impact on the
Company’s financial statements.
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{Amounts in thousand)

- IFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ {effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018).
This standard is yet to be notified by SECP. This standard stupulates clarifications of the guidance on identifying
performance obligations, accounting for License of intellectual property and the principal versus agent assessment
(gross versus net revenue presentation). New and amended illustrative examples have been added for each of
those areas of guidance. The |ASB has also included additional practical expedients related to transition to the
new revenue standard. The Company is yet to assess the full impact of the standard; however, initial indicators
are that it may not affect the Company’s financial statements significantly.

- IFRS 16, ‘Leases’ (effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019). This standard is yet to be notified
by SECP. This standard replaces the current guidance in IAS 17 and is a far reaching change in accounting
by lessees in particular. Under I1AS 17, lessees were required to make a distinction between a finance lease
{(on balance sheet) and an operating lease (off balance sheet). IFRS 16 now requires lessees 1o recognize a
lease liability reflecting future lease payments and a ‘right-of-use asset’ for virtually all lease contracts. The |IASB
has included an optional exemption for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets; however, this
exemption can only be applied by lessees. For lesscrs, the accounting stays almost the same. However, as the
IASB has updated the guidance on the definition of a lease {as well as the guidance on the combination and
separation of contracts), lessors will also be affected by the new standard. At the very least, the new accounting
rmodel for lessees is expected to impact negotiations between lessors and lessees. Under IFRS 16, a contract is,
or containg, a lease if the contract conveys the right to contrel the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. The Company is yet to assess the full impact of the standard.

- |IAS 7, 'Cash flow statements: Disclosure initiative’ (effective for periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017).
This amendment requires disclosure to explain changes in liabilities for which cash flows have been, or will be
classified as financing activities in the statement of cash flows. The amendment enly covers balance sheet items
for which cash flows are classified as financing activities. In case other items are included within the reconciliation,
the changes in liabilities arising from financing activities will be identified separately. A reconciliation of the
opening to closing balance is not specifically required but instead the information can be provided in other ways.
In the first year of adoption, comparative information need not be provided. It is unlikely that the amendment will
have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

- Amendments to IAS 12, ‘Income taxes’ on Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealized losses (effective for
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017). These amendments on the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealized losses clarify how to account for deferred tax assets related to debt instruments measured at fair value.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

- IFRIC 22, 'Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration’ (effective for pericds beginning on or after
January 1, 2018). This IFRIC addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of transactions where there is
consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign currency. The interpretation provides guidance for when
a single payment/receipt is made as well as for situations where multiple payments / receipts are mads. The
guidance aims to reduce diversity in practice. It is unlikely that the interpretation will have any significant impact
on the Company's financial statements.

There are number of other standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not vet effective
and are also not relevant to the Company and therefore, have not been presented here.

2.2 Property, plant and equipment
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any, except capital work-in-progress. Cost

in relation to fixed assets signifies historical cost. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Capital work-in-progress is stated at historical cost less impairment, if any.
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2.3

24

2.5
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Depreciation on assets is charged to income using the straight line method to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives at rates given in note 4.1. Depreciation on additions is charged from the month in which
the asset is put to use and no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the
itern can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to income during the year in which
these are incurred.

Assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An asset's
carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount and the resulting impairment loss is recognized in income. The recoverable amount is the
higher of fair value less expected selling expenses and value in use. Reversal of impairment is effected in the case of
indications of a change in recoverable amount and is recognized in income, however, is restricted to the original cost of
the asset.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense in the period of disposal or retirement.

Capital spares

Spare parts and servicing equipment are classified as property, plant and equipment rather than stores, spares and locse
tools when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. Upon utilization, the capital spares and servicing
equipment are depreciated over their useful life, or the remaining life of principal asset, whichever is lower.

Intangible assets - Computer scftware

Costs associated with developing and maintaining computer software programmes are recognized as an expense as
incurred. Costs that are directly attributable to identifiable software and have probable economic benefits exceeding one
year, are recognized as an intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchase cost of software and related overhead cost.

Expenditure, which enhances or extends the performance of computer software beyond its original specification and
useful life is recognized as a capital improvement and added to the original cost of the software.

Computer software cost treated as intangible assets are amortized from the date the software is put to use on straight-line
basis over a period of 5 to 10 years. The carrying amount of the intangible assets is reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount by which the assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount and is recognized in
income. Reversal of impairment losses are also recognized in income, however, is restricted to the original cost of the
asset.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investrments in subsidiaries are stated at cost net of provision for impairment, if any. This investment is classified as long
term investment.
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26 Financial instruments
2.6.1 Financial assets
Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held to maturity and available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

a) At fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorized
as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets
if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, these are classified as non-current.

k) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets. The Company’s loans and receivables comprise
of ‘trade debts’, ‘loans and deposits’, ‘other receivables' and ‘cash and cash equivalents' in the consolidated
balance sheet.

¢) Held to maturity

Held to maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity with a positive intention to hold to maturity.

d) Available for sale

Available for sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. These are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management
intends to dispose off the financial assets within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade date — the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs except
for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognized at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account. Financial assets are
derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the
Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available for sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to maturity
financial assets are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category
are presented in the profit and loss account within ‘other income / operating expenses’ in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at ‘fair value through profit or loss’ is recognized in the profit and loss account
as part of ‘other income' when the Company's right to receive payments is established. Gains or losses on sale of
investments at ‘fair value through profit or loss’ are recognized in the profit and loss account as ‘gains and losses from
investment securities’.

When securities classified as available for sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognized in
other comprehensive income are included in the profit and loss account as ‘gains and losses from investment securities’.
Interest on available for sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in the profit and loss
account as part of ‘other income’. Dividends on available for sale equity instruments are recognized in the profit and loss
account as part of “other income’ when the Company’s right to receive payments is established.
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The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and
for unlisted securities), the Company establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent
arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis,
and option pricing models making maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possikle on entity-specific inputs.

The Company assesses at each balance shest date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any
such evidence exists for available for sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit
or loss — is removed from equity and recognized in the profit and loss account. Impairment losses recognized in profit and
loss on equity instruments are not reversed through profit and loss.

26.2 Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the profit
and loss account.

26.3 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultanecusly.

27 Stores, spares and loose tools

These are valued at weighted average cost except for items in transit which are stated at invoice value plus other charges
paid thereon till the balance sheet date. Provision is made for slow moving items older than ten years, and is recognized
in the profit and loss account.

28 Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost in relation to raw materials represent the weighted
average cost and in relation to finished goods and work-in-process represents weighted average cost comprising direct
materials, labour and related manufacturing overheads.

Cost of stock-in-transit represents the invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon till the balance sheet date.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost of completion and costs
necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sales. Provision is made for slow moving stocks, where considered necessary.

29 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment is established when there
is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the provigion is charged to income. Trade debts and other receivables considered
irrecoverable are written-off.

Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of trade debts and other receivables in foreign currency
are added to the carrying amount of the respective receivables.
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2.10 Cash and cash eguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows include cash in hand and in transit, balance with banks,
deposits held at call with banks, cther short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less and short term finances. Short term finances on the balance sheet are shown as part of current liabilities.

2.11  Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs, if any, directly attributable
to the issue of new shares or options are recognized in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.12  Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional / contractual right to defer
settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months after the balance sheet date.

2.13 Retirement and other service benefits

2.13.1 Gratuity fund
The employees of the Company participate in a defined contribution gratuity fund (the Fund) operated and managed
by Engro Corporation Limited - the Holding Company. As per the terms of the defined contribution plan, the Company
contributes to the Fund at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary. Annual contribution by the Company is charged to profit
and loss account.

2.13.2 Provident fund
The employees of the Company participate in defined contribution provident fund (the Fund) operated and managed
by Engro Corporation Limited - the Holding Company. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 10% of the basic
salary are made both by the Company and the employees to the Fund. Annual contribution by the Company is charged
to profit and loss account.

2.13.3 Compensated absences
Accrual is made for employees’ compensated absences on the basis of accumulated leaves and the last drawn pay.

2.13.4 Other benefits - Service Incentive Plan
Provision is made under a service incentive plan for certain category of experienced employees to continue in the Company’s
employment. The provision is made on the basis of management’s estimates of incentives to be paid to employees on fulfillment
of criteria given in the incentive plan.

214  Trade and other payables
These are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount
of the respective liabilities.
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2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is
probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect current
best estimate.

216  Taxation
2.16.1 Current

Provision for current taxation is based on the taxable income for the year, determined in accordance with the prevailing law
for taxation on income, using prevailing tax rates. The charge for current tax also includes tax credits and adjustments, where
considered necessary, for prior years determined during the year or ctherwise considered necessary for such years.

2.16.2 Deferred

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on all tempoerary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and
tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the profit and loss account except to the extent that it relates to the items recognized
directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

2.17  Foreign cumrency transactions and translation

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
profit and loss account.

2.18  Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. The method of recognizing the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Company designates certain
derivatives as either:

a} hedges of the fair value of recognized assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge); or

b} hedges of a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
{cash flow hedge).

Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the profit

and less account, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the
hedged risk.
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Cash flow hedge

On an ongoing basis, the Company assesses whether each derivative continues to be highly effective in offsetting
changes in the cash flows of hedged items. If and when a derivative is no longer expected to be highly effective, hedge
accounting is discontinued.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognized in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately
in the profit and loss account.

Amounts accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to the prefit and loss account in the periods when
the hedged item affects profit or loss account i.e. when the transaction cccurs. The gain or loss relating to the effective
portion of interest rate swaps hedging variable rate borrowings is recognized in the profit and loss account or the cost of
the related asset for which the borrowing is being utilized. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset (for e.g. stock-in-trade or property, plant and equipment) the gains and losses
previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset.
The deferred amounts are ultimately recognized in cost of sales in case of stock-in-trade, or in depreciation in case of
property, plant and equipment.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any
cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognized when the forecast transaction is
ultimately recognized in the profit and loss account or the cost of the related non-financial asset (for e.g. stock-in-trade or
property, plant and equipment} as applicable. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative
gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the profit and loss account.

The fair values of various derivative instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 18. Movements on the
hedging reserve are shown in statement of comprehensive income. The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified
as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining maturity of hedged item is more than 12 months and as a current
asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged itemn is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives are classified
as a current asset or liability.

2.19  Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent It is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, and is
recognized on the following basis:

- sales are recognized when the product is dispatched to customers;
- revenue from the supply of electricity is recegnized based upon the output delivered;
- dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment is established; and
- return on deposits is recognized on accrual basis using the effective interest method.
2.20 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, in which case, such costs are capitalized as part
of the cost of that asset. Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
these are regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs.

221  Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of the Company that makes strategic decisions.
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222 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividlend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the consolidated financial staternents in the period inwhich these are approved.
3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Company makes estimates
and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual
results. Estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the camying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are as follows:

31 Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company reviews appropriateness of the useful [ife and residual value, where applicable, used in the calculation of
depreciation / amortization on an annual basis. Further, where applicable, an estimate of recoverable amount of assets is made
for possible impairment on an annual basis. During the year, the Company has reassessed the useful lives of its property, plant
and equipment as disclosed in note 4.1.1.

32 Derivative financial instruments designated as cash flow hedges

The Company reviews the changes in fair values of the derivative hedging financial instruments at each reporting date based on
the valuations received fror the contracting banks. These valuations represent estimated fluctuations in the relevant currencies
[ interest rates over the reporting period and other relevant variables signifying currency and interest rate risks.

3.3 Stock-in-trade

The Company regularly reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution in the respective
carrying values. Net realizable value is determined with reference to estimated selling price less estimated expenditure
to make the sales.

3.4 Income taxes

In making the estimates for current income taxes payable by the Company, the management looks at the applicable
law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

35 Deferred tax asset

In assessing the recognition of the deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences, become
deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projects future taxable income
and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. The amount of deferred tax assets considered realizable,
however, could change in the near term if future estimates of projected taxable income during the carry forward period

are revised.
4, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2016 2015
Rupees
Operating assets, at net book value - note 4.1 15,245,662 15,520,580
Capital work-in-progress - note 4.4 679,306 642,520
Capital spares 83,398 85,950
16,008,366 16,249,050
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4.1 Operating assets

Leasehold  Buildingen  Plant and Pipelines Furniture,
land leasehold  machinery fixtures and
land Water VCM Ethylene Gas equipment  Vehicles Total
Rupess
As at January 1, 2015
Cost 194,127 503682 22511487 308,968 26,122 50315 33,849 186,651 98,908 24,004,109
Accumulated depreciation (36,954) (120566) (6,977,462)  (165,636) (18,753) (12,790) (10812)  (128,813) (58,848) (7,531,634)
Net book value 157,173 3831168  15534,025 233,332 6,369 37525 23,037 57,838 40,060 16,472,475
Year ended December 31, 2015
Opening net book valug 157,173 383116 15,534,025 233,332 6,369 37525 23,037 57,838 40,060 16,472,475
Additions - note 4.4 - 1,088 35,102 - - - - 10,683 2,700 329584
Disposals - note 4.3
Cost - - - - - - - (283) (33421)|| (33.704)
Accumulated depreciation = = = = = = o 44 21,335 21,379

o 2 = 2 - - - (239) (12,086)  (12,325)
Wirile ofis - note 4.3

Cost - = - = = - - %) = %)
Accumulated depreciation 2 .« 2 .« 5 ¢ 2 i .« i

. = = = = = = (46) = (46)
Depreciation charge - note 4.2 (3934)  (0471) (1195745) (19998  (1317)  (2516) (169 (15838 (7595 (1,269,108)
Net book value 153230 363744 14653362 _ 21333 5050 35000 21344 5239 23079 15520580

As at January 1, 2016

Cost 194127 504781 22826580 308968 26122 50315 33840 196926 68187 24,205,854
Accumulated depreciation (40888) (141037) (8173207 (185,635)  (21.070)  (15306)  (12505) (144528)  (45108) (8,779.284)
Nat book valug 153239 _ 363,744 14653382 _ 713333 5052 35000 2134 _ 52308 23079 15520580

Year ended December 31, 2016

Opening net book value 153,239 363744 14,653,382 213,333 5,052 35,009 21,344 52,398 23,079 15,520,580
Additions - note 4.4 = 2 558,399 2 = = = 37,050 - 585449
Disposals - note 4.3
Cost - = = = = = = (146) {21,838))[ {21,984)
Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - - 138 15,592 ‘ 15,730 ‘
= = = = = = = 8 {6,248) {6,254)
Wirite ofis - note 4.3
Gost = = = = = = = {1,184) = {1,194)
Accumulated depreciation - - - - - - - 813 - 813
= = = = = = = (381) = (381)
Depreciation charge - note 4.2 (3933)  (20851) (791,136) (19,999 {(1,317) (2,516) (1,693)  {18919) (3368) (863,732)
Net book value 149306 342893 14,420,645 193,334 3735 32493 19,851 70,140 13465 15,245,662
As at December 31, 2016
GCost 194,127 504781 23384988 398,968 26,122 50,315 33849 232,636 45,349 24,872,135
Accurmulated depreciation (44821) (161,888) (8964,343)  (205,634) (22387) (17822 (14,198)  (162,496) {32,884) (9,626,473)
Net book value 149,306 342893 14,420,645 193,334 3735 32493 19,851 70,140 13465 15,245,662
Annual Rate of Depreciation (%) 20214 251010 251025 5 5 5 5 51033 51025
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During the year, as required under the Company’s accounting policy, the Company re-assessed useful lives of its
plant and machinery. For this purpose, the Company engaged an independent expert / valuer and, based on the
assessment carried out by the expert, has increased the useful lives of relevant assets by 5 to 31 years. Based on
the report of the expert the useful lives of the relevant assets have been increased with effect from January 1, 2016.
This change in the accounting estimate of useful lives has been accounted for prospectively in accordance with the
requirements of |IAS 8 - ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’, which has resulted in
reduction in depreciation charge for the year by Rs. 443,612 and increase in carrying value of property, plant and
equipment by the same amount.

Had there been no change in the accounting estimate of useful lives of plant and machinery, the profit after tax for the
current year would have been lower by Rs. 297,472,

20186 2015
Rupees
Depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales - note 26 849,672 1,247 190
Distribution and marketing expenses - note 27 3,348 3,839
Administrative expenses - note 28 10,712 18,079
863,732 1,269,108
The details of operating assets disposed / written-off during the year are as follows:
Cost  Accumulated  Net Proceeds Mode of Particulars of
depreciation  book disposal purchaser
value
—— Rupess
Vehicle 750 600 150 574 } ) Wagar Ahmed
By auction
“ 654 523 131 568 Imran Ahmed
Vehicle 8000 5625 2375 2,000 Y Jahangir Piracha
“ 1,638 1,152 486 410 Under Ikram Nabi
. 1,648 1030 618 464 Company Rahim Anwar
“ policy to : ;
1638 1,203 435 a9 ) il Mudassir Bashir
“ 2,058 1,447 611 515 separating Najam Saeed
= 2,176 1 ,632 544 544 emp|oyees Syed A|| Akbar
“ 1,638 1,203 435 410 / Muhamamd Imran Baloch
1,638 1,177 461 410 Under specific M. Saad Khan
21,838 15592 6,246 6,304 approval to
separating
Laptop 146 138 8 8 employees Adeeb Malik
Computer equipment 1,194 813 381 343 } Written-off EFU Insuarance Claim
2016 23,178 16,543 6,635 6,655
2015 33,829 21,458 12,371 10,966

Annual Report | 2016



engropolymer & chemicals

{Amounts in thousand)

4.4 Capital work-in-progress
Building on Plant and Furniture, Advances
leasehold machinery fixtures and for Total
land equipments vehicles &
software
Rupees
Year ended December 31, 2015
Balance as at January 1, 2015 4,975 343,163 1,959 16,562 366,659
Additions during the year 3,604 572,521 27,325 55,364 658,814
Transferred to:
-Operating assets - note 4.1 (1,099) (315,102) {10,683) {2,700) (329,584)
-Intangible assets note 5 - - (63,369) {53,369)
Balance as at December 31, 2015 7,480 600,582 18,601 15,857 642,520
Year ended December 31, 2016
Balance as at January 1, 2016 7,480 600,582 18,601 15,857 642,520
Additions during the year 2,175 612,464 23,045 9,525 647,200
Transferred to:
-Operating assets - note 4.1 - (558,399) {37,050) - (595,449)
-Intangible assets - note 5 - - - (14,974) {14,974)
Balance as at December 31, 2016 9,655 654,647 4,596 10,408 679,306
5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS - Computer software Rupees
As at January 1, 2015
Cost 107,686
Accumulated amortization {55,839)
Net book value 51,847
Year ended December 31, 2015
Opening net book valus 51,847
Additions at cost - note 4.4 53,369
Amortization charge - note 28 {14,871)
Closing net book value 90,345
As at December 31, 2015
Cost 161,065
Accumulated amortization {70,710)
Net book value 90,345
Year ended December 31, 2016
Qpening net book value 90,345
Additions at cost - note 4.4 14,974
Amortization charge - note 28 {14,464)
Closing net book value 90,855
As at December 31, 2016
Cost 176,029
Accumulated amortization {85,174)
Net book value 90,855
5.1 The cost is being amortized over a period of 5 to 10 years.
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6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
- Considered good

Executives - notes 6.1, 6.2, 6.4 and 6.5
Less: Current portion shown under current assets - note 11

Employees - notes 6.3 and 6.5
Less: Current portion shown under current assets - note 11

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of loans and advances to executives is as follows:

Balance at beginning of the year

Add: Disbursements

Less: Repayments / Amortizations

2016 2015
Rupees
101,029 101,023
{31,058) (34,653)
69,971 66,370
806 16
(806) (14)
= 2
69,971 66,372
2016 2015
———— Rupees
101,023 09,847
57,079 70,725
(57,073) {69,549)
101,020 101,023

Balance at end of the year

These include interest free loans and advances to executives for house rent, vehicles, home appliances and investments
given in accerdance with the terms of employment. Loans for house rent and investments are repayable in 18 to 36 equal
monthly installments. Loans for home appliances are repayable in 5 equal annual installments. Advances for vehicles are

charged to profit and loss account over a pericd of 4 years.

These include interest free loans to employees for home appliances and investments, given in accordance with the terms

of employment. Loans are repayable in accordance with the terms stated in note 6.2.

The maximurm aggregate amount due from the executives at the end of any monith during the year was Rs. 121,646 (2015:

Rs. 139,119). These are secured by way of promissory notes.

The carrying values of these financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. The credit quality of these financial assets

can be assessed with reference to no material defaults in recent history.

73
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2016 2015
Rupees
7. DEFERRED TAXATION
Credit balances arising due to:
- accelerated tax depreciation (3,178,960) (2,995,947)
Debit balances arising due to:
- recoupeable carried forward
tax losses - note 7.1 2,778,309 3,424,568
- recoupable minimum turnover tax - note 7.2 168,659 -
- unpaid liabilities 87,783 70,720
- provision for Gas Infrastructure Development
Cess and Special Excise Duty 618,568 42
- provision for net realizable value of stock-in-trade 7,208 14,312
- provision for slow moving stores and spares 17,662 14,182
- fair value of hedging instrument 632 5,389
- share issuance cost, net to equity 49,467 49,467
3,728,288 3,904,050
549,328 908,103

74 Defarred income tax assst is recognized for tax losses available for carry-forward to the extent that the realization of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The aggregate tax losses available for carry-forward as at December 31, 2016
amount to Rs. 8,261,030 (2015: Rs. 11,415,228).

7.2 During the year, the Company has recognized deferred tax asset on recoupable minimum turnover tax in respect of current year
amounting to Rs. 168,653 (2015: Nil) as the Company, based on its financial projections, expects to recoup it in the ensuing years.
In 2013, the High Court of Sindh, in respect of another company, overturned the interpratation of the Appellate Tribunal on Section
113 (2) (c) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and decided that minimum tumover tax cannot ba canied forward where there is
no tax paid cn account of loss for the year or carried forward losses. The Company’s management is however of the view, duly
supportad by the legal advisor, that the above order would not be maintained by the Supreme Court, which the Company intends
to approach if required. Accordingly, the Company has recognized deferred tax asset on recoupable minimum turnover tax.

2016 2015
Rupees
8. STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS
Consumable stores and spares 1,606,707 1,621,089
Less:
- Provision for slow moving stores and spares - note 8.1 61,326 52,525
- Stores and spares written-off - note 26 - 29,200
1,545,381 1,539,344
8.1 The movement in the provision for slow moving stores
and spares is as follows:
Balance at beginning of the year 52,525 28,023
Add: Recognized during the year - note 25 8,801 24,502
Balance at end of the year 61,326 52,525
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9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

177

2016 2015
Rupees
STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw and packing materials - notes 9.1 and 9.2 1,876,110 1,975,662
Work-in-process 2,635 23,533
Finished goods - own manufactured product - notes 9.1 and 9.3 1,145,523 942,011
3,024,268 2,941,206
This includes stocks held at the storage facilities of the following parties:
- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited, a related party 345,812 459,663
- Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited (formerly
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited 4,286 8,755
- Al-Rahim Trading Company (Private) Limited 14,083 108,297
- Al-Hamd Traders 1,581 -
365,762 576,715

This includes goods in transit amounting to Rs. 548,142 (2015: Rs. 416,837).

This includes carrying value of Poly Vinyl Chloride resin, net of realizable value reduction of Rs. 25,028 (2015:
Rs. 51,299).

2018 2015
Rupees
TRADE DEBTS - considered good
Secured - notes 10.1 and 10.2 291,581 301,035
Unsecured - note 10.2 164,815 135,817
456,396 436,852
These debts are secured by way of bank guarantees and letters of credit from customers.
Includes amounts due from the following related parties:
Aging Analysis
Upto 1 month 2 to 6 months 2016 2015
Rupees
Engro Fertilizer Limited 8,614 15,107 23,721 16,896
Engro Foods Limited 397 28 425 2,689
9,011 15,135 24,146 192,685

The carrying values of these financial assets are neither past due nor impaired. The credit quality of these financial assets
can be assessed with reference to no default in recent history.
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2018 2015
Rupees
11. LOANS, ADVANCES, DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good
Current portion of long term loans and advances - note 7
- executives 31,058 34,653
- employees 806 14
31,864 34,667
Advances to employees 2,184 2,829
Advances to suppliers and others 54735 71,605
Deposits 20,883 19,957
Prepayments 88,529 85,746
Receivable from Government of Pakistan
- Sales tax and Federal excise duty refundable 230,005 174,071
- Octroi / duty claims 152 152
230,157 174,223
Due from related parties:
Engre Vopak Terminal Limited 8 1,800
Engre Foods Lirmited 39 7
Engro Powergen Limited 4,124 -
Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Lirmited 220 -
Engre Corporation Limited 290 -
Engro Foundation 7 -
Engro Powergen Qadirpur Lirmnited 9 253
4,697 2,060
Other receivables 3,422 4,460
436,471 395,547
Considered doubtful
Custorn duty claims refundable - note 11.1 18,043 18,043
Less: Provision for impairment - note 11.3 (18,043) (18,043)
Special Excise Duty (SED) refundable - note 11.2 36,687 36,687
Less: Provision for impairment - note 11.3 (36,687) (36,687)
436,471 395,647

11.1  The Customs Appellate Tribunal, Karachi Bench, through its order dated October 31, 2011, disposed off the Company's
appeal filed on April 11, 2008 against the order of Collector of Custorns, Port Muhammad Bin Qasim, Karachi, for the
refund of custom duty paid during the period June 16, 2006 to July 24, 2006 on imports of Vinyl Chleride Monomer
{(VCM). The Tribunal was informed that all the aforementioned VCM consignments were released after the issuance
of SRO 565(1) / 2006 dated June 6, 2006 and the benefit of five percent duty reduction was also passed on to the
customers. However, as the price of the Company’s product was increased which is linked with international market,
the Tribunal inadvertently presurned that the said benefit had not been transferred to the customers and passed an
order against the Company.

The Company has filed an appeal with the High Court of Sindh against the aforesaid order of the Tribunal. However,
based on prudence, the Company is maintaining full provision against the aforementioned custom duty refundable till
such time that all available legal courses are exhausted.
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11.2  During the year 2007, Special Excise Duty (SED) amounting to Rs. 91,616 was paid on import of certain fixed assets.
Out of the total SED paid, an amount of Rs. 54,299 was adjusted through input claim in sales tax returns. Subsequently,
the rernaining amount of Rs. 36,687 could not be adjusted as the said cuty was disallowed as adjustment from output
tax under section 7 of Sales Tax Act, 1990. Therefore, the Company has fully provided the said amount on the basis of
prudence. However, the Company is pursuing the recovery of the remaining amount from the tax authorities based on the
view that the SED can be recovered as it was paid prior to the change in the Sales Tax Act.

11.3  As at December 31, 2016, receivables aggregating to Rs. 54,870 (2015: Rs. 54,870} were deemed to be impaired and
have been provided for in full, based on prudence. The remaining balances of loans, deposits, due from related parties
and other receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

12. TAXES RECOVERABLE
121 Taxyear 2008

The Deputy Commiissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) through the order dated November 26, 2009 raised a tax demand of
Rs. 213,172. The demand arose as a result of additions on account of trading liabilities of Rs. 47,582 under section 34(5)
of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance); disallowance of provision for retirement benefits of Rs. 5,899; adding
imputed interest on loans to employees and executives of Rs. 16,069 to income; disallowing finance cost of Rs. 134,414
and not considering adjustment of minimum tax paid for tax years 2004 to 2007 against the above demand.

The Company filed an appeal against the aforesaid order before the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals [CIR(A)], but
discharged the entire demand through adjustrment against assessed refunds of Rs. 180,768 and paying the balance of
Rs. 32,404 ‘under protest’. Through his appellate order, the CIR(A) maintained certain additions aggregating Rs. 189,810
including finance cost amounting to Rs. 134,414 and remanded back the issue of imputed interest on loans to employees
and executives and directed the DCIR to allow credit of the minimum tax charged for the period of tax years 2004 o
2007. An appeal against the said appellate order was filed by the Company before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR). The departrment also filed an appeal against the said appellate order challenging the actions of the CIR(A).

In 2013, the ATIR issued an arder whereby the aforementioned appeal was disposed off by accepting Company’s position
except for additions on account of trading liabilities to the extent of Rs. 20,280 and minimum turnover tax for tax years
2004 and 2007 to the extent of Rs. 19,692 and Rs. 7,300 respectively, which were maintained.

The Company filed a reference to the High Court of Sindh against the additions maintained by ATIR. Likewise, the tax
department has also filed reference to the High Court of Sindh against the order passed by the ATIR in favour of the
Company. The management of the Company, based on the advice of its tax consultant, is confident that the ultimate
outcome of the aforementioned matters would be favorable and, accordingly, has not recognized the effects for the same
in these consolidated financial statements.
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12.2  Taxyear 2009

The DCIR through his order dated November 30, 2010 raised a tax demand of Rs. 163,206. The demand arose as a
result of disallowance of finance cost of Rs. 457,282; additions to income of trading liabilities of Rs. 21,859 under section
34(5) of the Ordinance; disallowance of provision for retirement benefits of Rs. 14,239, disallowance of provision against
Special Excise Duty refundable of Rs. 36,687; addition of imputed interest on loans to employees and executives of
Rs. 20,599 and not considering net loss.

The entire demand of Rs. 163,206 was adjusted against assessed tax refunds and an appeal was filed by the Company
before the CIR(A). Through his appellate order, the CIR{A) maintained certain additions aggregating to Rs. 493,271
including disallowance of finance cost amounting to Rs. 457,282 and remanded back the issue of imputed interest on
loans to employees and executives. An appeal against the said appellate order was filed before the ATIR. The depariment
also filed an appeal against the said appellate order challenging the action of CIR(A), regarding deletion of addition on
account of provision for the retirement banefits.

In 2013, the ATIR issued an order whereby the aforementioned appeal was disposed off by accepting Company’s position
except for additions on account of SED provision of Rg. 36,687 and imputed interest on loans to employees and executives
to the extent of Rs. 17,430, which were maintained.

The Company filed a reference to the High Court of Sindh against the additions maintained by ATIR. Likewise, the tax
departrment has also filed reference to the High Court of Sindh against the order passed by the ATIR in favour of the
Company. The management of the Company, based on the advice of its tax consultant, is confident that the ultimate
outcome of the aforementioned matters would be favorable and, accordingly, has not recognized the effects for the same
in these financial statements.

2016 2015
Rupees
13. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Held to maturity
Term Deposits Receipts - note 13.1 740,000 300,000

13.1  These Term Deposits Receipts mature on January 28, 2017 and carry mark-up ranging from 6.15% to 7% (2015: 7.6%)

per annum.
2016 2015
Rupees
14. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 219 886
Cash at bank:
- current accounts 37,242 40,122
- saving accounts - note 14.1 337,986 128,214
375,228 168,336
376,147 169,222

14.1 Includes Rs. 32,943 (2015: Rs. 36,679) held in foreign currency bank account.
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15. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized capital

800,000,000 (2015: 800,000,000) ordinary shares

of Rs. 10 each

400,000,000 (2015: 400,000,000) preference shares

of Rs. 10 each

lssued, subscribed and paid-up capital
663,468,788 (2015: 663,468,788) ordinary shares
of Rs. 10 each, fully paid in cash - note 15.1

2015
—— Rupees
8,000,000 8,000,000
4,000,000 4,000,000
6,634,688 6,634,688

15.1  As at December 31, 2016, Engro Corporation Limited (the Holding Company) held 372,809,988 (2015: 372,809,989)

ordinary shares of Rs.10 each.

186. LONG TERM BORROWINGS, secured

Title

Master Istisna [V

Syndicated term finance |

Syndicated term finance |

Syndicated term finance V

Bilateral Loan |

International Finance Corporation
(IFC) {note 16.3)

Bilateral Loan Il

Bilateral Loan Il

Bilateral - IV (notes 16.1 and 16.4)

Bilateral - V (notes 16.1 and 16.4)

Bilateral - VI {notes 16.1 and 16.4)

Bilateral - VIl (noles 16.1 and 16.4)

Bilateral - VIl {notes 16.1 and 16.4)

Subordinated loan from
Engro Corporation Limited (ECL)
{note 16.2)

Current portion shown under current liabilities

181

Instaliments 2016 2015
bﬁ%rrkiﬁme Number Commencing Hpses
from
6 months KIBOR + 2.6% Single April 2016 - 100,000
6 months KIBOR + 2.25% 13 half yearly November 2010 - 1,385,616
6 months KIBOR + 3% 13 half yearly June 2010 - 212,085
6 months KIBOR +1.5% 8 half yearly June 2015 - 991,605
6 months KIBOR + 2% 6 half yearly Juna 2016 - 544,291
6 months LIBOR + 2.6% to 3% 15 half yearly Juna 2010 416,903 1,246,479
6 months KIBOR + 1.35% B half yearly June 2017 - 848,300
6 months KIBOR + 1.35% 6 half yearly Juna 2017 - 848,300
6 months KIBOR + 0.8% 10 half yearly July 1, 2019 1,500,000 -
6 months KIBOR + 0.8% 10 half yearly July 1, 2019 1,500,000 -
6 months KIBOR + 0.8% 10 half yearly June 1, 2018 750,000 -
6 months KIBOR + 0.8% 10 half yearly June 28, 2019 1,250,000 -
6 months KIBOR + 0.8% 6 half yearly June 1, 2018 750,000 -
3 months KIBOR + 3.5% Repayable full in five years 3,000,000 2,150,000
9,166,903 8,326,676
(416,903)  (3,064,064)
8,750,000 5,262,612
Annual Report | 2016



engropolymer & chemicals

{Amounts in thousand)

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

17.

17.1

17.2

During the year, the Company after negoctiations with the relevant banks / financial institutions pre-paid all its existing
borrowings, except for loans from IFC and subordinated loan from ECL (the Holding Company), and obtained new
finances from these financial institutions at renegotiated terms at lower interest / mark-up rates to re-profile its balance
sheet . The Company has obtained borrowings of Rs. 5,750,000 under the new financing arrangements.

The Company entered into a financing arrangement with the Holding Company to obtain a subordinated facility of
Rs. 4,000,000 payable at the end of five years from the date of disbursement. The loan carries markup at the rate of
3 months KIBOR plus 3.5% per annum, payable on guarterly basis. As at December 31, 2016 Rs. 3,000,000 (2015:
Rs. 2,150,000) have been drawn from the available facility.

These facilities are secured by a ranking hypothecation charge over the present and future movable assets of
the Company.

These finances are secured by way of hypothecation charge over all the present and future moveable fixed assets
(excluding land and building) of the Company. The charges have been initially registered as ranking charges, to be
upgraded to pari pasu charge in a period of upto 120 days from the date of first drawdown.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at December 31, 2016, the Company has outstanding interest rate swap agreements with banks for notional
amounts aggregating US$ 2,666 (2015: US$ 8,000) to hedge its interest rate exposure on floating rate forgign currency
borrowings from International Finance Corporaticn {IFC). Under the swap agreements, the Company would receive six
month USD-LIBOR on respective notional amaounts and will pay fix rates, which will be settled semi-annually. Details of
these swap agreements are as follows:

Notional Amounts ; G s Fair Values as at
P p— Effective Termination Fixed 2018 2015
D D R
us $ ate ate ate % Rupess
1,000 3,000 December 15, 2008 June 15, 2017 3.385 790 7,602
333 1,000 June 15, 2009 June 15, 2017 3.005 264 2,132
1,000 3,000 June 15, 2009 June 15, 2017 2.795 790 5731
333 1,000 June 15, 2009 June 15, 2017 2.800 263 1,917
2,666 8,000 2107 17,382

As at December 31, 2016, the Company has outstanding Exchange Rate Forward agreements with banks for amounts
aggregating Nil (2015: US$ 24,471) to neutralize exchange rate exposure on outstanding foreign currency payments
under the terms of supplier credit. Under the aforementioned agreements, the Company would pay respective rate
agreed at the initiation of the agreements on settlement dates. As at December 31, 2016 the fair value of these derivatives
is Nil (2015 : Rs. 23,982).
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18.

18.1

19.

19.1

19.2

12.3

12.4
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2016 2015
Rupees
SERVICE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Service incentive plan - note 18.1 45,622 38,976

This represents provision for annual employment benefit payable to eligible employees who have successfully completed
3 years vesting period with the Company.

2016 2015
Rupees
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Running finance utilized under mark-up
arrangements - note 19.1 29,638 527,086
Export refinance facility - note 19.2 300,000 750,000
Money market loans - note 19.3 - 1,080,000
Sub-ordinated loan from Engre Corporation
Limited - note 19.4 - 800,000
329,638 2,957,086

The aggregate facilities for running finance available from various banks, representing the sales price of all mark-up
arrangements, amounted to Rs. 3,300,000 (2015: Rs. 3,050,000). The corresponding purchase price is payable on various
dates during the ensuing year. Mark-up is chargeable at rates net of prompt payment rebate, ranging from relevant period
KIBOR plus 0.9% to 1.25% (2015: relevant period KIBOR plus 0.9% to 1%) per annum. During the year, the mark-up rates,
net of prompt payment rebate, ranged from 7.02% to 7.52% (2015: 7.44% to 11.15%) per annum. These facilities are
secured by a floating charge over stocks and book debts of the Company.

This represents export refinancing facility carrying mark-up at the rate of 3% (2015: 4.5%) on rollover basis for six months.
This facility is secured by a floating charge over stocks and book debts of the Company.

These represent money market loans obtained from commercial banks carrying mark-up ranging from 8.9% to 7.06% per
annum. These loans were obtained for a period ranging from 7 to 40 days and were secured by a hypothecation charge
over the current assets of the Company.

This represented short term loan from Engro Corporation Limited (the Heolding Company) for mesting the working capital

requirements. The loan is subordinated to the finances provided to the Company by its banking creditors and carries
mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 3.5% per annum, payable quarterly.
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19.5  The facility for opening letters of credit as at December 31, 2016 aggregates to Rs. 11,800,000 (2015: Rs. 13,175,000).
The amount utilized thereagainst as at December 31, 2016 was Rs. 5,503,000 (2015: Rs. 4,436,000). The facilities carry
commission at the rate of 0.05% to 0.1% flat (2015: 0.05% to 0.1% flat).

2016 2015
Rupees
20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade and other creditors - note 20.1 4,964,249 4,474,429
Accrued liabilities 1,283,414 1,240,189
Advances from customers - note 20.1 291,490 437,624
Retention money 10,885 11,887
Security deposits 28,955 41,937
Workers' welfare fund 58,490 52,490
Withholding tax payable - 4,858
Workers' profits participation fund - note 28 62,424 -
Others 31,535 46,606
6,731,452 6,310,020
201  Includes due to following related parties:
- Engro Corporation Limited - 392
- Mitsubishi Corporation 2,682,171 2,195,710
- Engre Fertilizers Limited 108 485
- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited = 93,854
2,682,279 2,290,241
21. ACCRUED INTEREST / MARK-UP
Finance cost accrued cn:
- long term borrowings 859 27,435
- short term borrowings 10,237 27,606
11,096 55,041
22. PROVISIONS
Provision for Gas Infrastructure Development Cess 2,129,764 1,148,873
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23.

23.1

23.2

23.3

23.4
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Under the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2011, the Government of Pakistan levied Gas Infrastructure
Developrnent Cess (GIDC) on all industrial gas consumers at the rate of Rs. 13 per MMBTU. Subsequently, the GIDC
rates were enhanced through notifications under OGRA Ordinance 2002, Finance Act, 2014 and GIDC Crdinance 2014
against which the Company has obtained ad-interim stay orders from the Sindh High Court. However, on prudent basis
the Company recognized a provision of Rs. 1,345,789 till May 21, 2015.

On May 22, 2015 the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) Act, 2015 was promulgated whereby cess rate of
Rs.100 per MMBTU and Rs.200 per MMBTU were fixed for industrial and captive power consumption, respectively. The
GIDC Act, 2015 was made applicable with immediate effect superseding the GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC Ordinance, 2014.

The Company based on the advice of its legal counsel, is of the view that as per GIDC Act, 2015, the uncollected portion
of cess levied through GIDC Act, 2011 and GIDC Crdinance 2014, shall not be collected from the industrial sector.
Therefore, the Company reversed the provision relating to industrial portion of GIDC amounting to Rs. 753,664 for the
period prior to promulgation of GIDC Act, 2015 and retained GIDC provision amounting to Rs. 592,125 in respect of
captive power.

Further, the Company has also obtained ad-interim stay order against the GIDC Act, 2015 from the High Court of Sindh.
This stay order has restrained Sui Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGCL) from charging and / or recovering the cess
under the GIDC Act, 2015 ill the final decision on this matter. However, based on prudence, the Company has recognized
a further provision of Rs. 1,577,639 pertaining to the period subsequent to promulgation of GIDC Act, 2015.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The Deputy Comrmigsioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) through order dated January 8, 2016, raised a sales tax demand of
Rs. 524,589 on account of alleged short payment of sales tax due on the finished products that would have been produced
and sold from the excess wastage of raw material. The Company filed thereagainst before the Commissioner Inland
Revenue Appeals [CIR(A)] on the grounds that the order passed against the Company was absolutely baseless as the
DCIR had used inappropriate theoretical assurnptions for calculating the sales tax liability. The CIR(A) through his order
dated March 10, 2016, has decided the matter in favor of the Company. However, the department has challenged the said
order of CIR(A) before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). No proceedings regarding this matter has been carried
out by ATIR, till the year end. The management of the Company, based on the advice of its tax consultant, is confident of
favourable outcorne of this matter, accordingly, ro provision has been made in this respect.

The aggregate facilities for issuance of performance guarantees by the banks on behalf of the Company as at December
31, 2016 amounts to Rs. 1,156,750 (2015: Rs. 1,098,000). The amount utilized there against as at December 31, 2016 is
Rs. 1,140,950 (2015: Rs. 1,097,280).

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements with Al-Rahim Trading Company (Private) Limited and
Fatima fertilizer, for storage and handling of Ethylene Di Chioride (EDC) and Caustic soda, respectively. The total lease
rentals due under these lease arrangements are payable in monthly installments till July 2019. The future aggregate lease
payments under these arrangements are as follows:

2016 2015
Rupees
Not later than 1 year 14,400 16,834
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 22,800 37,200
37,200 54,034

The Company has entered into contracts with Engro Vopak Terminal Limited, a related party, for storage and handling of
Ethylene, Vinyl Chloride Monomer (VCM) and Ethylene Di-Chloride (EDC), valid till March 2028, December 2018 and May
2018, respectively. Annual fixed cost payable to Engro Vopak Terminal Limited, under these contracts, approximates to
US $9,165.
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2018 2015
Rupees
24, NET REVENUE
Gross local sales 26,542,263 23,997,674
Less:
- Sales tax 3,839,807 3,436,585
- Discounts 317,322 240,797
4,157 129 3677382
22,385,134 20,320,202
Export sales 415,758 1,872,443
Supply of electricity - note 24.1 53,131 71,007
22,854,024 22,263,742
241 Represents supply of surplus power to Engro Fertilizers Limited - a related party.
2016 2015
Rupees
25. COST OF SALES
Opening stock of work-in-process 23,533 21,632
Raw and packing materials consumed - note 25.1 10,874,303 11,277,158
Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 25.2 878,117 889,095
Fuel, power and gas - note 25.3 4,386,364 3,400,214
Repairs and maintenance 331,951 362,967
Depreciation - note 4.2 849,672 1,247,190
Consumable stores 312,977 314,741
Purchased services 187,020 165,669
Storage and handling 1,024,998 1,019,968
Training, conveyance and travelling 96,480 107,477
Communication, stationery and other office expenses 9,921 7,458
Insurance 110,825 95,478
Provision for slow moving stores and spares - note 8.1 8,801 24 502
Stores and spares written-off - note 8 - 29,200
Other expenses 30,190 24 068
19,101,629 18,965,186
Closing stock of work-in-process (2,835) (23,533)
Cost of goods manufactured 19,122 527 18,963,285
Opening stock of finished goods 942 011 1,469,225
Closing stock of finished goods (1,145,523) (942,011)
(203,512) 527,214
18,919,015 19,490,499

25.1 This is net of reversal of provision amounting to Nil {2015: Rs. 890,418} in respect of duty on import of raw materials.
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25.2 Includes Rs. 71,814 (2015: Rs. 81,352} in respect of staff retirement and other service benefits, referred to in note 33.

253 This is net of reversal of provision amounting to Nil {2015: Rs. 753,664}, in respect of GIDC of prior periods, as disclosed

in note 22.
2016 2015
Rupees
26. DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 26.1 123,923 143,706
Sales promotion 124,043 108,706
Product transportation and handling 860,571 899,332
Rent, rates and taxes 29,100 23,067
Purchased services 13,237 8,261
Depreciation - note 4.2 3,348 3,839
Training, conveyance and travelling 12,032 10,868
Communication, stationery and other
office expenses 4,139 3,209
Others 9,376 10,508
1,179,769 1,211,496

26.1 Includes Rs. 10,213 (2015: Rs. 21,414} in respect of staff retirement and other service benefits, referred to in note 33.

2016 2015
Rupees
27. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and staff welfare - note 27.1 265,958 252,208
Rent, rates and taxes 57,945 65,802
Purchased services 101,959 97,031
Insurance 2,751 631
Depreciation - note 4.2 10,712 18,072
Amortization - note 5 14,464 14,871
Training, conveyance and travelling 27,612 26,285
Comrmunication, stationery and other office expenses 18,690 18,500
Others 18,805 21,841
518,896 515,348

271 Includes Rs. 19,110 (2015: Rs. 15,698} in respect of staff retirement and other service benefits, referred to in note 33.
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2016 2015
Rupees
28. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Legal and professicnal charges 23,865 15,973
Auditors’ remuneration - note 28.1 4,485 6,458
Donations - notes 28.2 and 28.3 4,575 11,127
Workers' welfare fund 6,000 117
Workers' profits participation fund 62,424 -
Loss on disposal of operating assets - 1,429
Foreign exchange loss - net 38,218 291,165
Operating assets written-off, net - note 4.1 - 46
QOthers 10,770 -
150,137 326,315
281  Auditors’ remuneration
Fee for:

- Annual statutory audit 875 1,035
- Half yearly review 210 260

- Review of compliance with Code of
Corporate Governance 40 40
Taxation and other advisory services 3,078 4,844
Reimbursement of expenses 282 279
4,485 6,458

28.2 Includes donation to Engro Foundation - a related party amounting to Nil (2015: Rs. 2,000) which is a related party of the
Company as at year end.

28.3 The Directors and their spouses do not have any interest in any donees except for Mr. Imran Anwer who is the trustee of
Engro Foundation.

2016 2015
Rupees
29. OTHER INCOME

On financial assets
Income on bank deposits 1,234 26,876

Income from short term investments 11,816

On non-financial assets

Profit on disposal of operating assets 20 -

Scrap sales 11,582 6,965

Others 7,841 17,310
20,677 62,967
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31.
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31.2
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2016 2015
Rupees
FINANCE COSTS
Interest / mark-up on:
- leng term borrowings 642,454 781,117
- short term borrowings 132,354 141,531
- running finances 58,247 34,293
833,055 956,941
Foreign exchange (gain) / loss on borrowings (2,400) 62,412
Guarantee commission 1,255 4,247
Bank charges and others 87,677 119,622
919,587 1,143,122
TAXATION
Current
- for the year - note 31.1 175,058 192,453
- for prior years (1,712) 47,797
173,346 240,250
Deferred
- for the year 354,018 43,803
- for prior years - -
354,018 43,803
527,364 284,053

Represents minimum tax at the rate of 1% (2015: 1%) on the turnover, in accordance with section 113 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001.

Relationship between tax expense and accounting loss

2016 2015
Rupees
Profit / (Loss) before taxation 1,187,297 (360,071)
Tax calculated at applicable rate of 31% (2015: 32%) 368,062 (115,223)
Tax effect of presumptive tax regime and income subject
to lower tax rates (9,160) (39,631)
Prior year tax charge / (reversal), net (1,712) 47,797
Effect of inadmissible expenses / permanent differences 1,795 4,505
Effect of non-recognition of deferred
tax on minimum turnover tax - 172,487
Derecognition of deferred tax asset on
minimum turnover tax - 154,348
Impact of change in tax rates 170,794 58,161
Others (2,415) 1,609
527,364 284,053
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32. PROFIT / LOSS PER SHARE - Basic and diluted

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, which is based on:
2016 2015
Rupees

Profit / Loss for the year 659,933 {644,124)

Number in thousands

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 663,469 663,469

33. RETIREMENT AND OTHER SERVICE BENEFITS

33.1  Provident fund
In 2013, the Company replaceds its provident fund with the provident fund (the Fund) operated and managed by Engro
Corporation Limited - the Holding Company. Accordingly, the following infoermation is based on the |atest audited financial
statements of the Fund maintained by the Holding Company as at June 30, 2015 and unaudited financial statements as
at June 30, 2016.

33.1.1 Details of the Fund

June 30, June 30,
2016 2015
Rupees
Size of Fund 3,205,658 3,161,499
Cost of the investment made 2,800,793 2,333,996
Percentage of investments made 94% 87%
Fair value of investments 3,015,867 2,736,879

33.1.2 Break-up of investments in terms of amount and percentage of size of the Fund is as follows:

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015

Description Investments Percentage Investments Percentage

{Rupees) of investment (Rupees) of investment

made made

National savings scheme 790,505 26% 223,037 8%
Government securities 702,336 23% 1,045,090 38%
Listed securities 927,211 31% 1,164,311 43%
Balances within savings account 595,815 20% 304,441 11%

3,015,867 100% 2,736,879 100%
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33.1.3 The investments out of the provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 227 of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

33.1.4 During the year Rs. 55,632 (2015: Rs. 55,128) has been recognized in the consolidated profit and loss account in respect
of the defined contribution provident fund, maintained by Engro Corporation Limited, the Holding Company.

33.2 During the year Rs. 42,625 (2015: Rs. 60,373) has been recognized in the consolidated profit and loss account in respect
of the defined contribution gratuity fund, maintained by Engro Corporation Limited, the Holding Company.

33.3 During the year Rs. 2,880 (2015: Rs. 2,963) has been recognized in the consolidated profit and loss account in respect
of the defined contribution pension fund, maintained by Engro Corporation Limited, the Holding Company.

34. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts for rumuneration, including all benefits, to Chief Executive, Directors and effective of the company
are the below:

2016 2015
Director Director
Chief OCthers Executives Chief Cthers Executives
Executive Executive
Rupees

Managerial remuneration 24,066 - 564,380 18,962 - 564,285
Retirement benefit funds 2713 - 88,571 1,324 - 88,007
Bonus - note 34.3 39,309 - 80,321 17,640 - 80,524
Other benefits 2,788 - 121,224 2,164 - 108,788
Directors fee - 2,250 - - 1,350 -
Total 68,876 2,250 854,496 40,090 1,350 842,602
Number of persons

including those who

worked part of the year 1 B 241 2 5] 259

341  The Company also provides certain household items and vehicles for the use of Chief Executive and certain executives.

342  Premium charged in respect of Directors’ indemnity insurance policy, purchased by the Company, amounts to Rs. 7562
(2015: Rs. 720).

343 Bonus paid to Chief Executive includes bonus paid during the year to outgoing Chief Executive amounting to
Rs. 26,111 (2015: Nil)
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35.

35.1

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit / (Loss) before taxation

Adjustments for non cash charges
and other items:

Provision for staff retirement and other
service benefits
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for slow moving stores and spares
Stores and spares written-off
(Reversal of Provision) / Provision for net realizable value
of stock-in-trade, net
Write-off of damaged items of property, plant and equiprment
Income on bank deposits and short term investments
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) / loss on borrowings
Amortization of prepaid financial charges
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) on imports
and derivatives
Finance costs
Loss / (Profit) on disposal of operating assets
Provisions against concessionary duty on
import of raw materials and GIDC, net
Working capital changes - note 35.1

WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES

(Increase) / Decrease in current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools
Stock-in-trade
Trade debts
Loans, advances, deposits, prepayments and
other receivables - net

Increase / (Decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
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2016 2015
Rupees
1,187,297 {360,071)
144,398 160,832
878,196 1,283,979
8,801 24,502
- 29,200
(26,271) (672,350)
- 46
(1.234) {38,692)
(9,544) 32,895
45,507 27,069
(23,982) {95,589)
833,065 956,941
(20) 1,429
980,891 134,690
289,335 (1,256,357)
4,306,429 228,524
2016 2015
Rupees
{14,838) (116,285)
{56,791) 1,628,647
(19,544) 117,814
(40,924) 149,534
(132,097) 1,779,710
421,432 {3,036,067)
281,335 {1,256,357)
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36. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2016 2015
Rupees

Cash and bank balances - note 14 376,147 169,222

Short term investments - note 13 740,000 300,000

Money market loans - note 19 - (1,080,000)
Running finance utilized under markup

arrangsments - note 19 (29,638) (527,086)

1,086,509 (1,134,864)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

37.1 Financial assets as per balance sheet

Held to maturity at amortized cost

Short term investments - Term Deposits Receipts 740,000 300,000

Loans and receivables as amortized cost

Long term loans 51,268 45,887
Trade debts - considered good 456,396 436,852
Loans, deposits and other receivables 49,797 50,808
Cash and bank balances 376,147 169,222

933,608 702,762

37.2 Financial liabilities as per balance sheet

Financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost

Long term borrowings 9,166,903 8,326,676
Short term borrowings 329,638 2,957,086
Trade and other payables 6,319,048 5,815,048
Accrued interest / mark-up 11,006 55,041
15,826,685 17,153,851

Derivatives at fair value
Used for hedging purposes 2,107 17,382
At fair value through profit or loss - 23,882
2,107 41,364
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37.3  Fair values estimation
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The carrying values of all financial assets and liahilities reflected in the
financial statements approximate their fair values.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

¢ Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1};

¢ |nputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

¢ |nputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (level 3).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees

Liabilities
- Derivative finangial instruments - 2,107 - 2,107

There were no transfers amongst the levels nor any changes in the valuation techniques during the year.
38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
38.1 Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's risk management program focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize the potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance. The
Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk factors. Risk management is carried out by the
Company’s finance department under guidance of the Company’'s Board of Directors.

a) Market risk
iy Currency risk

Currency risk represents the risk that the fair values or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign currency rates. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from currency exposures primarily with respect to US Dollars. The risk arises from outstanding payments for
imports, recognized assets and liabilities in foreign currency and future commercial transactions. In the current
econcmic environment, the Company is significantly exposed to currency risk because of the expected volatility
in exchange rates. The Company manages the currency risk through forward exchange contracts.

At December 31, 2016, the financial assets and liabilities exposed to foreign exchange risk amount to
Rs. 165,556 (2015: Rs. 183,824) and Rs. 5,169,209 (2015: Rs. 5,358,286) respsctively.

At December 31, 20186, if the Pakistan Rupee had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the US Dollar with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit { loss for the year would have been lower / higher by Rs. 250,183
{2015: Rs. 258,708), mainly as a result of foreign exchangs losses / gains on translation of uncovered US Dollar-
denominated liabilities. However, this change in profits or losses would be partially offset by a corresponding
change in margins as bulk of revenues is linked with movements in exchange rates.
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i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk arising from long
and short term running finances utilized under mark-up arrangements. Borrowing at variable rates exposes
the Company to cash flow interest rate risk, whereas, borrowing at fixed rate expose the Company to fair value
interest rate risk.

To manage its cash flow interest rate risk, the Company has entered into floating to fixed rate interest swaps on
its foreign currency borrowings. Under the interest rate swap agreements, the Company has agreed with the
banks to exchange, at half yearly intervals, the difference between contracted rates and the floating rate interest
amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional amounts.

As at December 31, 20186, If interest rate on Company's unhedged borrowings had been 1% higher / lower with
all other variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have been lower / higher by approximately
Rs. 91,519 (2015: Rs. 86,919) mainly as a result of higher / lower interest exposure on variable rate borrowings.

iiiy Other price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair vale of future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from currency risk or interest rate risk), whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financials instruments or its issuers or factors affecting
all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is exposed to equity security price risk as
the Company deals in securities. However, the Company is not exposed to equity securities price risk as at
December 31, 2016 as the Company has no investments in listed securities as at year end.

b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of financial loss being caused if counter parties fail to discharge their obligations.
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions, trade debts, loans, deposits and other
receivables. The maximum exposure 1o credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of financial assets.

The Company is not materially exposed to credit risk as unsecured credit is provided to selected parties with no
history of default. Moreover, major part of trade debts are secured by bank guarantees and letters of credit from
customers. Further, credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are banks with reasonably
high credit ratings.

The Company menitors the credit quality of its financial assets with reference to historical perfermance of such
assets and available external credit ratings. The carrying values of financial assets which are neither past due
nor impaired are as follows:

2016 2015
Rupees
Long term loans 51,268 45,887
Trade debts - considered good 456,396 436,852
Loans, deposits and other receivables 49,797 50,808
Short term investments 740,000 300,000
Bank balances 375,228 168,336
1,672,689 1,001,883
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The credit quality of receivables can be assessed with reference to their historical performance with no defaults in recent
history. As at December 31, 2016 the credit quality of the Company’s liquid funds can be assessed with reference to
external credit ratings of banks as follows:

Bank Rating agency Rating
Short term Long term

Allied Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Askari Commercial Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AA
Bank AlFalah Limited PACRA Al+ AA
Bank AlHabib Limited PACRA Al+ AA+
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AAA
Burj Bank Lirnited JCR-VIS A2 BBE+
Citibank N.A. Moody P1 Al
Deutsche Bank A.G Moody P2 Baa2
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA
Habib Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AAA
Meezan Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AA
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Moody P1 Al
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
Meezan Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AA
National Bank of Pakistan JCR-VIS Al+ AAA
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
Summit Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al A-
United Bank Limited JCR-VIS Al+ AAA
The Bank of Punjab PACRA Als AA-
JS Bank Limited PACRA Al+ A+
NIB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA-
Bank Islami Pakistan PACRA Al A+
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA-
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¢) Ligquidity risk

Liguidity risk represents the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities. The Company's liquidity management involves maintaining sufficient cash and marketable
securities, the availability of funds through an adecquate amount of credit facilities and through its ability to close out
market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the business, the Company aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by
keeping committed credit lines available.

The table below analyses how management menitors net liguidity based on details of the remaining contractual
maturities of financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

39.

197

Financial liabilities

Long term borrowings
Derivative financial instruments
Trade and other payables
Accrued interest / mark-up
Short term borrowings

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

2016 2015
Maturity Maturity Maturity Maturity
upto one after one Total upto one after one Total
year year ear year
Rupees
416,903 8,750,000 9,166,203 3084064 5,262,612 8,326,676
2,107 s 2,107 23,082 17,382 41,364
6,312,48 - 6,319,048 5,815,048 - 5,815,048
11,096 - 11,096 55,041 = 55,041
329,638 = 329,638 2957086 & 2,957,086
7,078,792 8,750,000 15,828,792 11,915,221 5,279,994 17,185,215

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
provide expected returns to its shareholders by maintaining optimum capital structure to minimize the cost of capital. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue new equity, manage dividend payouts to its shareholders

or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company manages capital by maintaining gearing ratic at certain levels. This ratio is calculated as long term
borrowings, as disclosed in note 16, divided by total capital. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the balance

sheet plus long term borrowings.
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The gearing ratio of the Company is as follows:

2016 2015
Rupees
Long term borrowings - note 16 8,750,000 5,262,612
Total equity 6,004,179 5,333,728
Total capital 14,754 179 10,596,340
Gearing ratio 0.593 0.497

40. SEGMENT INFORMATION

401 Based on the internal management reporting sstructure, the Company is organized into three business segments based
on the products produced and sold as follows:

- Poly Vinyl Chloride (PVC) and allied chemicals: The segment is formed to manufacture and sell PVC and allied
chemicals to various industrial customers including pipe manufacturers, shce and packaging indusiry. The Company
supplies the products throughout Pakistan mainly through dealers. Moreover, PVC is also exported to various countries
mainly in Asia Region.

- Caustic soda and allied chemicals: The segment is formed to manufacture and sell caustic soda and allied chemicals
mostly to textile and soap industry.

- Power supplies: The segment supplies surplus power generated from its power plants to Engro Fertilizers Limited.

Management monitors the operating results of abovementioned segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources to be allocated and of assessing performance. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit /
(loss) after tax for that segement, which in certain respects, as explained in table below, is measured differently from profit
or loss in the financial statements. Items which are directly attributable to a particular segment have been allocated to the
respective segment, while those which are not directly attributable have been allocated on the basis of reverue.
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40.3

199

Segment profit and loss

Revenue

Less:
Cost of sales (excluding

depreciation)

Reversal of GIDC for prior years
Distribution and marketing

expenses {excluding depreciation)

Allocated depreciation
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Other income

Finance costs

Prafit before tax

Taxation

Prafit / (Loss} for the year

Segment assels

Total segment assets (note 40.3)
Unallocated assets (note 40.3)

Total assels

Poly Vinyl Caustic Power Total
Chloride (PVC) soda and Supply
and allied allied
chemicals chemicals
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Rupees
18,378,843 17826991 4422049 4366744 53,132 71007 22854024 22,263,742
(15022,716) (16,077.297) (2,999,993) (2,868,556)  (46,634) (51,120) (18,069,343} (18,996,973
- - - - - - - 753,664
(892,313)  (918753)  (284,108) (290,904 - - (1,176,421} (1,207,657)
(703977)  (967,104)  (146729)  (283,189) (2.314) (736)  (853.020) (1,251,029)
[#15117)  (#12278)  (103,779)  (103,070) - - (518,898)  (515,348)
(102,208)  (232238)  (47.719) (36,535) (120) (715)  (150137)  (326,315)
16,605 51,489 4072 11,498 - - 20677 62,967
(735,276)  (907,703)  (180,422)  (231652) (3,889) (4842)  (919587) (1,143,122
523751  (1,836913) 663,371 564,336 175 13,504 1,187,297  (360,071)
(346,777) 107806  (180,535)  (149,435) {52) (3599)  (527384)  (284,083)
176974 (1529108) 482,836 414,901 123 9,994 659933  (644,124)
14883358 14785696 4854186 5,083,381 32,573 12585 19,770,117 19,891,662
4650644 4320102
24420761 24211,764

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, stores and spares, stock in trade and trade debts. Unallocated assets include long term

investment, long term loans and advances, loans, advances, prepayments and other receivables, taxes recoverable, and cash and bank balances.
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41, TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
41,1  Transactions with related parties, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, ars as follows:

Nature of relationship Nature of transactions e 201s
Rupees
Holding Company
- Engro Corporation Limited Mark-up on subordinated loan 301,483 110,981
Reimbursement made 108,068 92,646
Reimbursement received 1,945 7,917
Purchase of services 2,450 -
Life insurance contribution 619 506
Medical insurance contribution 181 221
Sub-ordinated long term loan received 850,000 2,150,000
Sub-ordinated short term loan received 1,000,000 -
Sub-ordinated short term loan repaid 1,600,000 -
Associated Company
- Mitsubishi Corporation Purchase of goods 4,316,101 7,447,889
Sale of goods 91,262 94,696
Purchase of services - 48
Related parties by virtue of
common directorship
- Engro Fertilizers Limited Sale of goods 13,569 14,757
Sales of utilities 65,282 95,427
Use of operating assets 9 1,417
Reimbursement made 18,624 33,213
Reimbursement received 8,825 2,495
- Engro Vopak Terminal Limited Purchase of services 1,027,914 1,024,413
Reimbursement made - 15,016
Reimbursement received 355 8,354
- Engro Elengy Terminal Limited Reimbursement received 126 464
Reimbursement made - 88
- Engro Foundation Reimbursernent made 12 2,022
Donation - 2,000
- Engro PowerGen Qiadirpur Limited Reimbursement received 4,338 4,196
Reimbursement made 8,306 -
- Engro PowerGen Limited Reimbursement received 15,045 =
- Engro Thar Power Limited Reimbursermnent received 94 -
- The Hub Power Company Limited Sales of goods 2,782 -
- Engro Foods Limited Sale of goods 26,536 38,239
Reimbursement received 3,397 814
Reimbursement made 6,859 =
Use of operating assets 165 145
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Nature of relationship Nature of transactions 2018 R 2015
upees
- Sindh Engro Coal Mining Company Limited Reimbursement received 705 -
- Shell Pakistan Limited Purchase of goods 5,875 3,471
- Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited Purchase of services - 14,493
- Lahore University of Management Sciences Purchase of services 328 418
- Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance Purchase of services 483 -
Annual subscription - 75
- Institute of Business Administration - Sukkur Reimbursement made - 88
- Pakistan Japan Business Forum Annual subscription 100 50
- Overseas Investors Chamber Annual subscription - 396
of Commerce & Industries
- Pakistan Society for Human
Resource Management Annual subscription - 20
Other related party
- Arabian Sea Country Club Purchase of services 191 41
Annual subscription - 393
Directors Fee 2,250 1,350
Advance paid - 4,950
Repayment of advance 4,125 825
Contribution to staff Managed and operated by the
retirement benefits Holding Company
- Provident fund 45,304 55,128
- Gratuity fund 37,791 60,373
- Pension fund 2,880 2,963
Key management personnel Managerial remuneration 73,480 70,248
Retirement benefit funds 12,055 8,755
Bonus 21,557 23,367
Other benefits 17,167 15,203

41.2 The related party status of outstanding balances as at December 31, 2016 are disclosed in the respective notes.
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2016 2015
Rupees
42, FINANCING STRUCTURE f MODE
Conventional mode:
Assets
Short term investments 740,000 300,000
Cash and bank balances 351,700 151,801
1,091,700 451,801
Liabilities
Borrowings 7,500,000 5,162,612
Short term running finance 114,638 2,833,887
7,614,638 7,996,499
Mark-up / Interest 819,650 928,383
Shariah compliant mode:
Assets
Cash and bank balances 19,916 2,978
Liabilities
Borrowings 1,250,000 100,000
Short term borrowings 300,000 192,293
1,550,000 292,293
Mark-up / Interest 20,899 29,633
GENERAL

43.1  Number of employees

Number of permanent employees as at December 31, 2016 was 421 (2015: 433) and average number of employees
during the year was 418 (2015: 438).
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44, Produgtion capacity

Designed Actual Remnarks
Annual Capacity Production
2016 2015 2016 2015
Kllo tons
PVC 178 178 172 162
Productlon
EDC 127 197 106 100 planned &s per
Caustic soda 106 106 103 o8 market demand
d in hou
VCM 204 204 174 162 ::ns':m pﬁ::
M e
ega Watis e
Power 66 66 48 50

45. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

Thess financial staterments were authorized for issua on February 7, 2017 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Guias>

Imran Anwer Kimihide Ando
Presidsnt & Chief Executive Director
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Notice of Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the Nineteenth Annual General Meeting of Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited will
be held at Karachi Marriott Hotel, Abdullah Harcon Read, Karachi on Friday, April 14, 2017 at 10.00 a.m. to transact
the following business:

A. ORDINARY BUSINESS

(1) To receive and consider the Audited Accounts for the year ended December 31, 2016 and the
Directors' and Auditors' Reports thereon.

2) To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration.
(3) To elect 7 Directors in accordance with the Companies Ordinance, 1984. The retiring Directors are

Messrs. Ghias Khan, Imran Anwer, Shahzada Dawood, Kimihide Ando, Sheichi Ogiwara, Feroz Rizvi,
Asad Said Jafar, Zafar Hadi, Mazhar Hasnani and Farman Ahmad Khan Lodhi.

B) SPECIAL BUSINESS

4) To consider, and if thought fit, to pass the following resclution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED that the Company may circulate the annual balance sheet and profit and loss account, Auditors’ Report,
Directors’ report etc. to its Members through CD / DVD / USB instead of in hardcopy at their registered addresses”.

By Order of the Board

Karachi, SCHAANE ANSARI
Dated: February 07, 2017 Company Secretary
N.B.

(1) The Directors of the Company have fixed, under sub-section (1) of Section 178 of the Companies Ordinance,

1984, the number of elected Directors of the Company at 07.

2) The Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, April 04, 2017 to Friday, April 14,
2017 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at the office of cur Registrar, M/s. FAMCO Asscciates
(Private) Limited, 8-F, Next to Hotel Faran, Nursery, Block 6, F.E.C.H.3. Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi, FPABX Nos.
(92-21) 34380101-5 and email info.shares@famco.com by the close of business (5:00 p.m) on Monday, April
03, 2017 will be treated in time to entitle the transferees to attend and vote at the meeting.

(3) A Member entitled to attend and vote at this Meeting shall be entitled to appoint another person, as his / her
proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him / her, and a proxy so appointed shall have such rights, as
respects attending, speaking and voting at the Meeting as are available to a member. Proxies, in order to be
effective, must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting. A proxy need not be
a Member of the Company.

Statement under Section 160 of the Companies Ordinance 1984

This statement is annexed to the Notice of the Nineteenth Annual General Meeting of Engro Polymer & Chemicals
Limited to be held on Friday, April 14, 2017 at which certain Special Business is to be transacted. The purpose of this
statement is to set forth the material facts concerning such Special Business.
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ITEM (4) OF THE AGENDA

To give effect to the notification 3.R.0 470(l) 2016 of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (“SECP”),
shareholders' approval is being sought to allow the Company to circulate its Annual Report through CD / DVD / USB
to all members. The Company however, shall place on its website a standard request form to enable those members
requiring a hardcopy of the Annual Report instead of through CD / DVD / USB, to intimate the Company of their
requirement.

By Order of the Board
Karachi, SCHAANE ANSARI
Dated: February 07, 2017 Company Secretary
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Shareholder Information

Annual General Meeting
The Annual Shareholders Meeting will be held at 10:00 a.m. on April 14, 2017 at Karachi Marriott Hotel, Abdullah
Haroon Road, Karachi.

Shareholders as of Tuesday, April 04, 2017 are encouraged to participate and vote.

Any shareholder may appoint a proxy to vote on his / her behalf. Proxies should be filed with the Company at least 48
hours before the meeting time.

CDC Shareholders or their Proxies are requested to bring with them copies of their Computerised National Identity
Card or passport along with the Participant's ID number and their account number at the time of attending the Annual
General Meeting in order to facilitate their identification.

Ownership

On December 31, 2016 there were 30,114, shareholders on record of the Company’s ordinary shares.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS:

Any perscn who seeks to contest the election of Directors shall file with the Company at its Registered Office not later
than fourteen days before the date of the said Meeting a notice of his / her intention to offer himself / herself for
election as a Director in terms of Section 178(3) of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 together with:

{a) Consent to act as Director in Form 28, duly completed, as required under Section 184(1) of the Companies
Ordinance 1984; and

(b) A detailed personal profile along with office address for placement onto the Company's website in
accordance with SRO No. 634(1) / 2014 dated July 10, 2015 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (3ECPF).

Transmission of Annual Reports through E-Mail

The SECP has allowed the circulation of Annual Reports to the Members of the Company through email. Therefore, all
Members of the Company who want to receive a soft copy of the Annual Report are requested to send their email
addresses on the consent form to the Company's Share Registrar. The Company shall, however, additionally also
provide hard copies of the Annual Report to such members, on request, free of cost, within seven days of receipt of
such request. The standard Consent Form for Electronic Transmission is available at the Company’s website
www.engropolymer.com

Alternatively, members can fill up the Electronic Transmission Consent Form given in the Annexure Section at the end
of this Report.

Holding of General Meetings through Video Conference Facility

Members can alsc avail video conference facility in Lahore and Islamabad. If the Company receives consent at least
10 days prior to date of meeting, from members helding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding and residing at either
Lahore and / or Islamabad to participate in the meeting through video conference, the Company may arrange video
conference facility in that city.

In this regard please fill up the Request for Video Conferencing Facility Form, given in the Annexure Section at the end
of this Report and submit it to registered address of the Company 10 days before holding of the Annual General
Meeting.
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Quarterly Results
The Company issues quarterly financial statements. The tentative dates for release of the quarterly results in 2017 are:
1st quarter : April 18, 2017

. 2nd quarter: August 07, 2017
. 3rd quarter : October 18, 2017

The Company holds quarterly briefings with Security Analysts to discuss the results and the business environment.
These sessions are tentative to be held on:

1st quarter : April 21, 2017
A 2nd quarter: August 10, 2017
. 3rd quarter: October 23, 2017

All Annual / Quarterly Reports and presentations from quarterly briefings are regularly posted at the Company’s
website: www.engropolymer.com

Change of Address

All registered shareholders should send information on changes of address to:

M/s. FAMCO Associates (Private) Limited
8-F, Next to Hotel Faran, Nursery,
Block-6, F.E.C.H.8. Shahrah-e-Faisal
Karachi-74000
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Calendar of Major Events

2016

February 1st, 2016 Approval of Annual Accounts

April 18th, 2016 Approval of Quarterly Accounts

August 3rd, 2016 Approval of Half Yearly Accounts

October 18th, 2016 Approval of Third Quarterly Accounts

October 7th, 2016 Achieved second position for Best Corperate Report Awards in chemical sector for 2015

April 29th, 2016 Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the year ended December 31st, 2015

December 23rd, 2016 | Approval and Commencement of the debottlenecking project
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Request for Video Conferencing
Facility Form

Members can also avail video conferencing facility in Lahore and Islamabad. If the Company receives consent at least
10 days pricr te date of Meeting, from Members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding and residing at either
Lahore and / or Islamabad to participate in the meeting through video conference, the Company may arrange video
conference facility in that city.

In this regard, please fill up the following form and submit it to registered address of the Company 10 days before
holding of the Annual General Meeting.

| / We, of being a Member of Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited holder of

Ordinary share(s) as per Register Folio No. / GDC A/c No. ___, hereby, opt for

video conference facility at

Date:

Signature of Member / Shareholder
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/T

AFFIX CORRECT
POSTAGE

The Company Secretary

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited
16th Floor, The Harbour Front Building,
HC-3, Marine Drive, Block 4,

Clifton, Karachi - 75600

S EEEEEEE_—_—————————————,
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Electronic Transmission Consent
Form

The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan through SRO 787(l) / 2014 of September 8, 2014 allowed the
Company to circulate its annual balance sheet and profit & loss accounts, Auditor's Repert and Directors’ Report etc.
(Audited Financial Statements) along with the Company’s Notice of Annual General Meeting to its shareholders
through email. Those shareholders who wish to receive the Company’s Annual Report through email are requested to
complete the requisite form below.

CDC shareholders are requested to submit their Electronic Transmission Consent Form along with their CNIC directly
to their broker (participant) / CDC; while shareholders having physical shares are to send the forms and a copy of their
CNIC to the Company’s Registrar, FAMCO Associates (Pvt) Limited, 8-F, Block 6, PE.C.H.S, next to Hotel Faran,
Nursery, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

Electronic Transmission Consent Form

Pursuant to the directions given by the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its SRO 787(l) / 2014
of September 8, 2014, | Mr. / Ms.
3fo, Dio, W/io , hereby, consent to have the
Engro Polymer and Chemicals Limited Audited Financial Statements and Notice of Annual General Meeting delivered
to me via email on my email address provided below:

Name of Member / Shareholder

Folio / CDC Account Number

CNIC

Email Address

It is stated that the above menticned information is true and correct and that | shall notify the Company and its Share
Registrar in writing of any change in my email address or withdrawal of my consent to email delivery of the Company’s
Audited Financial Statements and Notice of the Meeting.

Date:

Signature of Member / Shareholder
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The Company Secretary

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited
16th Floor, The Harbour Front Building,
HC-3, Marine Drive, Block 4,

Clifton, Karachi - 75600

AFFIX CORRECT
POSTAGE
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Proxy form

I/ We

of being a member of
ENGRO POLYMER AND CHEMICALS LIMITED and holder of Ordinary shares as
per share Register Folio No. and/or CDC Participant 1.D. No. and
Sub Account No. , hereby, appoint of or
failing him of as my proxy to vote for me and on my behalf at the

annual general meeting of the Company to be held on the 14th day of April, 2017 and at any adjournment thereof

Signed this day of 2017.(Number of Shares)
WITNESSES:
1. Signature:
Name:
Address:
Signature Rewends
Stamp
CNiGor [ [ [ [ [ I [T T T[] |
Passport No.
2. Signature: {Signature should agree
with the specimen registered
Name: with the Gompany)
Address:

enicor L L I T T I TTTTT ]

Passport No.

Note:
i) Proxies in order to be effective, must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting. A
Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

iy CDC Shareholders and their proxies are each requested to attach an attested photocopy of their Computerized
National Identity Card or Passport with this proxy form before submission to the Company.
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The Company Secretary

Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited
16th Floor, The Harbour Front Building,
HC-3, Marine Drive, Block 4,

Clifton, Karachi - 75600

AFFIX CORRECT
POSTAGE
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Glossary

AGM: Annual General Meeting

ATIR: Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue

BAC: Board Audit Committee

BCP: Business Continuity Planning

BoD: The Board of Directors

BSC: British Safety Council

CC: Corporate Communications

CEQ: Chief Executive Officer

CIR {A): Commissiconer of Inland Revenue Appeals

CLSA: Credit Lyonnais Securities Asia

CNIC: Computerised National Identity Card

COED: Committee for Organisation & Employee Development
CRO: Chief Risk Officer

CSR: Corporate Social Responsibility

E Corp: Engro Corporation - the Holding Company

EBITDA: Earnings before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortisation
EDGC: Ethylene Di Chloride

EET: Employee Engagement Index

EFTL: Engro Polymer Trading (Private) Limited

F&A: Finance & Accounting

FDSK: The Foundation for Diffusion of Scientific Knowledge
GIDC: Gas Infrastructure Development Coss

GM: General Manager

GRI: Global Reporting Initiative

HCL: Hydrochloric Acid

HR: Human Resources

HRRC: The HR & Remuneration Committee
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HSE: Health, Safety & Environment

Hypo: Sodium Hypochlorite

IFC: International Finance Corporation

MAR: Management Attention Required

MMBTU: Million British Thermal Units

MMSCFD: Million Standard Cubic Feet per Day

L38: Lean Six Sigma

OHBA: Occupational Health and Safety Administration

OICCI: Overseas Investors Chamber of Commerce and Industry
OSHA: Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA)
PADP: Performance Appraisal Development Plan

PAT: Profit after Tax

PBIT: Profit Before Interest and Tax

PJBF: Pakistan Japan Business Forum

PSM: Personnel Safety Management

PSRM: Process Safety and Risk Management
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AFFIX CORRECT
POSTAGE
The Company Secretary
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited
16th Fleer, The Harbour Front Building,
HC-3, Marine Drive, Block 4,
Clifton, Karachi - 75600
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